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The Legacy Begins
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1947

Established Dah Sing
Bank which grew steadily
in the 1960s and 1970s
alongside the rapid
growth of Hong Kong'’s
economy.
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1980

Introduced iconic brand logo
which integrates the Chinese
character “X” (large) with two
abacus counters in perfect
symmetry.
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71981

Gained prominence in Central
after purchasing the ground
floor property at World-Wide
House to serve as flagship
branch.
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L 1987

Acquired Hong Kong
Industrial and Commercial
Bank; listed Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited in
the same year as the Group’s
holding company.
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1990

Gained licence and
authorisation for Dah Sing Life

Assurance Co. Ltd. to conduct

long-term insurance business
in Hong Kong.

A ASREARASEE S

RIRARIRET -

DAH SING LIFE ASSU
109002 CERTINICATE PRES

& AwABRK

L 1991

Moved into Dah Sing Financial
Centre on Gloucester Road as
corporate headquarters.
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71992

Expanded branch network and
customer base with acquisition
of Wing On Bank.
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1997

Entered private banking
business through joint venture
D.A.H. Private Bank.
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71999

Launched first-in-market
Automatic Add Value Service

for Octopus Card for Dah Sing
credit cardholders.
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Separately listed banking
businesses as Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited and
started to expand into the
Greater China market.
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72005

Acquired Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A. and Macau
Insurance Company Ltd. as
well as Pacific Finance (Hong
Kong) Ltd. in a separate
transaction.
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Became strategic investor of
Bank of Chongaing with a 17%
shareholding; increased stake
to 20% in 2007.
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in subsequent years.
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Established Dah Sing Bank (China) with
headquarters in Shenzhen; other locations

were added in Shanghai, Zhenjiang,
Nanchang, Guangzhou, Foshan and Qianhai

T 2011

Established OK Finance Ltd.
to further penetrate the local
consumer finance market.
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Launched DS-Direct as a
one-stop digital banking, cash
management and trade
finance service for corporate
customers.
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T 2014

Launched Dah Sing Mobile
Banking App for individual ~ ¥®

customers as one of Hong 201 8
Kong’s early digital banking —
players.
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Launched first-in-market
Autotoll e-Serve Credit Card
which made Mainland-Hong
Kong border crossings more
convenient.
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2021

Moved into the new Dah Sing
Financial Centre on Queen’s Road
East to mark the next phase of
transformational growth.
RIS OB 2R KER
2485% - IBRFTRREBEE
BT e

(1 PN
€ isinGBink

Opened Shing Yip Street branch as
part of a series of branch relocations
to strategically acquired properties
to strengthen the Bank’s franchise.
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The Legacy Continues
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive
Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive
Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Alternate Chief Executive
Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Alternate Chief Executive
Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Michael Kennedy
David Wai-Hung Tam
Paul Franz Winkelmann

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Seng-Lee Chan

Paul Franz Winkelmann

Blair Chilton Pickerell

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Seng-Lee Chan
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze

David Shou-Yeh Wong
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Chairman

David Wai-Hung Tam

Paul Franz Winkelmann

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Doris Wai-Nar Wong FCG, HKFCG

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Cristo Chi-Leung Chow

Chief Financial Officer
Betty Wai-Yee Chung

Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology
Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)

General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources
Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)

General Manager and Group Head of Compliance
Frederick Ka-Wai Lau

Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk Management
Eric Ka-Yeung Ho

Chief Executive Officer and Director of

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Pak-Hung Lau

Chief Executive Officer and Director of

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.LLF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 81, was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in
1983. He is also the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau
Insurance Company Limited and various other companies. He serves as
a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Bank,
DSFH and DSBG. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of Guangdong
Chamber of Foreign Investors. He was a Vice President of The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Electrical Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology
and has over 55 years of experience in banking and finance. He is the
father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Vice Chairman, Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 69, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in 1989,
promoted to a Managing Director in 2000 and then appointed as Vice
Chairman in April 2011. He is the Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited,
Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and a director of various
major subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a Non-Executive Director
and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong
and Shanghai) in which the Group has a 13.2% equity interest. Mr.
Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder
Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International
Retail Banking Council of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College (now
known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and has over 40 years of
experience in banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 52, is currently a Vice Chairman and the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank and the Group General
Manager of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, the ultimate
holding company of the Bank). He joined the Bank in 2000, and was
appointed as an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman
in March 2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He was appointed
as the Group General Manager of DSFH in April 2011. He is also
a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Macau
Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Wong is currently a member of the
Industry Advisory Committee on Long Term Business established by
the Insurance Authority, and a Non-official Member of the Trade and
Industry Advisory Board of the Trade and Industry Department. Mr.
Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Harvard
University, U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from
King’s College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in England and
Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Bank, DSFH and Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Wang, aged 61, joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for
the overall financial management and control, operations and IT
functions of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted as
the Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011
and was re-designated as the Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate
Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He is also an Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”), as well as a Director of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Mr. Wang was the Group
Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG
until June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from The University of Hong
Kong and has over 35 years of experience in financial management
and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 54, joined the Bank in 1998, and was appointed
as an Executive Director in 2007 and as the Deputy Chief Executive
in August 2011. He was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in June
2017. Mr. Mayhew is currently a Director of Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited and Macau Insurance Company Limited.
He also serves as the Head of Treasury, Global Markets & Corporate
Finance of the Bank, responsible for its treasury and corporate finance
activities. He was an Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (the ultimate holding company of the Bank) during the period
from August 2004 to May 2017. Mr. Mayhew holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree (Hons) (in Chinese and Economics) from the University of
London. He has over 30 years of experience in financial services both
in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 55, joined the Bank as the Head of Retail Banking
in February 2012, responsible for the development and management
of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail brokerage, wealth
management businesses, private banking and vehicle financing.
She was appointed as an Executive Director in May 2012 and
an Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. She holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Brunel University (UK) via Henley
Management College and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong has over 30 years of experience in retail and
personal banking business with other banks operating in Hong Kong,
including Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.

Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Ma, aged 55, joined the Bank as Head of Corporate Banking in
February 2020, responsible for overseeing and supervising corporate
banking business. She was appointed as an Executive Director and
an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in February 2021. She has
nearly 30 years of solid banking experience in Hong Kong, the United
Kingdom and the United States, mainly in commercial and corporate
banking with a full spectrum of clients in various sectors. Ms. Ma
attained a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from The London
School of Economics and Political Science.

Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

Mr. Chan, aged 50, joined the Bank as General Manager and Head
of Wealth Management in 2009, and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Bank in March 2019. He is responsible for the
formulation and execution of overall business strategies of the Bank’s
wealth management business, including securities brokerage, retail
wealth management, and private banking. He holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree from the University of Cambridge and a Master degree in
Business Administration from the Harvard Business School. He is a
Chartered Financial Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private
Wealth Professional of the Private Wealth Management Association.
Mr. Chan has over 20 years of extensive experience in various areas
including financial services, manufacturing and public administration.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 81, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in 1996. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) and Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited. He serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG, a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Bank and DSBG and the
Chairman of the NRC of DSFH. He was the Chairman of the NRC of
DSBG from August 2005 to August 2017. Mr. Sze is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited which was
delisted in January 2022 and Mr. Sze resigned in February 2022. Mr.
Sze is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was a former partner of an international firm of accountants with
which he practised for over 20 years.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in May 2012 and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the immediate holding company of the Bank, in August 2008
after his retirement in June 2008 as the Chief Executive Officer of
Heidelberg China Limited. He was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee and the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Bank in December 2017. He has served as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of DSBG since May 2011 and was further appointed as the
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of DSBG in
August 2017. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience primarily in the
print media industry and has a sound knowledge of the Asian markets,
particularly in China.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in December 2017, a member
of the Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of the
Bank in August 2018, the Chairman of the RMCC of the Bank in June
2020 and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank in June 2021.
He was also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the immediate holding company of the Bank, in December
2017 and a member of the Audit Committee of DSBG in June 2021.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of the Finance
Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee of the Principal
Financial Group, Inc. (which is listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.). He is an
INED and a member of the Nomination Committee and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate Investment Trust
(which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)). He is an INED and a member of the Finance Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee of First Pacific Company
Limited (which is listed on the Stock Exchange). He is also a member
of the Supervisory Committee of The Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (a
Hong Kong unit trust whose units are listed on the Stock Exchange).
He is the Chairman of Harvard Business School Association of Hong
Kong Limited and a member of the International Advisory Council of the
Faculty of Business and Economics of The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong Kong from
December 2008 to November 2014 and a member of the Main Board
and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock Exchange from July 2015 to
July 2016. He was an INED and a member of the Audit Committee of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of
the Bank) from June 2013 to December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the Head
of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and served as
the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management Company until July
2015. He joined Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held
various positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003,
he joined HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as the Chief
Executive Officer, Asia Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served as
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of Morgan Stanley
Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business School,
U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and a BA degree (in
Political Science) from Stanford University, U.S.A.

Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kennedy, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Bank in December 2018. He is also
an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Octopus Holdings Limited and Octopus
Cards Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Vistra
Group Holdings (BVI) Il Limited. He was a financial services partner
of KPMG Hong Kong from 1991 to 2006 and Managing Partner of
KPMG’s Shanghai office from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Kennedy was chief
operating officer and executive director of the Securities and Futures
Commission during the period from 2006 to 2010 and he subsequently
took up a role as a Managing Director of HSBC Hong Kong’s Global
Banking Division from 2010 to 2012. Mr. Kennedy was appointed as
Special Advisor to the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX?”) in January 2013 and subsequently served as
the Group Chief Financial Officer of HKEX from May 2013 to December
2017. He continued to serve as Senior Advisor of HKEX until July 2018.
Mr. Kennedy is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Accounting
and Financial Administration from the University of Bangor in the
United Kingdom and has over 35 years of experience in the financial
services industry encompassing auditing and professional advisory
services, regulation, risk management, banking and listed company
management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director (INED”) and a member of the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee of the Bank in March 2019. He was appointed
as an INED of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the immediate holding
company of the Bank) in June 2021. Mr. Tam was an INED of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of the Bank)
during the period from December 2018 to June 2021. He started his
career with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
in 1968 and held various senior positions until February 1999. In March
1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and was a Deputy
General Manager and a Head of Commercial Banking during 2003 to
2008 and the Chief Risk Officer from 2008 until his retirement in 2012.
He was also a director of Yantai Bank, a city commercial bank in Yantai,
from December 2012 to June 2017. He is currently an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of Xinyi
Glass Holdings Limited and a Non-Executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee of Nameson Holdings Limited. Mr. Tam is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Chartered
Institute of Bankers in the U.K. and an associate of the Institute of
Bankers. He holds a master's degree in Business Administration from
the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Tam has more than 45 years of
experience in commercial banking industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Winkelmann, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of Risk Management and Compliance Committee of the Bank in May
2020. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited. Mr.
Winkelmann joined PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in 1984 and was
admitted to partnership in 1990 to become a member of the first group
of partners to set up PwC’s financial services practice in Hong Kong.
He specialized in the audits of financial institutions, both local and
international. He was partner-in-charge of PwC’s risk and compliance
matters for Greater China for 14 years up to June 2014. He was also
the leader of PwC’s Greater China Risk and Quality function overseeing
auditing and ethical standards within PwC. In 2001, he joined the
governance Board of Partners of PwC in Hong Kong and subsequently
was appointed to the Management Board of PwC China and Hong
Kong. Following his retirement from PwC Hong Kong in June 2014, Mr.
Winkelmann was engaged as a senior advisor of PwC in Hong Kong on
risk and quality matters during the period from July 2014 to December
2015. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a Non-Industry Member of the General Committee of
the Insurance Complaints Bureau. He is also the Non-lA Eligible DP
Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool of the Insurance Authority. He was
the Chairman of the Financial Reporting Standards Committee of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) from
2004 to 2009 and the President of HKICPA in 2009. In 2005, he was
appointed to the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform and
served for a period of 6 years. Mr. Winkelmann was the Chief Executive
Officer of Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong from April 2016
to March 2019. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts (Business) Degree from Trinity College, Dublin.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cristo Chi-Leung Chow
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Chow, aged 54, was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of
the Bank in June 2021, responsible for the financial management and
control functions of the Group. Mr. Chow has over 25 years of solid
accounting and finance experience in the banking industry and had
held various senior positions in financial institutions. He has extensive
experience in financial and regulatory reporting and tax, financial
control, capital management, budgeting, financial and business
analysis. Mr. Chow holds a Master of Science in Finance degree from
University of Michigan, U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Business degree from
Monash University, Australia. He is a Certified Public Accountant and a
Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. Betty Wai-Yee Chung
Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology

Ms. Chung, aged 56, joined the Bank in January 2019 as the Deputy
Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology,
and was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Bank in April
2020. Ms. Chung has over 30 years of solid banking and IT experience.
Prior to joining the Bank, she held various IT positions in multinational
and regional financial institutions. Ms. Chung holds an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science
from Purdue University, U.S.A.

Ms. Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Chan, aged 50, joined the Bank in January 2018 as General
Manager and Group Head of Human Resources Division. Ms. Chan has
over 28 years of experience in the human resources field, of which 25
years are in the banking and financial industry. She graduated from the
University of Strathclyde, U.K., with a Bachelor of Arts degree followed
by a Postgraduate Diploma in Human Resources Management.
Ms. Chan is a Fellow of The Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development of the U.K.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)
General Manager and Group Head of Compliance

Mr. Wong, aged 56, joined the Bank in 2014 as General Manager
and Group Head of Compliance. Mr. Wong has solid experience in
managing regulatory compliance and providing compliance service, with
many years of experience in the financial services sector and regulatory
supervision. Mr. Wong attained a Bachelor Degree of Commerce
(Accounting) from The University of Birmingham, UK, a Master Degree
of Finance from Curtin University of Technology, Australia and a Master
of Laws Degree in International Corporate and Financial Law from
University of Wolverhampton, UK.

Mr. Frederick Ka-Wai Lau
Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk Management

Mr. Lau, aged 51, joined the Bank in 2010 as the General Manager
and Head of Market Risk, and progressed to become the Head of
Risk Management and Control Department within the Group Risk
Division of the Bank in 2012. Mr. Lau was appointed as the Head of
Group Risk in April 2018 and was re-designated as Chief Risk Officer
and Group Head of Risk Management in April 2021. He has over 25
years of working experience covering mainly risk management and
other roles in the banking sector, and also in regulatory supervision
capacity. Mr. Lau attained a degree in business administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master degree in
business administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Ho, aged 49, joined the Bank in July 2007. He was the Head of
Corporate Development, Strategy and Investor Relations of the Group
before the appointment as Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
(“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary of the Bank, in November
2018. He was then appointed as Executive Director of DSB China in
June 2020 and the Chief Executive Officer of DSB China in July 2021.
Mr. Ho has over 25 years of experience in finance and banking industry
in China and Hong Kong. He worked for investment bank, international
commercial bank, and international accounting firm before joining the
Bank.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 57, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(incorporated in Macau), a key subsidiary of the Bank, in January 2020.
Mr. Lau has over 30 years of solid banking experience in Hong Kong
and Macau. He started his career in banking by joining HSBC in 1986
and immediately before joining the Bank, he was the CEO of HSBC
Macau Branch.
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The Board of Directors and the Management of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (the “Bank” or the “Group”) are committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices and devote considerable
effort to identify and formalize best practices. We believe that sound
and effective corporate governance practices are essential for
delivering sustainable value, enhancing a culture of business integrity
and maintaining investors’ confidence. Good corporate governance
promotes and safeguards the interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders including customers and employees, thereby enhancing
the credibility and reputation of the Bank.

The Bank abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, and observes the rules and guidelines issued by regulatory
authorities including the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”). It
has complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory Policy
Manual module CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” (“CG-1") and CG-5 entitled
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” (“CG-5"), Guidance
on Empowerment of Independent Non-Executive Directors and the
circulars on Bank Culture Reform issued by the HKMA in all material
aspects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Bank has in place a corporate governance framework which
identifies all the key participants of the Group and the ways which
they relate to each other and their roles in the application of effective
governance policies and processes.

The Bank has adopted a set of Board Governance Policy and
Procedures (“BGPP”) since 2013. The BGPP of the Bank is subject
to regular review and update to ensure compliance with the latest
regulatory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES (continued)

The BGPP has been developed in pursuance of the requirements of the
CG-1, which has laid down the governance framework and structures
of the Bank covering the responsibilities of the board, the organization
and functioning of the board, board committees, appointment of
directors and succession, board qualification and training, delegation of
authority and oversight of senior management, evaluation of the board
and individual directors, governance in group structure, controls on
structures established on behalf of customers, risk management, and
legal obligations of directors.

The supervision of the management and direction of the business and
affairs of the Bank shall be vested in the Board, who, in addition to the
powers and authorities set out in the Bank’s constitutional documents
expressly conferred upon them, may exercise all such powers and do
all such acts and things as may be exercised or done or approved by
the Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board shall take into
account the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other
relevant stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Bank has the ultimate responsibility for the
supervision, leadership, operations and financial soundness of the
Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board actively engages
in the affairs of the Bank and is cognizant of material changes in the
Bank’s business and the external environment in which the Bank
operates. The Board acts honestly and in good faith in the interest
of the Bank, and on an informed and prudent basis, having regard to
the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other relevant
stakeholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises fourteen
members, of whom eight are Executive Directors and six are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Members of the Board are as
follows:

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong — Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) — Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong — Vice Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang — Deputy Chief Executive

Nicholas John Mayhew — Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong — Alternate Chief Executive

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma — Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Michael Kennedy
David Wai-Hung Tam
Paul Franz Winkelmann

The biographical information of the Directors is disclosed in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” of this Annual Report.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities, including professionalism and integrity, to discharge
its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In addition, the Board
collectively has adequate knowledge and expertise relevant to each of
the material business activities that the Bank pursues and the associated
risks in order to ensure effective governance and oversight.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

According to the Terms of Reference of the Board, the key
responsibilities of the Board include:

. setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of the Group

. approving annual budget and business plan, and monitoring
performance and execution of plan

o overseeing the development and implementation of Environmental,
Social and Governance and climate related strategies

. establishing and overseeing risk governance

. appointment and oversight of senior management, and ensuring
competent management is in place

. setting corporate values and standards

o overseeing the remuneration policy

. ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate structure

J ensuring effective audit function and internal control

o ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect of the
structure, operation and risk management of the Bank

. matters involving conflict of interest of substantial shareholder or
any Director

o material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the ordinary
business or operation of the Bank), investments and business
reorganization

. material capital projects with long-term commitments

J delegation of authority to Board level Committees or individual
Directors (for approving specific transactions)

. delegation to Senior Management the authority and responsibility
to manage the regular businesses and affairs of the Bank and its
subsidiaries consistent with the objectives and strategies of the
Bank, and within the risk framework and limits approved by the
Board

o appointment of Directors and Senior Management

. actively engaging in succession plans for the chief executive and
other key senior executives as appropriate
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition, special
Board meetings are held when necessary. Dates of regular Board and
Board Committee meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide
sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. For special
Board meetings, reasonable notice is given. Board agenda is approved
following consultation with the Directors and Senior Management. All
Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of Directors. The
Board held four regular meetings in 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated its authority to various committees to deal
with specific matters under written terms of reference, which set out
in detail their respective authorities and responsibilities. The Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Risk
Management and Compliance Committee were established under
the authority of the Board. The composition and terms of reference of
these committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that
they remain appropriate and in line with the regulatory requirements,
the Group’s business and changes in governance practices. All Board
Committees adopt the same governance processes as the Board
as far as practicable and report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations after each meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“AC”) has the authority to review all matters
related to financial statements and disclosure, audit work performed
by internal and external auditors, internal control systems, risk
management system and compliance for the whole Group. The
AC reports to the Board following each AC meeting, drawing the
Board’s attention to significant issues or matters of which the Board
should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

The AC meets at least three times a year with the Bank’s executives
including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Chief Financial
Officer, Group Financial Controller, Chief Risk Officer and Group Head
of Risk Management, Chief Credit Officer, Group Head of Internal Audit,
and representatives from the Bank’s external auditor. Special meetings
of the AC are held when necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the AC comprises four members
and all of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”).
The members of the AC are Messrs. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman),
Seng-Lee Chan, Paul Franz Winkelmann and Blair Chilton Pickerell.
The AC held three meetings in 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
and its major roles and functions are as follows:

. To ensure the objectivity and credibility of financial reporting

. To review the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements

o To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor

o To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards

. To approve the appointment, resignation or dismissal of the head
of internal audit

o To approve audit plans

. To review the effectiveness of the internal audit function

. To review findings and reports of the internal and external
auditors

. To review and monitor the integrity of the Bank’s annual and
interim financial statements, including significant financial
reporting judgements used in producing the financial statements

. To review the Bank’s internal controls and reports its major
findings and comments to the Board

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) is responsible
for overseeing the remuneration matters of the Bank, and also to
review and endorse the nomination of candidates for appointment as
Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs), Executive Directors and
Senior Management, prior to the approval by the Board of the Bank.
The NRC reports to the Board regularly on its findings, decisions and
recommendations.

The NRC meets at least twice a year and at such other times as the
NRC deems appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)

As at the date of this Annual Report, the NRC comprises three
members, majority of whom are INEDs and is chaired by an INED.
The members of the NRC are Messrs. Seng-Lee Chan (Chairman)
and Robert Tsai-To Sze, who are INEDs of the Bank and Mr. David
Shou-Yeh Wong, who is the Chairman of the Bank. The NRC held four
meetings in 2021.

The NRC was established with written terms of reference and its major
roles and functions are as follows:

. To review and endorse the nomination of directors and senior
management

o To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the design
and operation of the Bank’s remuneration system

. To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
the Bank’s remuneration policy and practices

. To review and endorse the specific remuneration packages of
directors and senior management

o To ensure that regular review of the Bank’s remuneration system
and its operation is conducted

. To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and also its committees at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board

. To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of the
functioning of the Board and also its committees, particularly in
respect of the composition of Board and committee members

. To advise and assist the Board in discharging its culture reform
and related responsibilities
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) is
to provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s risk management
strategy and development, review risk management issues and the
resolution thereof, review risk management policies and major risk
limits prior to the approval by the Board, and review major regulatory
compliance issues and development, and exercise oversight on the
compliance function and activities of the Bank. It has the authority to
conduct any enquiry and review on matters related to risk management
and compliance with risk policy and regulatory requirements. The
RMCC reports to the Board following each RMCC meeting, drawing
the Board’s attention to significant issues or matters of which the
Board should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

The RMCC meets at least four times a year with the Bank’s executives
including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Risk
Officer and Group Head of Risk Management, Group Head of
Compliance, Group Head of AML and Financial Crime Risk and Chief
Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology. Special
meetings of the RMCC are held when necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the RMCC comprises three INEDs
and the Chief Executive of the Bank. The members of the RMCC are
Messrs. Blair Chilton Pickerell (Chairman), David Wai-Hung Tam and
Paul Franz Winkelmann, who are INEDs of the Bank and Mr. Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong, who is the Chief Executive of the Bank. The RMCC
held four meetings in 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Risk Management and Compliance Committee (Continued)

The RMCC was established with written terms of reference and its
major roles and functions are as follows:

. To assist the Board in reviewing all major risk management
policies and risk limits, including capital management policy and
capital plan, as well as the recovery plan

o To assist the Board in reviewing all major compliance and legal
issues, including those relating to anti-money laundering

. To assist the Board in overseeing the implementation of the
stress-testing programme, reviewing the stress-testing results,
including the stress test against capital plan and ensuring that
suitable actions are taken to mitigate potential risks where
necessary

. To monitor and ensure that major risk management policies and
risk limits of the Bank and its subsidiaries comply with relevant
regulatory requirements, and follow up on non-compliance issues
and their resolutions

. To provide periodic update to the Board on its work, finding and
recommendations

. To review any risk and/or compliance issues raised by the HKMA
which are considered significant by the Chief Risk Officer and
Group Head of Risk Management, Group Head of Compliance,
Group Head of AML and Financial Crime Risk, Chief Operating
Officer and Group Head of Information Technology or Group
Head of Internal Audit

. To oversee the resourcing for the risk management and
compliance functions of the Bank, including anti-money
laundering and counter-terrorist financing

. To interact with the AC to ensure consistency and compatibility
in actions and minimize any potential gaps in risk management
oversight

. To promote sound risk governance and a strong risk management
culture and provide guidance and oversight on the development
of risk management strategies as well as the risk tolerance and
risk appetite of the Bank
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK

The Bank’s risk appetite is defined as the level of risk the Bank is
willing to take, having regard to its resources and financial capacity,
strategic objectives and regulatory constraints (e.g. capital and liquidity
requirements), with the expectation that the risk taken or to be pursued
is sufficiently compensated or at acceptable return with reasonable
confidence level. Against this background, the risk appetite framework
is comprised of a Risk Appetite Statement (“RAS”) and a set of risk
tolerance is established. The RAS covers five key dimensions of the
risks and returns of the Bank, namely the target returns to shareholders,
earnings volatility, solvency, liquidity and others while more granular
risk types including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk
and other less quantifiable risks (e.g. operational risk, reputation risk,
strategic risk, cyber risk, legal risk and conduct risk, etc.) are controlled
under different risk limits and risk mitigation measures that constitute
the risk tolerance of the Bank.

The RAS is a high level statement which sets out the risk-return
requirements as well as the risk taking capacity of the Bank, taking
into account its financial and capital strength and covers a wide range
of metrics including return on average shareholders’ funds, liquidity
maintenance ratio, core funding ratio, leverage ratio and measures of
impact on profitability and capital adequacy ratio under selected stress
scenarios, etc. Moreover, to ensure that the Bank’s operations and
risk taking activities are in line with the RAS, the Bank has adopted a
set of risk tolerance levels to govern and control specific categories of
risk, which is made up of major quantitative risk limits as well as some
qualitative measures.
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (Continued)

As for the process of risk appetite setting, the Board determines the
optimal risk appetite having regard to the Bank’s capital, risk and
strategy. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the
development and monitoring of the Bank’s risk appetite to ensure that
the Bank is able to achieve sustainable growth in pursuing its business
strategy, operating within its tolerance levels. The RAS is designed to
be consistent with the Bank’s business strategy, risk and return balance
and market outlook, for the medium to longer term and it is not intended
to be changed frequently, unless there are significant changes in the
Bank’s strategy and operating environment. Furthermore, during the
annual and other ad hoc reviews of the RAS framework, risk scenarios
covering different courses of development of the global economies
including highly stressed scenarios are developed for the purpose
of conducting the firm-wide stress test. The results together with
regulatory developments will be taken as one of the key considerations
in the review of risk appetite.

Compliance with the RAS and risk tolerance is monitored and reported
to the Board and the RMCC respectively on a quarterly basis to ensure
that the businesses of the Bank are conducted within the requirements
of the risk appetite framework. Moreover, the risk appetite framework
and major risk appetite limits are subject to the review by the RMCC
and the Board on an annual basis, when the annual budget and
medium term plan of the Bank are reviewed and approved, or new
business and risk strategies are to be approved.

RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors. The proposed appointment will first
be reviewed by the NRC, taking into account the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
NRC, the proposed appointment will then be reviewed and, if thought
fit, approved by the Board after due deliberation.

In accordance with the requirement under the Banking Ordinance,
approval from the HKMA will need to be sought prior to the appointment
of any person as a Director of the Bank.
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RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD (continued)

The Bank issues appointment letters to each of the INEDs, setting
out the terms and conditions of their appointments. For proposed
appointment as INEDs of the Bank, the factors as laid down in the
HKMA’s Guidance on Empowerment of INEDs will be considered to
assess the independence of a proposed INED of the Bank. The same
factors will be revisited to reassess the independence of any INED
who has served the Board of the Bank for more than 9 years, where
applicable.

Pursuant to the Board Appointment and Succession Policy of the Bank,
the Board or NRC should satisfy itself that the candidate nominated
for appointment is a fit and proper person for appointment, taking into
account the following features and attributes of the candidate:

. age

. education background and professional qualification

. experience, especially working and commercial experience

o stature and reputation in the community

i capability

. professional and/or business management skills

. track record

. independence of mind (particularly in the case of non-executive
directors and INEDs)

o any financial or other interest in the business of the Bank

. other directorship

. intellectual strength

o fitness and propriety

Candidates as proposed Board members should not have any
conflict of interest that may impede their ability to perform their duties
independently and objectively or subject them to undue influence from:

o personal, professional or other economic relationships with other
members of the board or management (or with other entities
within the group)

. other persons including shareholders

o relationship arising from or connected to past or present positions
held
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RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD (continued)

A Board director candidate has to confirm that there is no conflict of
interest prior to his/her appointment, apart from clearance under the
relevant regulatory requirements relating to connected lending.

REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Remuneration information in line with the requirements set out in CG-5 is
disclosed in the Regulatory Disclosure Statement at the Bank’s website
at www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:

http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html

MAJOR SHARE OWNERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS AND
RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited. The ultimate holding company of the Bank is Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited. Both Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited are listed companies in Hong
Kong.

The Bank’s related party transactions are set out in Note 42 to the
Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

OTHERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Bank did not engage in
any material and complex or non-transparent structure that is difficult
for supervisors and stakeholders of the Bank to reasonably assess the
risks to which it is exposed.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are the
provision of banking, financial and other related services. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 37.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$2.25 per share,
totalling HK$139,500,000, which was paid on 17 September 2021.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$5.00
per share, totalling HK$310,000,000.
BUSINESS REVIEW

No business review for 2021 is prepared as the Bank is exempted
under section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance since
it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited for
the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown in
Note 37 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$72,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Seng-Lee Chan*

Blair Chilton Pickerell*

Paul Michael Kennedy*

David Wai-Hung Tam*

Paul Franz Winkelmann*

Yuen-Tin Ng* (deceased on 25 February 2021)

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma (appointed with effect from 18 February 2021)
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director

* Independent Non-Executive Directors

There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for
retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the date of
this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of Subsidiaries”
section which follows this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
AND SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”) as approved
by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate
and immediate holding companies respectively, eligible participants
may be granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option to
subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise price per option
share is varied by tranches of grant, which is concluded on the basis no
less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares traded on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on the date of grant; and
(i) the average closing price of the relevant shares traded on the SEHK
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year which enabled the Directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in its
holding companies.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
AND SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (continued)

Directors’ interests in the Schemes during the year are described

below:

1. Share Option Schemes

(a)

(b)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”)

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2015,
the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”"), the Bank’s ultimate holding company, approved
the adoption of a share option scheme of DSFH (the “DSFH
Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of
the Bank under the DSFH Scheme and no Directors had
outstanding options under the DSFH Scheme.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Scheme
(the “DSBG Scheme”)

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2014, the
shareholders of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”),
the Bank’s immediate holding company, approved the
adoption of a share option scheme of DSBG (the “DSBG
Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the DSBG Scheme.

During the year, save for Messrs. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
and Nicholas John Mayhew and Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun
Wong, no other Directors of the Bank had outstanding
options granted under the DSBG Scheme and none of
the Directors had acquired shares in DSBG by exercising
options granted under the DSBG Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
AND SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (continued)

2. Share Award Schemes

Each of the Boards of DSFH and DSBG adopted a share award
scheme (respectively the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” and the
“DSBG Share Award Scheme”) both on 9 September 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

During the period from the Adoption Date to 31 December 2021,
no award shares were granted to Directors of the Bank under
the DSFH Share Award Scheme and the DSBG Share Award
Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Bank or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE BANK’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Bank’s business to which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Bank or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been set out in Note 42 to the financial
statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The
Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
Hon-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to 31 March 2022, being the date of the Report of the Directors of
the Bank for the year, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Ha-Fong Nancy

CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick

CHAN Wai-Kin Cliff

CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

CHEN Yi Chuan (Rawson CHEN)
CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)
CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick*

FONG Ching-Yin (Celia FONG)*
FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

HO Ka-Yeung Eric

LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

LAU Pak-Hung

LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)
Nicholas John MAYHEW*

NG Yuen-Tin* (deceased on 25 February 2021)
POON Clement

SZE Tsai-To Robert*

WANG Pak-Ling Gary

WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)
WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)
WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

WONG Shou-Yeh David

WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

YAN Yun-Shum Grace

YAU Ho-Wing Vincent*

YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

*

Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant subsidiary(ies)
of the Bank.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



ire iR
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B ZE2021412 A31H 1L Z For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

k=3
Note 2021 2020
FLEMA Interest income 7 5,170,284 6,210,466
FEXZH Interest expense 7 (1,229,892) (2,525,102)
BRB WA Net interest income 3,940,392 3,685,364
REE R A2KA Fee and commission income 8 1,406,822 1,381,782
R E RAETH Fee and commission expense 8 (209,399) (199,981)
FHREERBAESBRA Net fee and commission income 1,197,423 1,181,801
FEERA Net trading income 9 174,981 313,527
Hb g ERA Other operating income 10 63,466 60,772
EERA Operating income 5,376,262 5,241,464
EEXH Operating expenses 11 (3,031,484) (2,842,918)
HBRBEEEA 2 EERA Operating profit before impairment losses 2,344,778 2,398,546
EEREEE Credit impairment losses 13 (373,343) (646,968)
HRETREREEEEZ Operating profit before gains and losses on
W g R B 1R AT 2 & E R A certain investments and fixed assets 1,971,435 1,751,578
& B EEEE 2 FER Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (7,412) (8,027)
TEMEANFERAE TS Net gain/(loss) on fair value adjustment of
(EB) investment properties 4,636 (84,240)
HENAFEE B EESA Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
Hib2Ezmm e mE E 2 F s value through other comprehensive income 4,993 13,448
PR 2 R EEE Impairment loss on goodwill 25 - (98,239)
i/ e Share of results of an associate 697,954 710,370
BN AR E REEE Impairment loss on the investment in
an associate 23 (726,000) (531,000)
RIF S = N AR E 2 518 Loss on deemed disposal of investment in
an associate (31,202) -
FEME RG22 4E Share of results of jointly controlled entities 33,060 33,190
R A1 % F Profit before taxation 1,947,464 1,792,080
1A Taxation 14 (309,039) (316,618)
AERITRRELFEERR Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank 1,638,425 1,475,462

EABEEFE 2328 L MRS
B °

MR Z—

financial statements.

The notes on page 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B ZE2021412 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2021 2020
F B A Profit for the year 1,638,425 1,475,462
FEHMEE KL Other comprehensive income for the year
AIREEEF D EELRA WEERRIIEE ©  Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
BHE Investments in securities
NAFEFEBEZS T AEME®E  Net change in fair value of debt instruments
Wi BB TR 2 AT EZE)FHE at fair value through other comprehensive income 69,682 (78,722)
iR e ARENEZ AEl2  Share of other comprehensive income of an associate
Hfb 2= accounted for using the equity method 44,040 382
NAFEFEEEZS T AEMETE  Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
WammEs LA EEEER of debt instruments at fair value through other
A E R comprehensive income 7,388 6,423
FU R IR R ER B YR Net gain realised and transferred to income
statement upon:
—HEUAFEAEBHES) — Disposal of debt instruments at fair value
STAR MR G 2 BB TA through other comprehensive income (4,993) (13,448)
B bt 2 RAER IR Deferred income tax related to the above (12,091) 18,906
104,026 (66,459)
REFIMEE S IRRAIER =2 Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities 207,164 387,859
TEEF I EEGRE WERNIEE ¢ Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
WA ET2 B EZeHT AEMZ2E  Netchange in fair value of equity instruments
WSS E TAZ AFEZS)FEE  at fair value through other comprehensive income (1,176) (1,387)
B L 2 IR IE Deferred income tax related to the above (5,271) 2,516
(6,447) 1,129
HBRFIA R 2 FEE M2 E WS Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 304,743 322,529
HIBRHEE 2 EFE2HKEHEEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,943,168 1,797,991
FAZEEF2RNE 2 MF I ARG EMBHREK 2 — The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated

2 o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021412 H31H As at 31 December 2021
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BisE
Note 2021 2020
BE ASSETS
e MERTHERS Cash and balances with banks 17 12,007,753 15,262,452
TERIT1E 1218 A WE|BRRIAF 3K Placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months 4,531,863 5,355,765
FHEEBRENZES Trading securities 18 4,425,384 5,080,047
AT EFE2AEZETABRNERERE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 14,119 -
PTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 19 621,056 1,135,814
BHEEFREMEEE Advances and other accounts 20 152,460,504 146,832,539
ARTER 2 B HZ 8T A Financial assets at fair value through other
ZERGENEREE comprehensive income 21 41,433,736 41,815,923
VABESARK AT IIBR 6 © B & 2 Financial assets at amortised cost 22 24,531,186 22,834,243
B NI E Investment in an associate 23 4,230,951 4,277,927
HREFEEIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 24 114,373 105,553
[EES Goodwill 25 713,451 713,451
BREE Intangible assets 25 58,252 58,252
TEMEMETEE Premises and other fixed assets 27 3,802,228 3,866,036
REYE Investment properties 28 756,353 682,911
TR A E Deferred income tax assets 34 120,418 124,680
BEAT Total assets 249,821,627 248,145,593
af& LIABILITIES
RITER Deposits from banks 1,703,197 3,500,442
TESMTIA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,425,365 3,191,188
RHIEEBERENEE Trading liabilities 30 1,511,927 1,570,675
CYSHES Deposits from customers 31 197,022,441 191,241,681
BBITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 32 6,589,717 8,125,802
BEER Subordinated notes 33 4,128,446 3,828,458
HibR B RIER Other accounts and accruals 6,536,586 7,035,788
BIEATRIA & R Current income tax liabilities 160,235 382,648
BELERIAEE Deferred income tax liabilities 34 14,977 11,598
aE45 Total liabilities 219,092,891 218,888,280
Ex EQUITY
[N Share capital 37 6,200,000 6,200,000
HifFH(REREAT) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 38 23,630,149 22,158,726
BRES Shareholders’ funds 29,830,149 28,358,726
EoMERMTER Additional equity instruments 39 898,587 898,587
BEREE Total equity 30,728,736 29,257,313
EmzREaEae Total equity and liabilities 249,821,627 248,145,593

BEEN2022F3 A31 Bt/ RIFHERAM o
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31 March 2022.

Hon-Hing Wong
Director

financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Managing Director

The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B ZE2021412 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40

RRTIRREMGES
Attributable to the shareholders of the Bank
o
ERMTA
R Hittf# % REBEF  Additional
Share Other Retained equity BRET
capital reserves earnings instruments Total equity
20211 A1 B £8 Balance at 1 January 2021 6,200,000 1,311,557 20,847,169 898,587 29,257,313
FEmA Profit for the year - - 1,638,425 - 1,638,425
FEEMEENE Other comprehensive income
for the year - 304,743 - - 304,743
PABRAESZ (AR IR 1E B Provision for equity-settled share-
BRI 2 B R E A based compensation and other
HE adjustment - 480 - - 480
BIMERIETAZ Distribution payment of additional
KRR equity instruments - - (41,325) - (41,325)
PR IETERE - E3MA ML Reclassification of net change
AFEEEEHEEHA in fair value of equity instruments
Hin 2 EiErEnE at fair value through other
TAZRATEEEFE comprehensive income upon
derecognition - 33,619 (33,619) - -
2020F RHARR S 2020 final dividend - - (291,400) - (291,400)
202145 R RS, 2021 interim dividend - - (139,500) - (139,500)
202112831 &6 Balance at 31 December 2021 6,200,000 1,650,399 21,979,750 898,587 30,728,736
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2021F12H31H LFZ (4) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)
(LAVEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

APITRR B R
Attributable to the shareholders of the Bank
g
BRIETA
R HibfEf REBEF  Additional
Share Other Retained equity EEA
capital reserves earnings  instruments  Total equity
20201 A1 H & Balance at 1 January 2020 6,200,000 1,002,061 19,983,512 898,587 28,084,160
FEmA Profit for the year - - 1,475,462 - 1,475,462
FEEMEEYE Other comprehensive income
for the year = 322,529 = = 322,529
PARRAESZ (AR IR 1E B Provision for equity-settled share-
TR 2 Bt based compensation and other
adjustment - 820 (352) - 468
BIMERMETAZ Distribution payment of additional
KB TRIE equity instruments - - (41,266) - (41,266)
Eé\ RILHERE - BNOMR Reclassification of net change
NTEFEAEEFFA  infair value of equity instruments
ﬁﬁﬂ%@lﬁl =0k 3 at fair value through other
TAZATHEEEER comprehensive income upon
derecognition - (13,853) 13,853 - -
2019FRHIME S 2019 final dividend - - (471,200) - (471,200)
2020F R EAfR B 2020 interim dividend = = (112,840) - (112,840)
202012 431 H &A% Balance at 31 December 2020 6,200,000 1,311,557 20,847,169 898,587 29,257,313
FAZE EFE232H 2 AN A B Rz 2 — The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
& o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B ZE2021412 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42

k=3
Note 2021 2020
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
KRB TAR G FHE Net cash used in operating activities 40(a) (2,097,338) (3,138,075)
REZTBZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEREMEREMEEEE Purchase of investment properties and
other fixed assets (301,708) (137,110)
65 Bt [E] 5E B EE P18 5K IR Proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets 215 136
B U L R 12 11 2 8 R B A RIAR B Dividend received from jointly controlled
entities and associate 230,578 142,387
WEEBMAR &8 Net cash used in investing activities (70,915) 5,413
REIBZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITREER Issue of subordinated notes 40(c) 2,320,246 -
BEEEEY Repayment of subordinated notes 40(c) (1,949,775)  (1,746,731)
HEBBZNK Payment of lease liabilities (190,146) (183,248)
RIMER M T A 2 REFRIE Distribution payment on additional equity
instrument (41,325) (41,266)
SNEBBITRERKRER Interest paid on subordinated notes and
BHZHE debt securities issued 40(c) (170,924) (229,021)
k35 BB AR AR R Dividend paid on ordinary shares (430,900) (584,040)
BMEEBMRAREFRE Net cash used in financing activities (462,824)  (2,784,306)
ReRZERRLEERDFHE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,631,077) (5,916,968)
FYRe RERIBELIER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 18,688,804 24,422,893
MEREE 28 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (14,906) 182,879
FRESRERELER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 40(b) 16,042,821 18,688,804
FAZE R F2RNE 2 MF ARG EMBHREK 2 — The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. —RER
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21 REREE
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ATR)ZBfMEHTE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2022.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant
impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions
change. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are
appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements therefore present
the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for
the current reporting period. The Group did not have to change its
accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments as a result
of adopting these standards.

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting periods commencing on 1 January
2021:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2, amendments to
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,
HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”, HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”, HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
HKFRS 16 “Leases”.

The amendments address issues that may affect financial
reporting as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform and
relate to:

(i) changes to contractual cash flows — financial instruments
will not be derecognised, but the effective interest rate
will be updated to reflect the change to the alternative
benchmark rate;
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Gr OUpP (Continued)

(i) hedge accounting — hedge accounting will not be
discontinued solely because changes are required to
be made by the reform, if the hedge meets other hedge
accounting criteria; and

(iii)  disclosures — information relating to new risks arising from
the reform and disclosure of how the transition to alternative
benchmark rates is managed.

Interest rate benchmark reform is the market-wide initiative to
replace or reform interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) that are
commonly used to determine interest cash flows on financial
instruments such as loans and advances to customers, deposits
from banks and customers, debt securities and derivatives. The
objective of the reform is to replace IBORs with alternative risk-
free interest rates (“RFRs”) that are based on actual market
transactions. Consequently, financial contracts which currently
make reference to IBORs may need to be amended such that
they will make reference to the alternative RFRs in the applicable
currency going forward. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 modify some specific hedge accounting requirements to
provide relief (the “temporary relief”) from the potential effects of
the uncertainties caused by the interest rate benchmark reform.

The Group has certain outstanding interest rate swaps which
are exposed to different types of IBORs, (predominantly US
Dollar London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)). These interest rate swaps are
designated as fair value hedge of certain of the Group’s fixed rate
financial instruments including debt securities held at fair value
through other comprehensive income and amortised cost, bank
borrowing, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated notes
issued. The notional amount of interest rate swaps designated
as subject to hedge accounting relationships and the temporary
relief as at 31 December 2021 is approximately HK$49 billion.
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2. FESHBEHMEm@® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21 EEEE@m 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

() LB = ¥ RASNEETER () (a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Gr OUpP (Continued)

TREEAEER2021F12A31 AFFAE The following table contains details of all of the financial
VASE 7T i 2R 1T R SEHF 18 I R R L - instruments that the Group holds at 31 December 2021 which
BARBEEARRERMENERIBEREE reference USD LIBOR and have not yet transitioned to Secured
MEZEBMTANER - TATANEERS Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) or an alternative interest rate
BEREMEENRRAESIWT : benchmark. Notional amount of derivatives and gross carrying

value of financial assets are presented below.

Hep:
Of which:
R2021%F
12A31 B M RBE
EERSERE
R20214 Have yet to
12H31H transition to
ZEREE EELHE an alternative
Carrying Value/ benchmark
Notional Amount interest rate as at
as at 31 December 31 December
2021 2021
M ETHRIBITEEEFHE Non-derivative assets exposed to USD LIBOR
FERBRVIESTESREE
DB AT 2 Measured at amortised cost
ZEERNEEMIEE Advances and other accounts 8,987,411 8,987,411
LABE BRI BR Y & BB B Financial assets at amortised cost 577,374 460,424
DUAFEFEBES 8 AHEM Measured at fair value through other
ZHEREETE comprehensive income
UAFETEBEZS T AHM Financial assets at fair value through other
EEBENEMEE comprehensive income 844,228 837,587
FITECMEENLIREE Total carrying value of non-derivative assets 10,409,013 10,285,422
TTET AR -RREH Derivatives — Interest rate swap 48,580,973 48,573,176
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2021
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards are not expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective from

1 January 2021 or not yet effective that would be expected to have a

material impact on the Group.
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2. FESHBEHME@® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

22 FREMBHEK 2.2 Consolidation

IRAEMBHRRBEANRITREMENBEAREE The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

124318 L2 B Rk © of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
(F) K@z al (a) Subsidiaries
MEARRASEAIEH 2 EE(BIEERE A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
MERE) AKEAEHZEEBEEELRS which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
(B35 38 20 B B R 1 [ 9 Sk A R R ] B when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
ElfR - BERRENEBEREBIENZEZ from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
EOR o BEGIRER TASEE B RN E those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
NEERERTH - WHZEGIER I EZ B consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
THEFERTE - the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

REBENWEEHERARER 2 ¥4 05 The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
B o WE—FMBARIMNH 2 RERDE for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
BEE REZBERAEEE T ERZ transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
NEE - T HAREREEMRARERE of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
ZEEXBREIATE - WERBERARN interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
B - fEXETS S SHBIZ P ESPT I includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
AIRAEERREZBERIANAE 5 a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
R E BIRE AT EELR TR E - A% costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
BRI RIS E AR N B S 2 e il and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
AR R FE (R 1 U B B & B FHE 2 L B R R AR combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
WU R 2 2 PR hIRE A R i s o acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the

Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Bt 2 RAB - (T {al& 450 il 1 A% 51 A 45 Uk B The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
EREmAREWEB AR REEER A non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
FEBE A S B EEATKRE R FEE fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
ZAFE - BYIBRARE - (nERENE - E the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
R IR = ROB A TS T H 2 4258 acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
EREERWKERENRKENE R RFE transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
ENATE  AESEKEEEEEREERA held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
TR © assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain

purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2. FESHTHEHBE@) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 HMEBEHRRER @) 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(A) BERA
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(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)

identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the income
statement.

REEHEER AN AR S 2 ARSI Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
RN B E(REE S D R AV D R T LA EH - associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
IR SHIRBEBEERECER - K& in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless

BRI T IAEE - B2 QR 2 @5t HRD
1R R 2 & IE AR IR BB AR SR B BR AR 2 IR —
B o

FER 2 N B 2 858 e S B IR Was AR A B

73
o °©

EARRITZHBHRRKRA - BERBIRE
EAANBRBE B DR - ANIRTTHEE
BB IE R O WA B ez ISR,
N

the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral
control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

KFIRITAR AR 2021FF 4

51



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

52

2. FEEHHEREEMEm@

24 BRBEBERAESWARZH

REBEPANZIRKEMAESRAREPEHNA
SR Z KB 8 - AKERN TP BSR4
RERFRERBULA

EREMEARERETHE 2 RFPERE 8
BR#% % 2 15 B R B A AR 75 B ARG A IR R 4
{EEAEMER -

BRAR M2 ZHE(fIan5E % - KRS R AR
H O ARTE) 2 AR R Z B B RERR

25 REWA

% B 7N 2 B W BR 1) 3R 2 ) JE 1 <7 B A MR R BR
26 TREERAERS

FTEFE

BER AL BEAZE

BB A TS RAE LA ERARRERS 25 B
S8 RMARSER - MESRE RS (A
e ERENe FEEERAERNEE) RHe
BAETS - BEABREE -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over
a service to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities

Measurement methods

Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at
FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or
loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using
market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FESHERHEE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
26 STEEERAG@®

EHEE

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);

o Fair value through other comprehensive income; or

o Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

o the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

o the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2. FESHTHEHBE@) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

26 TERMEENREE@ 2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

THEE®) Financial assets (Continued)
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Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments
into one of the following three measurement categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii)
below. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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2. FESHERHEE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
26 SREEREBE®
THEE®)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

() PERHEZBZFE@
EFTAGE)

EBHRA - EERARRAEBNAEEE
ERELRER - BIAEE 2 BIZE AR
WZEERIRA KRS RINNME R R
RULEZEETRICRER © WEME L
TEaR(WEREEDNFKEEERR) Ao
BReREER E IXBERA 2~ &
BUAHEFE B S8 ABRSFTE - K
SERAEEETEBEARZTRZAER
BREBEZRRN - MAEZEEERRAE
WBRER - MAFEZFEEZRAREZR
TEREEAR - MARHMEMERRR K0
AMHRERAR - FHEEERBCBSFER
AEEEMEERE—HEEZERTA
ez —wh (RER BB OHEEEE
MZEBEERN) - ZFRBHANOBE[EHAM
EBIRAAN R AR FEFFEBEEFETA

B35S -

Bl

MBASRNB BN  MEBEXRTE
BENKERAHBRSRIAMEELRER
& AEEEFEeRTAZRSRZ
ERRABASRMNEZEN(THBAE R
MBZ BRI - EETHER - AKHE
EEBANASREEAEERERE —
B RAMEREEeRNREEER  FER
% RtEAEERRIAER 2 EEEE
AEERH—B - MAKERE ARERE
ERHE—Br BB AESORIE - SR
BESRUATEFEEEEHTABRD
BNETE -

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as
part of “other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business model for
a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated. Securities held for trading are held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio
of financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. These securities are classified in the “other” business
model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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2. FESHTHEHBE@) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

26 TERMEENREE@ 2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

THEE®) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a
residual interest in the issuer’'s net assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the income statement.
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2. FESHERHEE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
26 SREEREBE®
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(ii) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposures arising from loans to
customers, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each
reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

o An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

o The time value of money; and

o Reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment
revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

° If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

o Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as
a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

J Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is
not in financial difficulty.

. Significant change in the interest rate.
U Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
o Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements

that significantly affect the credit risk associated with the
loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at fair
value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset.
The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the
date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is
deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor
being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences
in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a
gain or loss on derecognition.
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2. FESHERHEE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that
result in derecognition if the Group:

o Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects

WESNRBEZEE equivalent amounts from the assets;
. W IFHENEREE & . Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and
. FEFEESAELE TEL KRB A . Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the

EZEMRE o

assets without material delay.
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2. FESHBEHME@® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

26 TERMEENREE@
THEE®)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition
are therefore not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated residual
interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is
measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

U Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking)
and other financial liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability,
which is determined as the amount that is not attributable
to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting
mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable
to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also
presented in profit or loss;

U Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when
the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;
when continuing involvement approach applies; and

U Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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2. FESHBEHMEm@® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

26 TERMEENREE@®
THEEE®E)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
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(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency that the
instrument is denominated in, changes in the type of interest rate,
new conversion features attached to the instrument and change
in covenants are also taken into consideration. If an exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs
or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o The amount of the loss allowance; and

. The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any commitment to
provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net
in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the
conversion option in a convertible bond if the hybrid contract contains
a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the entire
contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded
derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

o Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contract;

o A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

o The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement unless
the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value
through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.
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2.8

29

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)
(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
under “Net trading income — Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are attributable
to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss
over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the carrying value
of a hedged equity security remains in retained earnings until the
disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading income”.
For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated
financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising
from changes in their fair value are included under “Net trading
income — Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss”.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in

the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable

right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention

to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on

future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business

and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or the

counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income. The
obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position with
appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case of
delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed and
repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or court
orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed to the
Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets held for
resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Segment reporting (Continued)

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the
Group has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Global Markets, Overseas Banking and Others.

2.13 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the
functional and presentation currency of the Bank and major part
of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and those related to changes in the carrying amount, except for
impairment, are recognised in equity.
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2. FESHBEHMEm@® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land classified
as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:
= Premises Over the remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10
years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market has become less
active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include trade names and intangible assets of core deposits, contracts
and customer relationships. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the investment
in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon receiving dividend
from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s share of the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s
statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s share of the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
statement of financial position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In
such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income within
the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of financial
assets at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is also
credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement upon the realisation of relevant investments.
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2. FESHBEHME@® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
219 EEER 2.19 Employee benefits
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(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
income statement, with a corresponding credit or adjustment to
the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When the
options are exercised, the holding company will issue new shares
to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the
“Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share capital”
account.
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2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than

not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an

outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the

class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the

likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date, if any

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees, if any

J the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

J where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

3 any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
Group'’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the
Board oversees and guides the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division
(“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit
is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the
control environment.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that also
covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy sets out
the core values and high level risk management direction of the Group,
taking into account the overall business strategy and direction, under
which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established to guide the
strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return management.
Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out the types and
amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its
business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are composed of key
indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is
supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits
of the Group. In order to ensure that business is conducted within our
established risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk
appetite limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis.
In this connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement
that covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency,
liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the
ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement
and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.
Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework and major risk appetite limits
are subject to review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk
and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of assets.
The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending to
commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers appropriate
fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk and market
conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees and other
commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds and other
bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currencies and interest rates. The Board
places trading limits on the level of exposures that can be taken in
relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging arrangements,
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are normally offset by
entering into counterbalancing positions (including transactions with
customers or market counterparties), or by the use of derivatives,
thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts required to
liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value
hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate (mainly LIBOR
and HIBOR). Pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched
to specific issuances of fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-floating
interest rate swaps are matched to fixed-rate debt securities held with
terms that closely align with the critical terms of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from
fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose
fair value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of an issued liability or debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3.

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the

fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount of

the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible

sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(iii)

(iv)

changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk on
the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in
interest rate; and

differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 ERAEMIAREK@®m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
311 BFERBEERE TETEEZIHTET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
A accounting (Continued)
IR @ 2 A FEE @) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
AR B RRE T AR =i B ) 2 @ b A B The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging
ZERTH - instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.
ZHH
2021%12H31H 31 December 2021 Maturity
1FHR 1EE 5k

Less than Z5%F  More than
B EE R — F = E Risk category — interest rate risk 1year 1-5years 5 years
BT BE-FE Hedge of issued liabilities —

certificates of deposit
H{E Nominal amount 6,111,217 389,833 —
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 0.41% 0.74% -
BT BEIAEER Hedge of issued liabilities —
subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount - 4,093,241 -
5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate - 3.86% -
HHET BE—BE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
[ (=] Nominal amount - - -
19 ] TE A 2 Average fixed interest rate - = =
HihEE 2 U ATER 2 B £ % E) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AT AE A2 E W A ER through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 5,257,227 11,881,126 7,826,347
S5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 3.76% 3.60% 3.41%
$R R R 2 ARSI BREY Hedge of debt securities held at
B 75 amortised cost

H{E Nominal amount 95,119 7,520,434 6,302,929
5 [E R = Average fixed interest rate 4.63% 3.20% 3.38%
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3. HHEERREEm)

3.1 ERAEEMIAERK@®

311 BFERBEERE TETEEZIHTET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

Hm)

FRE 2 D FEEH @

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

FH3 A
202012 H31H 31 December 2020 Maturity
1F AR 1F A E 5 A E

Less than E54F More than
[ B 8 Rl — ) = [ Risk category — interest rate risk 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
BT BE-FRE Hedge of issued liabilities —

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 1,456,811 100,000 -
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 1.13% 2.55% -
BT BEAEES Hedge of issued liabilities —
subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount 1,937,913 1,744,121 -
9 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 4.25% 5.00% =
HHET BE—BE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
EE Nominal amount 813,923 - =
9 ] RE A 2 Average fixed interest rate 3.25% - -
HihEE 2 U A TER 2 B % E) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AT A A2 R A E RS2 through other comprehensive income

HE Nominal amount 1,826,676 13,395,237 7,719,326
S5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 4.34% 3.84% 3.54%

I 2 ABERAR AN AR

s
H{E
T4 E R FIE

Hedge of debt securities held
at amortised cost
Nominal amount — 5,950,602 7,040,029

Average fixed interest rate _ 3.28% 3.32%
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3. HMERBREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
31 ERAEMIARE@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
311 FFERBEERA TS EEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
g9 g
A accounting (Continued)
AFEH A Fair value hedges
BREE R TIER 2R EMT ¢ The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows:
2021
REEHBRRRA
BELLARE NS
RERZ AR
BRZAYE
Aitgany  HARRASCE
X Bty Accumulated
BRENMERRER g4 amount of fair value
ZHAERZATE yATEey  hedgeadjustments
HnRRAELE Changein remaining n the
' lAchum:Ia;ed ar:'ou:lt of t AT statement of
a"‘: :e de gea ",‘s rlnedn: BBRRRAREHH hedge used for  financial position
onlt ¢ hedge 'ltem feluce AE AR calculating hedge ~~ for any hedged
L inthe carrying amount i ineffectiveness items that
Carrying amount of the hedged item statement of financial for2021  have ceased to be
BE B BB 8%  positionin which the #(F)  adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  hedged item is included Note (a) gains and losses
FRE - 6,489,717 - (11333)  BE{HEE 12,553 -
Certiiicates of deposit Certficates of deposit
issued
kERTH - 4,128,446 - BN5  KEEH 100,222 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
[FE - - - - BARR 4797 -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
HRZNATEZEE 25,986,544 - 656,142 - NATEHSEEEY (958,589) -
BT AR 2ENED AR 2 E g
Debt securities held at Financial assets at fair
fair value through other value through other
comprehensive income comprehensive income
FFR ARG B 14,134 481 - 216,000 - BRRRSIE (630,366) -
Debt securities held at Financial assets at
amortised cost amortised cost
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3. HKEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 EREMIARE@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
311 BEREBEEERN PET]EEZIHITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
Hum) accounting (Continued)
DFEH P (E) Fair value hedges (Continued)
BAEE ALY RIER 2 ENAT : (&) The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows: (Continued)
2020
REEHBIARR
Bl Sl
REBZ ML
BRZATE
Hh2BaE R
Accumulated
BREHPEAREE BIFTE20206  amount offair value
ZARERIDYE SRAM hedge adjustments
HRERARER MENEL  remainingin the
Accumulated amount of S AT statement of
firvalue hedge adjusiments HlRERNE R Changein financial position
on th hedged fem included EE 2B value subjectto for any hedged
A inthe carrying amount Ling item in the hedge used for items that
Carrying amount of e hedged ftem statement of financial calculating hedge  have ceased to be
BE af BE &% position in which the ineffectiveness  adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiliies  hedged item is included for 2020 gains and losses
FE - 1,561,697 - 4886 EEINEHE (10964) -
Certiiicates of deposit Certficates of deposit
issued
fhEET - 3,828,458 - 146404 ERH (87,559) =
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
[&E - 818,715 - 4192 BHER 4,354 -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
WEZIATE A 24,497,071 - 1,442,387 - NATEREEARS 906,548 -
FERINCE R Gt A2 E A
EBES SHAE
Debt securities held at fair value Financial assets at fair
through other comprehensive value through other
income comprehensive income
R ZNBANATIES 13,812,919 = 822,288 - AERASIES 328,174 =
RS SHAE
Debt securities held at amortised Financial assets at
cost amortised cost
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3. UHBERREREm)
3.1 ERSEMTIARE®
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DFEH ()

BRAEEREMIAZIER REHRMZ &
T

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

2021
BRGE
20215
XK
ZATERD
Change in
fair value
BBRRRATS used for BRI
HHIAZER calculating  ZEHAR
Line item in the hedge Ineffectiveness
?EE{E statement of ineffectiveness  recognisedin  ERAESE LN
Al Carrying amount financial position for2021  profit(loss) Z3EE
Nominal BE 8f& where the hedging Z(F) ()  Line item in profit or loss that
amount Assets Liabilities  instrument is included Note (a) Note (a) includes hedge ineffectiveness
FlEEkR
Interest rate risk
Fis 8 — i E 6,501,050 55 11,765 fFT4ESMIA (12,720) (167) RATEHMEESRIALF
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial Wi/ (1)
hedge of certificates instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
of deposit financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MR — bR (R ETS 4,093,241 56,051 21097 (TESRTE (100,376) (154) ARTEHHHOEESHRIALS
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial Wi/ (B18)
hedge of subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
GlES=RiRpal i - - - fEeRIA (4,726) 71 BATEERORESRIAZE
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial Wi/ (E18)
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
PR B8 — R ZADT 24,964,700 45,289 701,403 {THESRIE 951,568 (7,021) BAFEHTHIERSHIEZF
iR EHEHIAL tﬁ%@%l Derivatives financial s/ (1)
EBES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps — hedge of debt financial instruments subject to
securities held at fair value through fair value hedge
other comprehensive income
Pl B 8 — $mi 2 A B8R 13,918,482 159,256 375141 f{THEERMTE 630,827 (39) BATELHIMIERSRIEZF
FXARSIBR 0 5 5 Derivatives financial Wi/ (E18)
Interest rate swaps - instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
hedge of debt securiies held financial instruments subject to
at amortised cost fair value hedge
CE Note:
() BERERAERNSEATESRANEE B (@)  The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each
WEHIE BN FANEEZ B R H SR ¥ T category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in

AMATESHMER I ZE -

value of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the
change in fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current
year.
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3.

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and

INRNC-)) hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)
2020
ANEtE
2020%F
)b St
ZRTHEEE
HBRARARS Change in
HhIHEZIEA fair value
Line item in the used for BERAUIEHR
?EE@ statement of calculating  ZEAHAN  WERABSERAN
HfE Carrying amount financial position hedge Ineffectiveness 2 E
Nominal BE Bf  where the hedging ineffectiveness  recognisedin  Line item in profit or loss that
amount Assets Liabilities  instrument is included for 2020 profit/(loss)  includes hedge ineffectiveness
Mx R
Interest rate risk
lES iR e 1,556,811 4,689 - {TESRIA 9,671 (1,203) ARTEHHMEBSHIALF
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial Wit/ (B18)
hedge of certificates of instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
deposit financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MR H — bR (B ETS 3,682,034 146,314 - {T4emIE 88,423 870 RAATEHTMEECRIALF
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial Wit/ (B18)
hedge of subordinated instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
notes financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
St iRgayil 813,923 4,720 - {TESRIA (4,266) 88 FATEHPMEESRTIAZS
Interest rate swaps — Derivatives financial W/ (B8
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
FEE 8 —EhsE 2 AR TE 22,941,239 940 1,436,209 TESHIE (904,718) 1,830 AATEHHHAESHIALF
2 B EEE AL R E KR Derivatives financial g/ (B1)
EBES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - financial instruments subject to
hedge of debt securities held at fair value hedge
fair value through other
comprehensive income
PR - ShhE g 7 E s 12,990,631 33,168 855,309 {THESRMIA (328,774) (600) AATEHHMEBSHIALF
ARG BRE) BTS2 Derivatives financial Iz / (B518)
Interest rate swaps — instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from

hedge of debt securities held at
amortised cost

financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of
the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees
have been chaired by the Chief Executive or Chief Risk Officer with
certain Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers
as members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and
monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and are
approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures, limits and asset
quality are regularly monitored and controlled by management, credit
committees and GRD. The Group’s internal auditors also conduct
regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies
and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and
review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The credit
grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan specific
information collected at the time of application (such as disposable
income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and financial
indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures). For retalil
exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as delinquency
status and external data such as credit bureau scoring information
on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable expert
judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final internal
credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations which
may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending of
retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic basis
by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of Default
(“PD”).

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as financial statements. This will determine the updated
internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external
default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales are
calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.

Treasury

For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury
portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used. These
published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The PDs
associated with each grade are determined based on default rates
published by the rating agencies.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on

changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on
expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with
HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward looking information.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets):

BRI FEEREE
Change in credit quality since initial recognition
< >
PEER 1 PEER 2 PEER 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(Ve FER) (FER B TmTERIE AL IN) (FERESE)

(Initial recognition)

1218 A R FREME B 1R

12-month expected credit losses

AR B REAE BN B BR AN 2 3 B H B 1R ER s st 40
T~

3221 EERE K AIEE N

ENAUNT - BXZRENKRAEEZRREHT
A BNMEERBAEIEN :

 BEFEAME - EIMEEFRLREKN
THER - AIREFFIEBREIFRERT
FZBERRARIFHLER R 2 B TE—K

+ RORMEATE  ERBEEFRLRS
#  RELDAEETR  R—RETRZ
&

EB#MAZ((BHMAR)EBE30X

«  BEXRHEAME EERADZ2B|A/[EAR

N

. EERACHBEACREER(BRRE
BDZEFARE2HRSFRIET - »BZE
HRZRTETHRIERA 2 BB R AERIZ 5
HFZELF LN

(Significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition)

> HIREEEEE
Lifetime expected credit losses

(Credit-impaired assets)

2 EEAEE R
Lifetime expected credit losses

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.22.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
SICR when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

o when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

J when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating, for
corporate portfolio

o when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

. when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate
portfolio

. when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according
to the loan classification of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”). The decision to classify the loans is based on
the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of individual
counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of the
portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

J a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that
the Group would not consider otherwise;

3 the borrower is bankrupt;

. it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of
individual counterparties defaulting; and

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In
addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered
credit-impaired.

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), defined as follows:

J The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

o EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed
at the time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for
a revolving commitment, the Group includes the current drawn
balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn
up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it
occur.

o LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each
future month and for each individual exposure. These three components
are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e.
the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate
used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on
a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of
the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is
assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected
payment profile, which varies by product type.

o For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over
a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any
expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early repayment/
refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

o For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted
by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining
limit by the time of default.

. For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the
maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilized amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These include collateral
type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs
observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions and the in-house economic research team on a regular
basis and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next
five years. For the economic variables out of the forecasting periods (i.e.
after the next five years), the point-in-time default risk level at the last
forecasting period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default risk level
of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables on the PD,
EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical regression
analysis to understand the impact changes in these variables have had
historically on default rates and loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator. This
determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage
2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should be
recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant
ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

ECL model enhancements

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic had led to rapid deterioration in
business conditions and unprecedented economic uncertainty. Similar
to other industry practitioners in Hong Kong, highly uncertain and
volatile macroeconomic environment under COVID-19 significantly
affected the performance of ECL models due to their unprecedented
nature, leading to overly sensitive ECL estimates under these extreme
conditions. To properly reflect asset quality of the credit portfolios
under macroeconomic situations and to recognise the effects of various
government relief measures in a forward-looking manner, the Group
had conducted portfolio reviews and performed scenario analysis to
come up with credit expert judgement on top of the ECL model outputs
in the assessment of ECL for 2020.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

ECL model enhancements (Continued)

While the COVID-19 pandemic still lingered during 2021, the drastic
volatilities in macroeconomic parameters observed in 2020 and in turn
the impact on ECL models had been much reduced. Nevertheless, in
order to strengthen the resilience of the Group’s ECL quantification
framework, the Group had conducted an ECL model review exercise
in 2021, taking into account the observations noted in 2020 to further
fortify model performance. Certain enhancements were made to the
ECL models which included:

1. Refining the parameters used in the PD models for the HK
corporate banking portfolio and the treasury and global markets
portfolio to better reflect the relationship between credit quality
and macroeconomic conditions;

2. Refining the framework for macroeconomic scenario setting
and the mechanism to determine probability weightings under
the various scenarios in order to better reflect uncertainties in
economic outlook against current macroeconomic conditions.

These model enhancements had been incorporated in the ECL
assessment for end-December 2021 positions.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Management judgements and overlay

Notwithstanding the enhancements in ECL quantification models, the
Group closely monitored market developments to assess adequacy
of provision against ECL model outputs in a forward-looking manner.
Considering the market concerns on the credit deterioration of certain
PRC property developers as well as the outbreak of the 5th wave of
the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong, which led to another round of
social distancing and restrictive measures, portfolio reviews had been
conducted on the relevant segments/borrowers. As a result, additional
provision overlay amounting to 0.16% of the HK corporate banking
portfolio on top of the ECL model outputs was made taking into account
anticipated credit downgrade of certain borrowers as well as the
potential credit deterioration of certain borrowers highly impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

EEERE
IEREEERR
WEZL
Management
Adjustment as
a percentage
of outstanding

7"2021512H31H As at 31 December 2021 balance
BAMRERITAES HK Corporate Banking Portfolio 0.16%
AERTERITAA HK Retail Banking Portfolio -

BAMERIREMSERBAS

EREHE R - RINERERER FATER
HREHEREEEELZEgEERIE -

HK Treasury and Global Markets Portfolio =

The exercise of management judgement and the application of overlay
on top of model outputs had been reviewed and approved by the CMC.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking economic
indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of macroeconomic
factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. The selection of MEFs had
gone through stringent statistical data tests commonly adopted by the
industry as well as expert judgements to ensure that MEFs used in
the ECL models are relevant to and reflective of the risk profile of the
Group’s credit portfolios while satisfying required quantitative standards.
The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on the
underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular, the
“base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic forecasts
obtained from different economic research institutions and the Group’s
economist. “Good” and “bad” scenarios were developed by referencing
the MEFs in the “base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the
upside and the downside potential variations taking into account
the uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed
data covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario

Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The base
scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic forecasts
which formulate a “base case” view of the most probable
future direction of relevant economic variables.

Good This scenario is determined by making reference to the
“base” scenario and reflects positive uncertainties by
incorporating upside variations to the “base” scenario
macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference to the
“base” scenario and reflects negative uncertainties by
incorporating downside variations to the “base” scenario
macroeconomic forecasts.

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of risk units put
forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence, enabling
the Group to generate forecasts of economic factors and the forward-
looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review and
reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided his overall
view on whether the collective forecasted outcome is generally in line
with his expectation. As a stringent measure, the summarized outcomes
will be submitted to the CMC for final approval. These forward-looking
PD and LGD are then used as input parameters in the expected credit
loss model.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

AR EEE 2 RE (E) Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
BARETEEEEB B2 EARRBESIROT Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set
out as below.
SEHRIE 9 15 HAATHE
Average of 5-Year One-Year
"20215F12H31H As at 31 December 2021 Forward-Looking  Forward-Looking
EBARMEERERLRE Hong Kong GDP Growth Et Base 2.0% 2.3%
(Ao k) Rate (%) RiF Good 7.6% 7.9%
TR Bad -3.6% -3.3%
ERFEEYHEER Hong Kong Residential Property  Zf# Base 5.5% 7.4%
EHEE(BHL) Price Index Change (%) Rif Good 28.8% 30.6%
TR Bad -17.7% -15.8%
BAREX(BHL) Hong Kong Unemployment Et Base 3.1% 3.9%*
Rate (%) Ruf Good 2.3% 2.3%*
TR Bad 5.4% 6.2%*
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3. HMEBEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 FERB@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

322 HAIEEEEE ) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 MATEHEEBBER AT ER (@) 3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

AR EEE 2 RE (E) Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

5 HARITIE 988 1 ARG
Average of 5-Year One-Year
M2020512H31H As at 31 December 2020 Forward-Looking Forward-Looking
AR HAEEREEKE Hong Kong GDP Growth i Base 2.8% 4.8%
(BDEH) Rate (%) R Good 2.9% 4.8%
TR Bad 1.3% -5.9%
ESEEYEER Hong Kong Residential Property % Base 5.8% 5.6%
BHEEH(AHL) Price Index Change (%) R Good 12.1% 11.1%
TR Bad -15.5% -32.5%

BEBREX(BHL) Hong Kong Unemployment Ht Base 4.0% 5.2%*
Rate (%) Rif Good 3.1% 3.1%*

TR Bad 6.0% 5.9%*

* ZEAFHATEMERN ERK1FHZFERTHR * These one-year forward looking rates represent forecast average rates for

o one year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”,

“good” and “bad” are as follows.

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
Eatt Base 66% 70%
Rif Good 12% 10%
TR Bad 22% 20%

SN R AR A 77 A A £ 215 35 2 B At AT RE 14
%fl%(ﬁﬂﬁﬂf{rﬂ&* MRRBORBE 2 ¥
B)ERR/EEATE  RUBRRFERHE
HEEBRELRAERRFEEEERARERA
BEE -

G
BREEBRERNZEIERRMOT

() REX EREEEEMREERERARE
TTROERENNTE

(i) AEBEEEE. f# NGIEY YTt
REENEATE
(i) WEERIEE - BN ERIBERIERRE

@méx%ge

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated within
the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory, legislative
or political changes, have also been considered, but are not deemed
to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has been
made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored for
appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis
The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as

follows:

(i) Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured
borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(i) GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’
performance and collateral valuations; and

(i)  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on
mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
322 HAIEEEEE ) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3224 MATEHIEEEBER 2 At ER @) 3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)
R T () Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
AN RERERERSENLEZSRERNER Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
BREMEEELDHMNEEA &L EBETERE reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
EEEER s & assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:
=€ Retail
EHREERFENY
ECL Impact
2021 2020
KEER Unemployment rates +1% 34,658 20,294
-1% -9,092 -5,569
EEAEEREER GDP growth rates +0.5% -5,772 -2,408
-0.5% 5,890 2,453
VI EIEIEEL Property price indices +5% -1,004 -624
-5% 7,061 4,571
g=E3 Corporate
EHREERFIENY
ECL Impact
2021 2020
KR Unemployment rates +1% 31,412 17,187
-1% -27,843 -9,890
FEBEEREK GDP growth rates +0.5% -6,485 -11,753
-0.5% 6,763 12,804
VI EIEIREL Property price indices +5% -3,804 -15,880
-5% 8,834 22,255
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.2 EERMEm@m)
3.2.3 JUESE B R IEHIBEE 2 B

AEBEERERNERAXRZEFEE - TEHL
BRREEREEREFEBESED 2AR - RiE

ERARRZEFEE - TEXERZBEERR

BE  ERHERBAAMAEERE S EHIER -

BRAXRZGHFER 2 &S EARERELAER
HET  MITX*BEREBEBEEAARIER
HEWXEERENOR - BRZBEE T2 EH
AR R 2 FENAMKRTE - AR
ERREEEEEZE R TEMNES -

AEENEER - REAKEERR - & REUER
miEREEBNER - SEFETETAFEM
EEZXZHTFEERR  AEERGEITET
AEEHTFAREZERBE  BRACEYZT
SEPINEESIERERRZEE - MESTET
AHFZEERR - AREEEZEE2E @5
HF2HBRENREEFTR %%tﬂl%@’*ﬁmﬂ%%
ZBBERITAT A MEREEEERE - &0
ZERRERIRERYE  REBEEEREELX
SROETMEREBRA © 51327158 Bl 1 BRI
AREARENE AR BRYKEMBSEREER
PR REETER - TR REFRFNR
f& -

A EGREBUR M NARSEBMZBEAE B
ERANGEEREEE - AEE/HE %Hﬁﬁﬁf
ERENBEN - Bt WEARETTHAKEIRE
KEXREERR

FIEEERE  EmAGHREERE - BIURR
BRI ZUFHEEEN Rens8BikE
BREEN ©

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentration risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are capital
based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the overall
credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit. Country limits are also
set up with reference to the sovereign credit rating from international
credit rating agencies. All these limits aim to achieve a more balanced
portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and uses
established market practices on credit support and collateral settlement
to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall
credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty, including
valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the GCC with reference to
the financial strength and credit rating of individual counterparty. The
acceptable types of collateral and their characteristics are established
within the credit policies, as are the respective margins of finance.
Enforceable legal documentation establishes the Group’s direct,
irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or
other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in cases where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the Group
to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are based
upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow position
and ability to repay.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 HESE R R ISR E 2 B () 3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

() BRREBR

REBE LS ERRNER DT BIERRER
REBFH A Z IR RS - EEEARER
=3

o AWM

o  HEMERBEENBEREUE
o HERSRIANEBESFMER

o HEMER R
o HEARE-

AN - EARERBRIRERAF R @R
ERRBFEBRRETRE - SEEHER
HIRMHBIMERmIAREEERRX

(2) EBES

BXemTAMASHAMEERRCEER
REZLFERTAN  BFEFLBEERE
B i A A

(a) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

o Mortgages over properties;

o Charges over business assets such as premises and
accounts receivable;

. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities;

. Charges over deposits; and

U Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans and
advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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3. UBEREE@

32 FERRM®

3.2.3 HES/E B RIZHIBEE 2 BE (%)
(R) $T4£TA

BETAETAESNMARSET ZEER
BREERZXZHT 2 EERBRIES M EERE
Frz—&n - BREEENNREBERR
ZBURE  BRGEERENMETENEE
A o IESN - REEA T EENENEFK
BRI E M NRREERELIZETSE
FFRT R ERNTERNZZRSHT
FRIBERE R ROTEAR NS 2 s
ZE & o

AEBETAERBORZHFATLEM L
BE BABESZERZE T EBEMRITEE
A LR o

3.2.4 MEHEFE

EAKEEKEVERKENE I REF/HIR
BEREHERREOEREBMEEZBRBLE
BMEE - REREHE AR @R = 1L
TTIE B K (if) 20 7R 5= B O W B 7% AR BOH I o
WEREMERRNEELREREMNEN2H
e

AREBAMH DERTHNEREE - BZE20214F
12A31ALEFE - Rk KRB SR ERmE) T
1ERT - AMEMEN S REEZREESNEER
13,000,0007% 7T (20204F : 59,000,000/ 7T,) © 7
R20214F 22020 AR ERB B C MW TR E
KRB EE - BEFURERAER R EERTS
EROER - F2HME3.2.9 -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event of
default or early termination and in accordance with the regulatory
requirements.

Collateral arrangements with most counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
outstanding amounts of financial assets written off before completion
of enforcement activity of the underlying collaterals was HK$13 million
(2020: HK$59 million). Please refer to Note 3.2.9 for the total amount
of loans and advances to customers, loan commitments and financial
guarantees with or without collateral held by the Group written off in
2021 and 2020.
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NTS

112

3. UHBERREREm)
3.2 FERM@m)

325 R AFEZHHin A MISEIZF A
ZREEERREE

TRESEMTANEERBRZON - TIE
EENKREE S2ZLRRETISAEEZE
ERMEEZRHERERARE

(1) ZAfEREFENEREE

2021512H31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

At 31 December 2021
RAE/ 2&eH

Gross carrying/notional amount

RiEE
BREE  RBIMUT FiEEE
E% Special Sub-standard &t ECL FE
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RITRER R Balance and placements with banks 16,548,044 - - 16,548,044 8,428 16,539,616
~FREx - Stage 1 16,548,044 - - 16,548,044 8,428 16,539,616
—RE2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
=] - Stage 3 - - - - - -
NATE: = RAZERA Debt instruments at fair value through
Ep2AlaaERTA other comprehensive income 40,301,303 - - 40,301,303 41165 40,260,138
—REEA - Stage 1 40,301,303 - - 40,301,303 41,165 40,260,138
-2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[BE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
IAE AR ATBRA B TR Debt instruments at amortised cost 24,561,302 - - 24,561,302 30,116 24,531,186
—B&EH - Stage 1 24,561,302 - - 24,561,302 30,116 24,531,186
—ek2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—BE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
XFER Advances to customers 141,659,998 1,255,174 1,398,836 144,314,008 1,370,947 142,943,061
BB - Stage 1 131,413,203 - - 131,413,203 469,184 130,944,019
27 ~Stage 2 10246795 1,255,174 - 11,501,969 3B4154 11,147,815
—fEEx3 - Stage 3 - - 1,398,836 1,398,836 547,609 851,227
B5ER Trade bills 4,253,850 - - 4,253,850 7,347 4,246,503
—RE - Stage 1 4,253,340 - - 4,253,340 7,347 4,245,993
—fEEx2 - Stage 2 510 - - 510 - 510
—[EE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
JERT A8 REMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 5,222,515 4,408 69,575 5,296,498 25,558 5,270,940
BB - Stage 1 5,210,645 - - 5,210,645 11,298 5,199,357
[0 - Stage 2 11,870 4,408 - 16,278 489 15,779
—B&ER3 - Stage 3 - - 69,575 69,575 13,771 55,804
ERAERBBER Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 76,041,645 40,878 46,227 76,128,750 120,604 76,008,146
~ BB - Stage 1 73,678,288 - - 73,678,288 114,783 73,563,505
) - Stage 2 2,363,357 40,878 - 2,404,235 5,821 2,398,414
83 ~Stage 3 - - 46,227 46,227 - 46,227
&t Total 308,588,657 1,300,460 1,514,638 311,403,755 1,604,165 309,799,590

FEHEUMEERE - EFRARFEFE
BEZFHH AR MEERENEBTAEZHA
ELRENREEGFETESHENE

HEEEE -

For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 Kt ABEZEFm A RAMEEIEFA 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
ZREEERRE® or other credit enhancements (Continued)
(1) ZEEREMEHLSEBEE @ (1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
202012 H31H At 31 December 2020
RHE/ 4508
Gross carrying/notional amount
BHEE
BREE  RBEUT BiREE
i Special  Sub-standard =) ECL et
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RANBHRRER Balance and placements with banks 20,626,699 = - 20,626,699 8482 20,618,217
—REB - Stage 1 20,626,699 - - 20,626,699 8,482 20,618,217
— g2 - Stage 2 - = = = = =
—[EE3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
WATEEEEZEHA Debt instruments at fair value through
AEEERERIA other comprehensive income 40,043,117 - - 40,043,117 33,778 40,009,339
R - Stage 1 40,043,117 - - 40,043,117 33,778 40,009,339
— e - Stage 2 - = = = = =
—[BE3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
DS AR ER LA Debt instruments at amortised cost 22,858,465 - - 22,858,465 24022 22,834,243
BB - Stage 1 22,858,465 - - 22,858,465 24,222 22,834,243
—f&ER2 - Stage 2 - = = = = =
—B&3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
RFER Advances to customers 135,116,751 888,020 1573803 137,578,574 1,251,164 136,327,410
—fEEx1 - Stage 1 125,011,296 - - 125,011,296 486,431 124,524,865
) - Stage 2 10,105,455 888,020 - 10,993,475 208,225 10,785,250
—FREx3 - Stage 3 - - 1,573,803 1,573,803 556,508 1,017,295
L2525 Trade bills 3,790,517 - 607 3,791,124 8,859 3,782,265
—FEE - Stage 1 3,782,143 - - 3,782,143 8,848 3,773,295
—H&e2 - Stage 2 8,374 - - 8,374 11 8,363
—[BE3 - Stage 3 - - 607 607 - 607
JEstFI S RE AR Accrued interest and other accounts 6,677,503 3,710 64,334 6,745,547 22,683 6,702,864
— B - Stage 1 6,666,069 - - 6,666,069 10,287 6,655,782
oY) - Stage 2 11434 3710 - 15,144 547 14,507
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - 64,334 64,334 11,849 52,485
ERAERBBER Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 78,455,814 33,015 291 78,489,120 155,969 78,333,151
— B - Stage 1 75,855,320 - - 75,855,320 146,243 75,709,077
—[&ER2 - Stage 2 2,600,494 33,015 - 2,633,509 9,726 2,623,783
—~I£63 - Stage 3 - - 291 291 - 291
Bt Total 307,568,866 924,745 1,639,035 310,132,646 1,505,157 308,627,489
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3. HKERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

325 Kt ABEZEFm A RAMEEIEFA 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
ZREEERREE® or other credit enhancements (Continued)
(1) ZAEREFGEHESREE@E (1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

EEFEABEMT ¢

D3

T
E

F1EMNER B2 ERRARHIEI A
ZFEIORA °

F2ARIERIRE | —RBESERAEBE S
fE31E90K °

E3MAREHAT | —RESEFEIA
FHBBIOK °

7S

F1ERIIER IR 2 A EBARERTRF
MR ZENEFEIE - KREFARKDH
ENEEE2HMNENSMERAE 26
N TERE °

SR SR |8 E R EEAIE KT
MEFH 2 B104% - KREBRALERRRE
5 RidTeEBHIRERZE R - BIFTaE
SAREERBEERK -

FEIERIREHAT ISR EEAFFER
ARMEFZRZFENEFIR - KREHA
CRERBERRNEZRE T AER
L CEIERN SERER SN ot
BERZER  XNHHFZERERBRBEKR
T RBREFER AR -

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with
31-90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are
current in meeting commitments and for which the full repayment
of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest; or
loans that are considered uncollectible after all collection options
have been exhausted.
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3.2

3.2.5

B 5 J e 5 2B (o)

FERR @

ARt AFFE 21 Hin AR 15 B 18 F AT
ZREEERREE®

(1) ZEEREFENESHMEE @)

HE

F1EMER |22 EEN&SBB-%
A E2 X SEFH) R o

2RI FRIFE |82 NAMEERT R AB+
EB-ZRXHHFHEAL o

SE3ER RS AT | B2 ARMEETRR
CCC+H AT 2R ZHFRE

(2) BAERENSREE

3.2

325

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
Treasury
Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with

internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

IR &
Gross carrying amount
2021 2020
RHIEEEREMEE Trading assets
—EKES — Debt securities 4,425,384 5,080,047
—fPTETE — Derivatives 360,405 945,983
$ROTAET A Hedging derivatives 260,651 189,831
AATER 2 B EZ B A B Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 14,119 =
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3. UHBERREREm)
3.2 EERME@m)

3.25 K AFFEZ B Fme Bz BIESF A
CREEEREEE @)

AEBZEERRAIRE THIFTMEE —F 71 -

. HEFZEADEZIRBEER A HRERZ
BE

. EEREZEFERRBRBEEER N2
RUEEER0.97%(20204F  1.14%) : &

. B8 5 N E M E 518 & 1 73% (20204 :
74%) L EA-EERF

326 EFREBH

BEFERRBREMMNT -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed
with reference to the following:

o Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

o Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
constituted 0.97% (2020: 1.14%) of the total loans and advances
to customers; and

. 73% (2020: 74%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.

3.2.6 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2021 2020
BN R B Gross loans and advances 144,314,008 137,578,574
Bk - mEEEEE Less: total impairment allowances (1,370,947)  (1,251,164)
FEE Net 142,943,061 136,327,410
EEREZEREBR Credit-impaired loans and advances 1,398,836 1,573,803
Bk « FEERS REERE Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (547,609) (556,508)
HER Net 851,227 1,017,295
REHERRATE" Fair value of collateral held* 758,124 787,030
EEREEFERBRERFER Credit-impaired loans and advances as
REBAFREE DL a % of total loans and advances to
customers 0.97% 1.14%
* KGR AFEDREERGAMERERREESL @ Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of

% MEPREEETE °

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3. HMEBEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32 FEARM® 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

326 B RB5 @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

TRARIEE BN RAR 2 REEED BIME The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
ERRBR AN © percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2021 2020
WEEE AR
HEMREREE e
ADL ANt
EXREEX Impairment EFNEF Impairment
B2tk allowance as B2kt allowance as
Loans and a % of Loans and a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % %
487 Class
1=IEH 1 —pass 98.1 0.5 98.2 0.4
o — 4B EsT 2 — special mention 0.9 8.2 0.7 11.4
3— IRARSIAT 3 — sub-standard or below 1.0 39.2 1.1 35.4
100.0 1.0 100.0 0.9
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3. UHBERREREm) 3.
3.2 =ERR@

326 EFREB &)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(F) BERBUMBHREENFIRFEFER (a)
BEZEFERRBR

Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
impaired under HKFRS 9

EEREER R B B RSB E
R HEER R D FERERIDITAT

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

118

BEERR
Rk RE%ER REE AVE
Gross  Impairment Carrying  Fair value of
202112A31H At 31 December 2021 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
TEAER : Loans to individual:
—fEAKR — Credit cards 17,250 14,749 2,501 -
—RIBEN — Mortgages 204,192 37,027 167,165 181,543
—HAh — Others 367,247 167,404 199,843 58,139
EER Loans to corporate entities:
—BHE — Term loans 254,374 116,752 137,622 158,756
—RBER — Mortgages 111,170 10,032 101,138 105,930
—BHRE — Trade finance 267,908 142,939 124,969 93,559
—HAh — Others 176,695 58,706 117,989 160,197
EERBEL EFREE Total credit-impaired loans 1,398,836 547,609 851,227 758,124
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3.
3.2

MR EE @

EERKE @)

326 EFREB &)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(F) BRERMBRELENFSRESER

(a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-

BE2EFERRERE) impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
HEEAD
[B Bz 42 58 B L RHEE ~EE
Gross Impairment Carrying  Fair value of
2020 12H31H At 31 December 2020 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
AR : Loans to individual:
—f=AFR — Credit cards 12,645 10,447 2,198 =
—ZIBER — Mortgages 186,507 34,054 152,453 166,302
—HAh — Others 415,559 185,205 230,354 88,549
BEER : Loans to corporate entities:
—BHER — Term loans 218,901 36,303 182,598 138,547
—RIBEN — Mortgages 112,384 9,142 103,242 91,163
—BomE — Trade finance 349,314 163,020 186,294 108,633
—Hfth — Others 278,493 118,337 160,156 193,836
EEREZERESE Total credit-impaired loans 1,573,803 556,508 1,017,295 787,030
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120

3. H¥ERREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EERME@m) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.26 B RB @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(2) BH3EANELZERRER (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(i) BEKEEEL R (i)  Gross amount of overdue loans
2021 2020
AR ER BHARER
BXAE B4Rz
Gross Gross
amount L4858 amount of {h4BRE
of overdue Bk overdue Bt
loans % of total loans % of total
REERFEREE Gross advances to customers
wEf which have been overdue for:
—3{E AN E=6fE A — six months or less but over
three months 103,435 0.07 240,472 0.17
—6E A EE15 — one year or less but over
six months 126,868 0.09 136,656 0.10
—1F L E — over one year 583,423 0.40 525,674 0.38
813,726 0.56 902,802 0.65
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3. HKEREREm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 EMRBH @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(2) BHA3EA U L2 ERRER(E) (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) BEKEEEARILZHE

(Continued)

(i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances

BRI an (B against overdue loans and advances
ERRBR HHRm
REBEHEE BHE BRm  EFRmRAREE P& ER3
Outstanding Current  Fr&EIHG EETG WEEE
amount of market Portion Portion not Stage 3
loans and value of covered by covered by impairment
2021%12H31H At 31 December 2021 advances collateral collateral collateral allowances
BmEREEEF  Overdue loans and
BERRER advances to customers 813,726 888,796 456,744 356,982 350,828
G USE5 N Eiwil
REBRHF RME HHm  ERmRE F&ER3
Outstanding Current  FTE&IEER D AAEER S SEE
amount of market Portion Portion not Stage 3
loans and value of  coveredby coveredby impairment
2020 12A31H At 31 December 2020 advances collateral collateral collateral  allowances
BHIR(EEEFE  Overdue loans and
=GN advances to customers 902,802 930,016 593,229 309,573 302,651

FAZERREZ/ERFER - 1218
W3 AR A B E B AN R o

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.
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3. HMBEREE@®
32 FERM@
326 B RBH )
(R) REAER(EHNKREFEELEZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(c) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HEM) overdue advances shown above

L4858 4858
BaotE Btk
2021 % of total 2020 % of total
XFEEX Advances to customers 350,761 0.24 374,963 0.27

F&ERSIRE Stage 3 impairment allowances 141,673 141,869

327 ESEE 3.2.7 Trade bills

2021 2020

ZHEW - wH
—6{E AN EE1F
—1FLE

PEERBBIEEM

BRESERREREAER -

3.2.8 YW EIH #im
RERFA 2 WEEHR T

Trade bills which have been overdue for:
— one year or less but over six months - -
— over one year - 607

= 607

Stage 3 impairment allowances - -

The overdue trade bills are fully secured.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2021 2020

BEHE Nature of assets
BRI ES Repossessed properties 208,090 304,514
Hth Others 1,090 24,923
209,180 329,437

WEHERRZATERAERBE - BRKBERMN
IEE B Z fERAREERET ©

& 5t 0] & 38 42 (8 /4 64,984,000 7 7T (2020 £ :
63,158,000/ 7T ) Z 7& AR B A /9 75 T ELAtb 3
Th A& EAR IR AR B it AR 9846 2 A S 1T A
PR ERE R B - KA RBZIRNAHF292 [ E
MEE B THFEBLEZEE - HEZERE
WAL TR

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the borrowers
concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$64,984,000 (2020: HK$63,158,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note
29. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FEERR@m) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 EEER 3.2.9 Loss allowance
TREHIRE BB RE ERIFTR AR EILEER The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL
ZEFPERNBR - BEGRE MY ER 2 FEH allowances for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments
EEBEEBHEE and financial guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.
28 Retail
P& ER1 P ER2 P& ER3 =
BHEE BEHEE BHEE BHEE
R ER%ERE BEESE EEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2021%F181H At 1 January 2021 401,256 40,967 229,706 671,929
&5 - Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 8,357 (7,664) (693) —
BR B Transfer to Stage 2 (3,776) 3,776 - -
B ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (17,919) (14,019) 31,938 -
MM REY LEESHMEL Y Effect of stage transfers and
% changes in allowance (2,482) 1,823 262,336 261,677
HRFRE « BASHEERER New financial assets originated,
ZEREE purchased or derecognised during
the period 43,011 8,046 (964) 50,093
BHSRE ENIBKRE/EH  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
RBRAE /AN B2 looking assumptions (71,549) 1,478 (15,510) (85,581)
SRIE( Model enhancements 8,406 1,437 (712) 9,131
RRIRBAIR Unwind of discount 502 371 30 903
s Write-offs - - (286,951) (286,951)
HNGE J o fth Foreign exchange and other movements 19 15 - 34
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 365,825 36,230 219,180 621,235
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 382,703 30,024 154,044 566,771
8% - Transfers:
H R Transfer to Stage 1 5,543 (5,543) - -
BB EREE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (6,470) 6,878 (408) -
BY B Transfer to Stage 3 (38,929) (15,105) 54,034 =
R REY LEEZBMEL 2 Effect of stage transfers and changes in
57 allowance (3,864) 7,563 356,833 360,532
HIRETRE - AR New financial assets originated,
ZEREE purchased or derecognised during
the period 47,104 8,392 (5,173) 50,323
BRI BINBKRE /4  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
EBRANE /AIENBRR 2 looking assumptions 15,085 8,723 258 24,066
HRERBRER Unwind of discount 33 35 9 77
HisH Write-offs - - (329,891) (329,891)
HNE J& o fth 2 Foreign exchange and other movements 51 = = 51
20205 12A31H At 31 December 2020 401,256 40,967 229,706 671,929
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3. HMERBREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EERMR@m) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 EEER @) 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
i1 3 Corporate
P EX1 P& 22 PEFER3 =
BHEE BHEE HHEE BHEE
BB ER%ERE BRERS EEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 231,418 176,984 326,802 735,204
875 - Transfers:
BB R Transfer to Stage 1 12,518 (12,518) - -
BB EREE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (10,761) 10,761 - -
B ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (384) (3,997) 4,381 -
mIEREY LEEESMEL T2 Effect of stage transfers and
changes in allowance (7,637) 16,300 34,781 43,444
HRIRAE « BATHGERER New financial assets originated,
ZEREE purchased or derecognised during
the period 71,228 (3,082) (35,501) 32,645
ENHAE /BIBRE /E4E%K Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
AIE /Bl RE 2 & looking assumptions (41,787) 159,350 74,678 192,241
REEL Model enhancements (37,011) (22,085) = (59,096)
FEBRENIR Unwind of discount 237 1,509 51 1,797
HisH Write-offs - - (77,503) (77,503)
HNE J& o fth 2 Foreign exchange and other movements 321 523 740 1,584
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 218,142 323,745 328,429 870,316
2020417318 At 1 January 2020 232,019 131,285 227,153 590,457
B Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 8,410 (8,410) - -
BB A2 Transfer to Stage 2 (25,941) 25,941 - -
BB B3 Transfer to Stage 3 (796) (13,860) 14,656 -
AP EY EERTEL 2 ¥ 2 Effect of stage transfers and
changes in allowance (8,971) 35,881 55,545 87,455
HRIRE - BARBERERZ New financial assets originated,
tREBE purchased or derecognised during the
period 17,475 (11,432) (32,156) (26,113)
ENHAK /IEKR /A% Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
RE/RIEENRRZED looking assumptions 3,047 15,825 192,125 210,997
RFRBRER Unwind of discount 127 1,313 50 1,490
Higs Write-offs - - (130,271) (130,271)
AN % L fh 2 Foreign exchange and other movements 1,048 441 (300) 1,189
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 231,418 176,984 326,802 735,204
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.2 EERMEm@m)
329 EBEEE @

TRERZEEVHRE LR BN A RBIREER
ZEBAEREFERKBR L REEAERE
BAEERABRERNBRSRR) LK -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross exposure
(in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and advances
to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and financial

2E Retail
PR ER1 P Er2 P ER3 &t
Rk EfaiEzE Rk B4
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure

2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021 108,823,021 460,323 614,711 109,898,055
[ Transfers:
B ERER Transfer to Stage 1 77,250 (70,801) (6,449) -
HEY B Transfer to Stage 2 (261,588) 261,588 - -
BB RS Transfer to Stage 3 (328,740) (84,431) 413,171 -
MiatER - RIERR  #—F Origination, derecognition, further lending

ERRER and repayment 3,437,537 (117,918) (145,794) 3,173,825
HisH Write-offs - - (286,951) (286,951)
HNE R E At Foreign exchange and other movements 12,413 81 - 12,494
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 111,759,893 448,842 588,688 112,797,423
2020F1H1H At 1 January 2020 109,345,044 558,641 346,533 110,250,218
8% - Transfers:
E R Transfer to Stage 1 93,558 (90,182) (3,376) =
B ERRED Transfer to Stage 2 (306,510) 310,039 (3,529) -
B 2R Transfer to Stage 3 (352,725) (255,651) 608,376 -
PIatER - RILHER - E—F Origination, derecognition, further lending

ERRER and repayment (9,962) (62,524) (3,402) (75,888)
s Write-offs - - (329,891) (329,891)
HNE R B At BB Foreign exchange and other movements 53,616 - - 53,616
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 108,823,021 460,323 614,711 109,898,055
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3. HMERBREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 EEEHE @) 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
bTaf 3 Corporate
P Ex1 P& ER2 PEER3 &t
Rk Rk et o] et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
2021%F1A1H At 1 January 2021 92,043,595 13,166,661 959,383 106,169,639
875 - Transfers:
BY SRR Transfer to Stage 1 1,619,588 (1,619,588) - -
BB EREE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (4,317,741) 4,319,007 (1,266) -
B RS Transfer to Stage 3 (176,151) (50,799) 226,950 -
MIaHER - RILHER - E—F Origination, derecognition, further lending
ERRER and repayment 4,080,324 (2,369,406) (253,623) 1,457,295
HisH Write-offs - - (77,503) (77,503)
HNEE R E i & Foreign exchange and other movements 81,983 11,487 2,434 95,904
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 93,331,598 13,457,362 856,375 107,645,335
202017318 At 1 January 2020 98,229,248 9,000,565 713,624 107,943,437
A Transfers:
H R Transfer to Stage 1 1,503,040 (1,503,040) - -
BB A2 Transfer to Stage 2 (6,360,069) 6,360,069 - =
BB RS Transfer to Stage 3 (175,608) (106,228) 281,836 -
MIaHER  RILER - E—7 Origination, derecognition, further lending
ERRER and repayment (1,313,794) (590,064) 97,774 (1,806,084)
HhsH Write-offs - - (130,271) (130,271)
HNGE J& o fth Foreign exchange and other movements 160,778 5,359 (3,580) 162,557
2020F12A31H At 31 December 2020 92,043,595 13,166,661 959,383 106,169,639
BB 4E BIER S REIRITH &R K A AR 2N Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
PIBRSK AN FETE A EEE T AEMEEIRE and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
WEBLIA  DRERR1IRRFRANEERE comprehensive income, are classified in Stage 1 with no stage
#% o transition during the year.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.10 (ZFEE 5 3.2.10 Debt securities
TEFTRR20214 £ 2020FE12 531 B IR L AR ks The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
A Y A et agency designation at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
DA¥E
FTERHSE
sTAHAMEE
W EREE DU ERE A
Financial SIBRAY
assets at SEMEE
BIEEE fair value Financial
FABEE  through other assets at
Trading comprehensive amortised a5t
2021%F12H31H At 31 December 2021 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 1,391,800 284,131 1,675,931
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 4,425,384 11,184,459 3,619,580 19,229,423
A-EA+ A- to A+ - 17,985,700 12,256,623 30,242,323
BREEIERA- Rated but lower than A- - 7,688,494 4,689,472 12,377,966
RNERR Unrated - 3,093,701 3,711,496 6,805,197
A&t Total 4,425,384 41,344,154 24,561,302 70,330,840
LARAFE
FrEAHZ
FTAEMEE
War e mEE LAZE BRAK AN
Financial HIBR Y
assets at TRIEE
BIEEE fair value Financial
Ra&E through other assets at
Trading  comprehensive amortised BEr
2020F12 H31H At 31 December 2020 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 2,126,332 255,484 2,381,816
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 5,080,047 12,313,514 3,177,080 20,570,641
A-ZA+ A- to A+ - 17,313,130 11,162,453 28,475,583
BRIRIBERA- Rated but lower than A- - 6,537,625 4,002,501 10,540,126
RNAEFR Unrated - 3,424,642 4,260,947 7,685,589
= Total 5,080,047 41,715,243 22,858,465 69,653,755
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3.

B 5 L e i 2B (o)

3.2 EERME@m)
W MWEEEEREZEHEES RERER

=E
(F) BE

BEFERZBELITIREE Z RARER
BZERAPRESIE - —RME - EER
RPERTT BN EBERATR Z EEE - B
AR o

TRAFFPERERREEHDN -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
risk exposure

(@) Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is
different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

20214 20204F
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

REEREEE Gross advances to customers
—&b — Hong Kong 121,821,903 115,234,954
== — China 7,615,412 7,630,058
—RF — Macau 13,778,604 13,687,338
—HAh — Others 1,098,089 1,026,224

144,314,008 137,578,574
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.2 EERMEm@m)

2N M EEEERGEZ EMEEZEBRES

BE @)
(Z) 17%

EPEHABHE —RITRREN G

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit

risk exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2021 2020
EBBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEcRt Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE — Property development 5,467,229 5,611,830
—MERE — Property investment 19,253,002 17,221,674
—&RbE — Financial concerns 4,661,129 5,756,814
—RELLR — Stockbrokers 1,642,984 1,733,867
—HEETEZ — Wholesale and retail trade 5,401,435 6,004,660
—BUER — Manufacturing 1,987,035 1,790,941
— B BB — Transport and transport equipment 2,269,160 2,512,559
— 2R — Recreational activities 59,895 96,223
— BEHE — Information technology 59,058 51,827
— HAth — Others 6,970,986 6,003,396
47,771,913 46,783,791
fEA Individuals
—-BEIEEEHEEE] — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[RRAZEEREE R Home Ownership Scheme,
[EEBHESEFEXK Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 529,218 558,428
—BEEMEEDEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 33,473,466 31,260,619
—ERARER — Credit card advances 3,670,096 3,610,141
—Hfh — Others 13,105,677 13,079,682
50,778,457 48,508,870
EREBFEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 98,550,370 95,292,661
B H5E (1)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,123,088 8,115,481
ERBIMERMER(FE@2)) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 37,640,550 34,170,432
144,314,008 137,578,574
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3. UHBERREREm)
3.2 EERME@m)

W MWEEEEREZEHEES RERER
BE @)

(2) 1738

EPEHBHE —RITRR BN HE 3 (#)

(1) LERINRZBEIBERDERESERE
MRS Mo B ATEED - HOM
BONBE URERESRESZER -

THREREZESHMEER(BIERRIT
ZBINMRITHB AR FZESmE) &
{E485,128,000% 7t (2020F 12 A31 H :
260,328,000/ 7T ) 73 SBR[ £ B LASME
FAOERIET -

(2 [EFEMIMEANERIBERTEER
FREFEAIMERZEK -

3.3 WmEEMR

MG R T e ™5 LR R REBRAFE M3
HHEE RENREEABRIMSEZEBEAR -

BERXHZTERROBESE AREERE
REBERMERRERRZESREEERT
ZRENMZEZ S RRARRBENIESIAEE - &
IR FEIR AR A [ T DA 2 % i B P R B 2R U RR
E o RERBGEEETREDR  LARE -
SRR ERTSRAREE(TSRREE] 2
B -BEPRTERARNEERERESRE
MEARK - SERRBEAREEREZHR(R
B I N BR R R 1) T — (BB S A e i PR e R
Y AELBRERMEFBIHREE - AHZH - 5
B EELEEZFTRRIEZARITHERR
FRWMBRHIERSZKFEAR - HATFEREE
M BRBERRRREFESBEREE-ME
EERBREZES  RREERSRZESGRE
EeEENE -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
risk exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans (Continued)

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
totalling HK$485,128,000 (31 December 2020: HK$260,328,000)
are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from adverse movements in market rates and
prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination of
notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All
trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. The Risk
Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the GRD, as an
independent risk management and control unit, identifies, measures,
monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved limits and
initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed within an
acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and sanctioned
by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or the Board as
stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.3 ThiEEMEm@m)

RRITZHBARRPIFERITRNERA A
(MRPIFERTT]) RAFHRIT(FE) BR QA
(TRFRT(PE) DREBEE —EBERBMBER
REARRITREZ THEREZERANTER
TZMEERS - NRIT 2 AREE R EEAESR
RERPIERRITRAFMBIT(PEDHELEZ
mISRAKR - HRC B G R REE EER RS
R 273 BLER B IR — 2]

AEEREHEEERMRITRZTISERER T
Az B BRI ER R A2 o

331 FEEERZ S EE

AEBEZEERA - HINE - BFES Bl
EARMTETAZEERRPHFETSAR -

(F) mSERTERE®

ERTERRER  AREEAZEXRE
BIRAZ A EMSER MEH T E AR
NREZEBBEHEAR - TERANFTER
EEMISER 2T IARMINT o

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies and
within the market risk management framework set by the Bank. The
RMCD of the Bank oversees the market risk arising from the treasury
operations of BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put
in place are commensurate with their businesses and consistent with
the Group standards.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.
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3.3

3.3.1

B L e 2R ()

™% ERE ()
REEERZ TS5 EE %
() WEEBERE@E

(i)  TEEEEE

AEEEATSRBEES  E—
BASRT AEERIIEEEARES
ATISTAELTEHEERAK - HE
PAAEERNEESEKFRIEBRLZ
BAHEE - B A E H E A
o AEEZBEKFAE99% ° At
FERERSTIER - BRIBAA
LSRR EE 2 AETEAKN o Bt
BRANEZ AN T e o B T A 3
EERECRBEIL ST 218K -

il

15 A b BUEE B R R R B 5 2 4
(RMAEBME A —R)EEAERE
B - MBRRBETMKER A ZHE
e mERAREEBEE—EEF
Bz HEBERNRE - £H8—EE
SERETARTE -

AEEFEZDBEAARER TS
RBESR  HEEITSRERBE
BELZ AR - P BRI A R =
FTUBAERAREEEABER -

AMiSRRE(E A4S E 2 B ER
ERHBEAN—EER EEFFRE
BEZZESHMBEERERET
RIMSRBREEREE RDEES XS
2 WELSEEER - AREER
EmIEREREETSRREEZ
B R AT S LT R o AE
ERFEANEHR S EB 2 TSRBREK
EHH{E 41,379,000/ 7T (20204 :
2,389,000/57T ) °

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board and its delegated committees at least annually
for all trading positions and allocated to business units.
Actual exposures, including VaR, are monitored against
limits on a daily basis by RMCD. Average daily VaR for
the Group for all trading activities during the year was
HK$1,379,000 (2020: HK$2,389,000).
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3.3

3.3.1

B b B 2R () 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
5 B () 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
FREEERZ TG #) 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
() miEZRSTER @) (a) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) B8 (i) Stress tests

BRI R 5 T AT R HIR 2
BEBERZOE AREEREE
FAETHEDAHER  BREERE
DR - TTERES R AR T HETT
TRENEE  RMEAREBAAR - 77
AR A RTER LB N E IR R E R
RASETRE - thHh - TRatEFR
EEBERZRAE 2B BRAFNGEE
BHEEEEKTFRERE TSN
B IR IR E B BB IRAHRE © 1t
Sh - ETHEBENRBIER—HEXK
TREUFEARERBERAEZAR
RBIKFRIFTRE A T 5 B BRI

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress testing,
where stress movements are applied to each risk category;
and scenario stress testing, which includes applying
possible stress events to specific positions or portfolios.
Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading portfolio
is measured to evaluate the expected size of extreme
trading loss beyond a specified confidence level and over a
longer holding period. In addition, reverse-stress tests are
performed as a useful tool to evaluate the maximum size of
market stress that the Group can endure before hitting the
prescribed tolerable levels.

B o
BHARzERAEFEREREZ The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
ZEgcHEH - and its delegated committees regularly.
(2) mERBEHRE (b) VaR summary of trading portfolio
EZ2021F12831HL12/8A EZ22020F 12431 H (L1218 A
12 months to 31 December 2021 12 months to 31 December 2020
£ BE RIE 15 &= 54
Average High Low  Average High Low
4INGEE 2\ fix Foreign exchange risk 966 3,362 273 1,925 3,559 291
ESEN S Interest rate risk 834 4,124 211 1,128 3,544 494
EaiET A All risks 1,379 4,317 413 2,389 3,916 574
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3. HKEREREm 3.
3.3 TiZEM @ 3.3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Market risk arising from the banking book

Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
ositions in debt and equity securities.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities. In
addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including reverse-
stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest rates on the
Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and credit spreads
on the Group’s investment securities are regularly performed
to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s banking
book portfolios and manage it against the established control
measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries in
Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by the
Treasury and Global Markets Division of the Group on a
daily basis within established foreign exchange limits.
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.3 ThiEEMEm@m)
332 FERITHRZ H5EE &)

(Z) ¥FERERARESZBBED ()

(i)  SMNERE &)

FREIINEECREETEE R
ZMR - BEEBBEEHINERL
AL SR S5 DUBUE S NE LR ©

72021412 318 - f#fiH b &
HRFBTEmMATE ARKEE100
EES  AFE 2T & Rz
75 3% 1139,000,0007% 7T (20204F : #
hN41,000,000%7T) @ £ EZHBRIR
BARBEER ZINERSARIRE
ARG B2 INERE ©

MR - W BT A H b & BRI &
i 75 7T ¥ A R A E 10016 £ 2 -
NEE 2 B R IE s I R 2 iR
439,000,000 /% 7T (2020 & : & &
41,000,000/57T ) °

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa, is
normally matched using foreign exchange forward contracts
to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$39 million higher (2020: HK$41 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$39 million lower (2020: HK$41 million lower).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). From an earnings
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the net income
arising from future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
From an economic value perspective, interest rate risk is
the risk that the economic value of a financial instrument
will undergo adverse impact because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from
both perspectives in the banking book. As such, the
interest margins or net interest income and the economic
value of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of
such changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.3 ThiEEMEm@m)
332 FERITHRZ H5EE &)

(Z) ¥FERERARESZBBED ()

(i) FEEE &)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)
(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up shock
under the HKMA'’s standard parallel up scenario, with
other variables held constant, the impact on earnings over
the next 12 months and the impact on economic value of
equity would have been HK$78 million higher and HK$727
million lower respectively. (2020: HK$44 million higher and
HK$435 million lower respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
broadly on the same basis for both 2020 and 2021.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s
investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed
to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the value of such
investments could change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might
affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. HMERBREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 TiEEE@m) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 JMEREEE 3.3.3 Currency risk

TR EBREREE D RIABEEETIE 2 The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and

CMEERAE  UREEABERINGEERF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit

BRIEEREZERHE - commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by
currency.

BT E AR AR% Het &t
2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021 HKD UsD MOP RMB Others Total
EE Assets
R RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 5,628,784 1,254,288 633,213 2,395,923 2,095,545 12,007,753
EFTE120HANZIH Placements with banks maturing between

B one and twelve months 2,875,840 233,899 2,117 888,863 531,144 4,531,863
RHEEERRNES Trading securities 4,425,384 - - - - 4425384
R T{EE A AEE Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNEHEE profit or loss - - - 14,119 - 14,119
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 50,869 474,485 - 11,457 84,245 621,056
ZREEHREMIER Advances and other accounts 111,991,639 19,419,500 8,268,922 10,976,296 1,804,147 152,460,504
WATEE BEZEEA Financial assets at fair value through

HtzAREnEeREE other comprehensive income 9,166,063 31,560,955 36,986 140,751 528,981 41,433,736
IERR AT RS RAE Financial assets at amortised cost 2,149,266 19,494,130 970,094 1,729,294 188,402 24,531,186
SREEAT Total financial assets 136,287,845 72,437,257 9,911,332 16,156,703 5,232,464 240,025,601
af Liabilities
FAER Deposits from banks 64,147 1,377,614 - 259,937 1,499 1,703,197
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 50,424 1,298,004 - 6,628 70,309 1,425,365
BEEEREMER Trading liabilities 1,511,927 - - - - 1,511,927
XPEA Deposits from customers 126,669,518 38,997,385 9,550,077 14,048,506 7,756,955 197,022,441
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 200,057 6,389,660 - - - 6,589,717
kEER Subordinated notes - 4,128,446 - - - 4,128,446
HinfR B kB Other accounts and accruals 4,497,371 1,344,551 142,879 508,395 43,390 6,536,586
SRERAH Total financial liabilities 132,993,444 53,535,660 9,692,956 14,823,466 7,872,153 218,917,679
BEBERABRTE Net on-balance sheet positions 3,294,401 18,901,597 218,376 1,333,237 (2,639,689) 21,107,922
EERBRIMGRERFE Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 17,201,973 (19,767,365) - (240,501) 2,630,250 (175,643)

EERE Credit commitments 62,398,672 7,579,705 2,294,001 3,749,471 106,901 76,128,750
* BEAGBRINFEEEFEEFTEANREBARE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
EYNESLHRGL T INESRITE T MG B4 o amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3. MERREERE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 WHRER@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 SMEEEE @) 3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)
B e pidiils ARE Eth =

2020124318 At 31 December 2020 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
B Assets
B e RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 6,113,630 4,154,611 488812 1,298,628 3,206,771 15,262,452
EFTE120HANZIH Placements with banks maturing

B between one and twelve months 1,421,182 77,516 = 3,689,143 167,924 5,355,765
FEEBRENES Trading securities 5,080,047 = = = = 5,080,047
WATEE A AES Financial assets at fair value through

SABRNEHEE profit or loss = = = = = =
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 75,404 1,031,728 = 2,320 26,362 1,135,814
RBEEAREMER Advances and other accounts 105408413 20,034,022 8,043598 10,738,269 2,608,237 146,832,539
WATESrZRAZEEA Financial assets at fair value through

Ht 2 AN REE other comprehensive income 10,027,598 31,055,903 36,821 65,624 629977 41,815,923
NBRR AT REE Financial assets at amortised cost 1,722,024 18,090,666 1,337,977 1,484,883 198,693 22,834,243
SREELH Total financial assets 129,848298 74,444 446 9907208 17,278,867 6,837,964 238,316,783
af Liabiliies
FAER Deposits from banks 125,921 1,928,551 = 1,365,645 80,325 3,500,442
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments 80,530 3,101,754 - 1,230 7,674 3,191,188
FEEERENAR Trading liabilities 1,570,675 - - - - 1,570,675
RPER Deposits from customers 123,784,023 36,677,404 9,759,059 13,484,746 7,536,449 191,241,681
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,734,650 6,391,152 = = = 8,125,802
BERE Subordinated notes - 3,828,458 - - - 3,828,458
Hifk A kAR Other accounts and accruals 4,572,871 1,788,976 152,227 468,225 53,489 7,035,788
SRAEL: Total financial liabilities 131,868,670 53,716,295 9911286 15,319,846 7677937 218,494,034
BEBRRARETE Net on-balance sheet positions (2,020,372) 20,728,151 (4,078) 1,959,021 (839,973) 19,822,749
BEBRRIMSRABRE" Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 21,124,262 (21,136,477) - (947,605) 757,213 (202,607)
EERE Credit commitments 66,383,165 8,126,556 1,988,267 1,824,825 166,307 78,489,120
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 ThiZEMkEm@®) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 FIFEmEE 3.3.4 Interest rate risk
TRESNARER 2 FERE - RNBEREER R The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
FH:HEECeREERARE  WKREEEX Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
B ZE R (AREERE)HEE carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or
maturity dates.
3EALL
38R BE 10 E
HHUT Over 256 5EN L THE
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest &i
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total
EE Assets
Be RERITNER Cash and balances with banks 9,375,410 630,420 - - 2,001,923 12,007,753
R Z1208 A REIH Placements with banks maturing
ols between one and twelve months 1768274 2,763,589 - - - 4,531,863
HEEERBNES Trading securities 2,248,385 2,164,714 12,285 - - 4,425,384
WRT{E S AHE Financial assets at fair value through
STABRNEHEE profit or loss - - - - 14,119 14,119
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 621,056 621,056
REERREMEE Advances and other accounts 131,333,139 10,130,982 5,365,482 227,537 5,403,364 152,460,504
NATE: 2 REZEA Financial assets at fair value through
H2ENENEREE other comprehensive income 8,376,715 7,191,496 17,578,647 8,197,295 89,583 41,433,736
BRSNS REE Financial assets at amortised cost 4,682,704 2,067,487 11,277,809 6,498,456 4730 24,531,186
SHEEST Total financial assets 157,784,627 24,948,688 34,234,223 14,923,288 8,134,775 240,025,601
af Liabilities
iGGLE Deposits from banks 1,695,507 - - - 7,690 1,703,197
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,425,365 1,425,365
BEEEREMER Trading liabilities 1,511,927 - - - - 1,511,927
KPR Deposits from customers 169,436,436 9,825,161 1,081,214 - 16,679,630 197,022,441
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,737,343 4,468,052 384,322 - - 6,589,717
{&(BER Subordinated notes - - 4,128,046 - - 4128446
HifR A KR Other accounts and accruals 346,460 96,554 323,061 158,491 5,612,020 6,536,586
SREEA Total financial liabilities 174,727,673 14,389,767 5,917,043 158,491 23,724,705 218,917,679
FEHBERSH (REHE) Total interest sensitivity gap
(unadjusted)* (16,943,046) 10,558,921 28,317,180 14,764,797
ABfETEEHNzHE Effect of interest rate derivative
contracts 28,679,285 216443 (14,790621)  (14,105,107)
FESBEE S (SHE) Total interest sensitivity gap
(adjusted)* 11,736,239 10,775,364 13,526,559 659,690
* REHAENEGEEE R EERABRANEERM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of on-
BENFRAEET - CHBMNEHEREEEAA

balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap takes
BUBEFI R R TR R KOTET A S LMK into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered into to
R mitigate interest rate risk.

140 DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HX¥RREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 WHRER@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 FIFEREE &) 3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)
3fERME
3fEA EE 15 E
FLAT Over B56E SE | TaE
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest A3

20201274318 At 31 December 2020 orless to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERTNER Cash and balances with banks 10,926,539 - - - 4335913 15,262,452
ERT1Z12( A M3 Placements with banks maturing

HER between one and twelve months 1,906,922 3,448,843 = = = 5,355,765
RIEEERANES Trading securities 2,743,279 2,306,679 30,089 - - 5,080,047
DYNTIH RS L) Financial assets at fair value through

TAERNSHEE profit or loss - - - - _ _
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,135,814 1,135,814
RIBEHREMEEE Advances and other accounts 124,819,317 9,713,920 5,616,149 268,641 6414512 146,832,539
IATFEHEAEZH A Financial assets at fair value through

2ENENEREE other comprehensive income 10,058,621 6,460,216 16,783,685 8,412,722 100,679 41,815,923
B AT S REAE Financial assets at amortised cost 2,927,287 2,307,555 9,899,995 7,694,675 4731 22834243
CREERR Total financial assets 153,381,965 24,237,213 32,329,918 16,376,038 11,991,649 238,316,783
B Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 3,492,389 = = = 8,053 3,500,442
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,191,188 3,191,188
BEEBEREMEE Trading liabilities 1,129,526 440,132 1,017 - - 1,570,675
REER Deposits from customers 162,596,075 11,521,431 2,285,593 - 14,838,582 191,241,681
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,257,530 3,766,378 101,894 = = 8,125,802
Bt Subordinated notes - 1,964,475 1,863,983 - - 3,828,458
HifE A kiER Other accounts and accruals 546,910 121,134 299,485 218,182 5,850,077 7,035,788
SRERAS Total financial liabilities 172,022430 17,813,550 4,551,972 218,182 23,887,000 218,494,034

MESEZEEAS(RERE)  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (18,640,465) 6423663 27,777,946 16,157,856

FETETAAN F 2 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 29,430,281 2,830,791 (17,501,718)  (14,759,355)

FlE R EBA (THE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 10,789,816 9,254,454 10,276,228 1,398,501
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core Funding
Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the HKMA for
reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period, the Group
had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory
minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the HKMA’s requirements set forth in
the SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity
Risk” and the SPM module LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls
for Liquidity Risk Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide the
approach adopted by the HKMA for supervising and assessing the
liquidity risk of banks while the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement
the liquidity sound principles formulated by the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk
management standards of banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and
projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the
LMR, CFR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In addition,
material changes in the liquidity risk metrics together with any
corresponding proposed mitigation actions will be reviewed by ALCO.
Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient
liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient
level of stable funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and
Global Markets Division is responsible for the day-to-day management
of funding and liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the
measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and
monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing.
The Financial Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to
liquidity risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits,
and LMR, CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding
management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion of
the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes are
issued at opportune times in order to lengthen the funding maturity and
optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank deposits are
taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the presence in the
market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow measurements
and projections for different time horizons, including the next day,
week and month, which are key periods for liquidity management. The
starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual
maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as the expected
maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical observations.
The cash flow projections also take into account the historical behaviour
of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn lending commitments and
contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit and guarantees.
The Group always maintains an adequate liquidity cushion, which is
composed of high quality marketable securities with sufficient market
depth to meet its liquidity needs at all times, even under adverse market
conditions. Eligible securities in the cushion mainly have low risk and
simple structure and can be readily sold or used as collateral to obtain
funds within a short period of time. Debt securities held are marked to
the market on daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.
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3. UBEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 REBESREK @
341 REELEREZERESF &)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

BEET In HK$ million
20215 20204
12A31H 12H31H
A28 As at As at
Internal EAR%EA| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2021 2020
B4R BEEEBHEIREENET  ZBRRET - BHEREREA 13,696 16,150
EEMBETRERZEAREER%NE EES
Tier 1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
FE2AR RIBEZER B EIMFEENBAT - ZEERRIT - REELNIFTR 7,923 6,847
PEBITRERZ E R EER20%N B ERS
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and
non-financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
EE2BAR 2L EEREBEERL A BRENREBEEAFLERN RS EE 40,725 37,732
WEER S RBBETHRER AW BEES
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or

financial institutions with at least an investment grade and those
securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets” under the
liquidity maintenance ratio
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help identify any emerging risk at an early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity stresses and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 RBESEMR@ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

342 FEHZH 3.4.2 Maturity analysis

TERAOMAEBIZREAREEBAE LA EA K The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
XFPAEER(ER) 2 AR B EER maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the
afF o reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,

the earliest callable date.

1R L
38R
FUT  MEAME
1A 3months 3k 1E0E
EIsEE HUT or less Over B5E SELE

Repayable Upto  butover  3months Over1year Over  SEHAMH At
2021%12831A At 31 December 2021 on demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
-3 Assets
BEREBRTNER Cash and balances with banks 4024247 7,983,506 - - - - - 12,007,753
ERMIZ12EAR Placements with banks maturing

B iligreb between one and twelve months - - 1768275 2,763,588 - - - 4,531,863
FEEERRRES Trading securities - 257,399 1,990,986 2,164,714 12,285 - - 4,425,384

WATEFEAEES Financial assets at fair value

TABRNEREE through profit or loss - - - - - 14,119 14,119
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments - 142,748 82,257 106,992 139,412 149,647 - 621,056
REET AR Advances and other accounts 7,660,952 25,695,748 9,391,075 20,140,063  4571,211 42,814,941 1,586,514 152,460,504
WATEFEAEES Financial assets at fair value

STARMRERE through other comprehensive

SHAE income - 2,391,285 4,635,956 7,145,813 18,373,805 8,197,295 80,582 41,433,736
DB AR A 2 B Financial assets at

EE amortised cost - 1,520,903 1,767,865 2,577,364 12,041,290 6,619,034 4730 24,531,186
BeNARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4230951 4,230,951
HRIEHEERE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 114,373 114,373
B2 Goodwill - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
BYEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 58,252 58,252
NEREHETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3802228 3,802,228
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 756,353 756,353
EERBEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 120,418 - - 120,418
BEAT Total assets 11,685,199 37,991,589 19,636,414 35498534 75,858,421 57,780,917 11,370,553 249,821,627
af Liabilities
BN Deposits from banks 57,311 721,683 924,203 - - - - 1,703,197
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments - 128,735 60,438 155,569 514,338 566,285 - 1,425,365
BIEEERRNEE Trading liabilities - 500,001 1,011,926 - - - - 1,511,927
REER Deposits from customers 91,598,396 30,853,014 62,974,603 10,285,338 1,311,090 - - 197,022,441
BEANERE Certificates of deposit issued - 100,057 1,637,286 4,468,052 384,322 - - 6,589,717
kERE Subordinated notes - - - - 4,128,446 - - 4,128,446
HEaE Lease liabilities - 12,535 24,298 96,554 323,062 158,491 - 614,940
EbiRE kR Other accounts and accruals,

TofERERR excluding lease liabilities 323,864 1,665,184 475593 1,361,644 696,974 910,750 487,637  5921,646
AERERE Current income tax liabilities - - - 160,235 - - - 160,235
EEREARE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 14,977 - - 14,977
&R Total liabilities 91,979,571 33,981,209 67,108,347 16,527,392 7,373,209 1,635,526 487,637 219,092,891
FREMEEE Net liquidity gap (80,294,372) 4,010,380 (47,471,933) 18,971,142 68485212  56,145391 10,882,916 30,728,736
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBESER@ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
34.2 FAHZHm) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1fEARE
{B3f@A
dHT  SEAME
18 3months 2E 1L E
AIHEER FLHT or less Over B5E BEN E
Repayable Upto butover ~ 3months  Over 1 year Over  HEGARE fif
2020512A31A At 31 December 2020 on demand 1 month 1 month tofyear  tobyears 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
BeRERONES Cash and balances with banks 4613947 6775944 3872561 - - - - 15262452
ERMZ2[ERR Placements with banks maturing

HBOER between one and twelve months - - 1906922 3448843 - - - 5355765
FEEERBNES Trading securities - 789,485 1,953,794 2,306,679 30,089 - - 5,080,047
DATEFEBEEE  Financial assets at fair value through

TABRNEREAE profit or loss - - - - _ _ _ _
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments = 184,892 373,386 362,305 182,301 32,430 - 1,135,814
ZEEFREMRE Advances and other accounts 7538882 23628026 12,290,148 21,061,954 39,489,609 41,806,785 1,017,135 146,832,539
IATEEAER Financial assets at fair value

AR R AN through other comprehensive

MeRAE income - 1583228 6074166 7447465 18,1976 8412722 100,679 41815923
DABBAR AR A Financial assets at

CRAE amortised cost - 868,844 867,655 2,307,684 11,090,662 7,694,667 4731 22,834,243
FERAIRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 419 4217927
HEEHEERE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 105,553 105,553
g Goodwill - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
BYAE Intangiole assets - - - - - = 58,252 58252
fTERAEEEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3866036 3,866,036
REME Investment properties - - - - - = 682,911 682,911
EEREEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 124,680 - - 124,680
BEAH Total assets 12,152,829 33830419 27,339,132 36,934,930 69,115,004 57,946,604 10,826,675 248,145,593
af Liabilties
/IR Deposits from banks 187,095  1,650234 1712913 - - - - 3500442
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments - 172,487 318,983 369,288 1,043,400 1,287,030 - 3,191,188
REEERENEE Trading liabilities - 160,498 969,028 440,132 1,017 - - 1,570,675
REHR Deposits from customers 102,378,150 69,702,283 9,600,278 6,927,338 2,633,632 - - 191,241,681
BREANERE Certficates of deposit issued - 1,007,680 464,932 6,551,296 101,894 - - 8125802
{&fBfER Subordinated notes - - - 1964475 1,863,983 - - 3828458
fEaE Lease liabilities = 15,328 38,465 121,133 299,487 218,181 - 692,594
EthiRE kB Other accounts and accruals,

TeiEREakE excluding lease liabilities 19,078 2,297,694 419,301 894,871 704,390 1,062,585 945,275 6,343,194
HEHEARE Current income tax liabilities = = = 382,648 = = = 382,648
ERLREEE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 11,598 - - 11,598
BEAH Total liabilities 102,534,523  75,006204 13523900 17,651,181 6,659,401 2,567,796 945275 218,888,280
FREEE Net liquidity gap (90,381,694)  (41,175,785) 13815232 19,283,749 62,455,608 55,378,808 9,881,400 29,257,313
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3. UHBERREREm)
3.4 REBELER @
3.4.2 ZIRIH B (@)

RBEMRFHERERZERBEEEERBAN
T?k.ﬁZﬁEﬁmﬁ% BA B HIA B 2 FER R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,

DIHIRIAT : the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity is shown as follows:
1A
Nt
{8318 A 3fEA
GUT Nk
1A 3months BE 1E0E
JHRE gUT ot less Over 5E  BENE b
Repayable Upto  hbutover ~ 3months Over1 year Over A% Aif
on demand 1 month imonth  tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
20215128318 At 31 December 2021

FEean Certificates of deposit held included in:
WATEEA ARSI Financial assets at fair value through

EhzAlahEREE other comprehensive income - 150,015 93,789 - 45970 - - 480774

EBRASIRNEREE Financial assets at amortised cost - 24904 244036 720872 3275%2 - - 1537364

2020F12A318 At 31 December 2020

e ?A’Eﬁ’?AF : Certiicates of deposit held included in:
WATEERESEHA Financial assets at fair value through

A2 ERENEREE other comprehensive income - - - 100,10 244238 - - 344348

NERRASR S REE Financial assets at amortised cost - 23090 99967 1407544 - - - 145601

BEHEEEHRRAENBREMZENEIREE
EEEE+HEE - HRETHEBRIKLES
THEERAR R TRER - HiRTTME @ T2
RAIERL N ER - TEENFEERAIRERE R
Flgenn - BB INEERE

BEHBENIHERAGENRANEREB
Wgﬁﬁé’]ﬁéj} EAEEERBE S RE R
RIERZEFIAERRNERRE -

REE—R I RME=TeREaHBE2EH
RE®  BNERNEREHEETHRIED
MBEEFRBRINEENEE - BARRZEE
AERI LKL BESRAES - BLARE
HEBEZEEAENRENSNESERLER
HigHHR&FRK -

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as businesses
transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types. An
unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases
the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of
the commitment because the Group does not generally expect the
third parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does
not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

3 Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps
and cross currency interest rate swaps;

3 Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and

. Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. HMERBREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 REBELRMR @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

34.3 BEA BB AZ KB LR £ 5 (&) 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)

1HANEE 3MEALL

EASLT EE 1L
AT 3 months or Over E5%

Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 55k &t
2021%12A31R At 31 December 2021 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years Over5 years Total
ETETARER Non-derivative cash flow
8 Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 779,026 924,913 - - - 1,703,939
EPER Deposits from customers 123,044,927 63,581,037 10,399,697 1,342,110 - 198,367,771
RHEEERAMERE Trading liabilities 500,000 1,012,008 - - - 1,512,008
BETNENRE Certificates of deposit issued 102,543 1,644,480 4,491,532 395,611 - 6,634,166
RIEER Subordinated notes 44,343 - 113,539 4,505,489 - 4,663,371
HEAR Lease liabilities 13,192 25,558 101,635 337,265 161,278 638,928
HiBE Other liabilities 1,838,822 523,630 344,008 - 350,178 3,056,638
B8 Total liabilities

(BHEIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 126,322,853 67,711,626 15,450,411 6,580,475 511,456 216,576,821
FETARER Derivative cash flow
RIEREEL Derivative financial instruments

fTESRTA settled on net basis (1,124) 1,318 2,055 (14,253) 2,296 (9,708)
RBEREE Derivative financial instruments

fTESRTA settled on a gross basis
Ninfuecckat Total outflow 48,789,682 16,750,300 17,297,065 3,749,175 1,067,931 87,654,153
MABE Total inflow (48,726,928) | |(16,732,620) | | (16,781,821) (2,053,710) (497,691) | |(84,792,770)

62,754 17,680 515,244 1,695,465 570,240 2,861,383
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3. HKEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

34 RBESRAB@® 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

34.3 BEA BB A Z KB LR £ 5 (&) 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)

1EALE 3MEAN L

SEAHMUT s 1R
1BB=AT 3 months or Over B56F
Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5FE B

2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FTETEREN Non-derivative cash flow
afE Liabilities
RITFEN Deposits from banks 1,805,393 1,701,134 4,098 - - 3,510,625
BPER Deposits from customers 127,793,193 49,940,606 11,907,828 2,713,224 - 192,354,851
HEEERENAE Trading liabilities 160,500 969,008 440,126 1,008 - 1,570,642
BRI HE Certificates of deposit issued 1,032,951 473,063 6,598,777 102,543 - 8,207,334
&EER Subordinated notes 43,361 - 2,063,648 1,962,136 - 4,069,145
HEBE Lease liabilities 16,242 40,188 127,546 318,610 222,892 725,478
Hivgfs Other liabilities 2,154,246 648,539 310,372 - 253,054 3,366,211
BEAE Total liabilities

(A#35R) (contractual maturity dates) ~ 133,005,886 53,772,538 21,452,395 5,007,521 475946 213,804,286
PTHET AR SR Derivative cash flow
BEBEE Derivative financial instruments

TESRMIA settled on net basis (16,257) 940 314 (554) 594 (14,963)
RIEBEEE Y Derivative financial instruments

TESRBTEA settled on a gross basis
pinlast ket Total outflow 11,706,176 | | 21,479,924 | | 29,343,852 3,977,676 1,256,574 | | 67,764,202
AT Total inflow (11,649,551) | | (21,399,229) | | (28,940,253) | | (2,188,269) (634,012) | | (64,811,314)

56,625 80,695 403,599 1,789,407 622,562 2,952,888
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

. Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

. Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required,;

. The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments

where a Group company is the lessee; and

. Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
1R 150 E 5F L E
No later 54 Over &5t
2021612H31H At 31 December 2021 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
ERE Loan commitments 70,691,292 2,790,191 64,236 73,545,719
BIR - AHER Guarantees, acceptances and
H1th 5 mhARFS other financial facilities
—EREERERR — Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,840,864 38,570 - 1,879,434
—IRERHEEAR — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 703,597 - - 703,597
AR S TH )R IE Operating lease commitments 6,985 21,997 - 28,982
B HE Capital commitments 17,310 85,279 - 102,589
AET Total 73,260,048 2,936,037 64,236 76,260,321
1EUR 1F LA E 5FLAE
No later E5%F Over a5t
202012H31H At 31 December 2020 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
EFURE Loan commitments 74,263,218 2,176,395 19,751 76,459,364
BR AHK Guarantees, acceptances and
E fth & @b ARk 7% other financial facilities
—EREERERE — Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,065,098 114,284 3,476 1,182,858
—REFEEERE — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 846,898 — — 846,898
AT AR Operating lease commitments 9,304 19,649 - 28,953
BRI Capital commitments 108,241 89,999 - 198,240
Total 76,202,759 2,400,327 23227 78,716,313
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility for
overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to the
TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and where
appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified valuers
and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date
under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has a
bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is used
by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques and
standard option pricing models. In applying valuation techniques
for these financial instruments, the Group maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and minimises the use
of unobservable inputs. For example, the fair value of interest-rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts
is generally based on current forward rates and the fair value of
option contracts is derived using appropriate pricing models, such
as Black-Scholes model.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(a) Determination of fair value (Continued)

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit spreads
in determining the current value of its financial liabilities and other
liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option. When the
Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a gain on
these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has decreased.
When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises
a loss on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

8 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. HHEERREEm)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

35 SREERABEZAFE®E 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) R FEZER@E

BAVEFEBZEERAE

(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

KBEENFEFTE Recurring fair value measurements
FE1R Fof H34K &5

2021F12H31H At 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BES Descriptions
AAFEFEBEEE  Financial assets at fair value

STABRRNEREE through profit or loss 14,119 4,425,384 - 4,439,503
PTESBTA Derivative financial instruments

BIEEERS Held for trading - 360,405 - 360,405

=B B ELH Held for hedging - 260,651 - 260,651
AAFETEBEESE  Financial assets at fair value

FTAEM 2 E K= through other comprehensive

SREE income

EHSRE 5 Debt securities - 41,344,154 - 41,344,154

EmMES Equity securities 481 6,315 82,786 89,582
BAFEFE2EESR Total assets measured

at fair value 14,600 46,396,909 82,786 46,494,295

LARFEEFEBHEE  Financial liabilities at fair value

FFAEENEREE through profit or loss

—FHEEERE — held for trading

BERES Debt securities - 1,511,927 - 1,511,927
PTESmMTA Derivative financial instruments

RBEEERR Held for trading - 315,959 - 315,959

HHBEL S Held for hedging - 1,109,406 - 1,109,406
WA ETEZBEAET  Total liabilities measured

at fair value - 2,937,292 - 2,937,292

REREIPREEZCREERIE LTE Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
mBEHFREFRE - HEFEREERAT investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They
BEIR - EEAEM are stated at fair value which approximates the cost.
#H 2£2021F12 5318 %2020 12831 H 1= For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
FE  PEeMEERBEZ EMmEANE there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
HATFEZHRPRIE - B2RERG - & out of the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The
BBz #8) REHKEEE - changes in carrying value represent the revaluation gains/losses.
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3. UHBERREREm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

35 TREERABGEZAFE®E 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) R FEFHE (b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
EBEATEFECEERBE (& Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

BEMEAFETE@®E Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

FAR Fok FE34% =

202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT ETEREE Financial assets at fair value

FFABERNESmEE through profit or loss — 5,080,047 = 5,080,047
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments

FEEERZ Held for trading - 945,983 - 945,983

B R EEH Held for hedging - 189,831 - 189,831
AT EEAEE Financial assets at fair value

ST AE At 2 E a8 through other comprehensive

SREE income

BRE S Debt securities - 41,715,243 — 41,715,243

B A Equity securities 18,196 - 82,484 100,680

BNV ETEZ2EEST Total assets measured

at fair value 18,196 47,931,104 82,484 48,031,784

UAFEstEEHE Financial liabilities at fair value

STAERNEREE through profit or loss

—HEEEAR — held for trading

B ES Debt securities = 1,570,675 = 1,570,675
PTESRIE Derivative financial instruments

FEEERR Held for trading - 899,670 - 899,670

B AIEEH Held for hedging - 2,291,518 - 2,291,518

AT EFEZABEA Total liabilities measured
at fair value

4,761,863 = 4,761,863
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented below:

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(ii) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii) Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value of
amortised cost assets is based on market prices or broker/
dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and
other borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using
interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 except as follows:

IREE
Carrying B B2 B3 NS
2021%F12831H At 31 December 2021 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
SREE Financial assets
DA AR ASIBRE)  Financial assets at
TREE amortised cost 24,531,186 - 24,464,629 4,730 24,469,359
cRBeE Financial liabilities
BEITHFE Certificates of deposit
issued 6,589,717 - 6,589,883 - 6,589,883
BIEER Subordinated notes 4,128,446 - 4,193,099 - 4,193,099
IREE
Carrying FAH ol E3R ~FE
2020%F12H318 At 31 December 2020 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
TRIEE Financial assets
DA AR ATIBRE)  Financial assets at
SREE amortised cost 22,834,243 - 23,032,152 4,730 23,036,882
cRAE Financial liabilities
BERITHERE Certificates of deposit
issued 8,125,802 - 8,137,099 - 8,137,099
BIEER Subordinated notes 3,828,458 - 3,840,512 - 3,840,512
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

. To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

. To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

o To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by
the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed
with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, the Bank is required to
meet three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity Tier 1 capital,
Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against risk-weighted assets.
The internationally agreed minimum of these three ratios are set at
4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In
order to comply with HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-
5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank is required to set further
buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar Il
capital requirement. In addition, the Bank is required to fulfil the capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer requirements
set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio forms part of Basel IlI
implementation and the required information is submitted by the Bank
to the HKMA on quarterly basis. In line with the international standards,
the minimum Leverage Ratio is set at 3% by the HKMA.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts for
credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-balance
sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet exposures
are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each exposure
and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating assigned by
an external credit assessment institution recognised by the HKMA or
other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules, taking into account
the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-balance sheet exposures
are converted into credit-equivalent amounts by applying relevant credit
conversion factors to each exposure, before being classified and risk-
weighted as if they were on-balance sheet exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated balance sheet are share capital, retained profits, other
equity instruments and other reserves. Capital also includes collective
provisions and regulatory reserve for general banking risks as allowed
under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission (“CBIRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBIRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBIRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) not lower than the required statutory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as
the Securities and Futures Commission.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not
included in the Group’s financial statements. These services could give
rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-administration.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment
of the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable in
all material respects.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is
further detailed in Note 3.2.2, which also sets out key sensitivities of the

ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

. Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

o Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

J Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in Note 3.2.2.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. ERSBREEBZEESHMEIR
) | ()

(2) EMIAZAFE

REBERAFERZ EFEFRERIDRK
BARZTSREE - AREERALHE S
RINEREELEER  REEZ2ZH—Z5IF
BRI HE  LHZRHE - RERRZAE
HMRE - RERBRRIESER2FHE -

(R) BERELEE 2

REBAT  BURRABBRELEER
ERERANEREERRAEE KSR Z BR
EXEE  BRREBIERZIRRBERSR
B IEAMBRERAMSNERRE M EURR
o B EEZREEEFLHE - MEXLL
BRT - BPEENSERMAKEZ 2 RRE
FREBEME  AIERRZEENRIE

(T) RERBELQT  EERT((EER
171 2 mERE

REBEREBEFBGHELFEIT(EEREIHR
BEERITZREETERRMER -

ZEHER KRB RHELREEEREZEAE
EENKEEERRZAFELRZEE - £
BENEEEREEEEMAIBEIBEEHY
KUBROBRRCREME - ZHESRER
EIEE 2 HE W RN AR R 2 BRRARE A
ZREREGRIEZRERE -

R2021F12A831H - EEEFHEZFEAEEK
REESERITZIREANEERE - At - REE
202112 A1 B IEFE - AEBESERITZ
& 2 BRHE{E B R 8726,000,0007 7T (20204 :
531,000,000/ 7T) °

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried at fair
value are valued based on observable market quotations. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation for
valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range of observable
quotations, recent observable transactions, the reliability and quality of
the pricing source, and the value of securities of a similar nature.

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of goodwill
and intangible assets, any major change in the assumptions in relation
to future benefits to be generated from the intangible assets, including
future cash flow of benefits to be generated from the acquired entities,
or discount rates which could be caused by major changes in market
conditions and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying
values of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than
their carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be
recognised.

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment against
the higher of management’s estimate of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of the value in use is based
on a discounted cash flow projection which contains certain assumptions
derived from management and observable market information. This
estimate is subject to application of management judgement and is
sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2021, management’s estimate of the value in use is
lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ. As a result, in
the year ended 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ has been written down by HK$726 million (2020:
HK$531 million).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most
relevant:

J If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the
Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

. If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

3 Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical
lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to
replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included in
the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not
exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise)
it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects
this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee. During the
current financial year, the Group has not exercised any extension or
termination options.
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5. ABITHBERARRRBEESS 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK
AIRAT IR Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12A31H
As at 31 December
2021 2020
BE ASSETS
e RERITHER Cash and balances with banks 9,947,158 14,680,333
FERITIE 1218 A N F HRTF R Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 4,470,630 4,344,827
FERERRMES Trading securities 4,425,384 5,080,047
ARFEF2 B EEEA Financial assets at fair value through
BalepiE profit or loss 14,119 =
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 613,457 1,132,482
BREHRE MR Advances and other accounts 129,788,677 124,864,152
DT EFE B EEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through
HitrzEBanemEE other comprehensive income 41,389,954 41,778,647
AR AT S R B B Financial assets at amortised cost 20,891,157 18,040,936
B NEIRE Investment in an associate 1,213,057 1,213,057
HREEHEEREA Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
MBAREERER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 3,829,399 3,804,248
AEREMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 3,275,361 3,316,633
REY Investment properties 702,053 623,663
ERETIREE Deferred income tax assets 41,001 50,210
BES Total assets 220,621,407 218,949,235
=L LIABILITIES
RITIFR Deposits from banks 5,487,586 6,765,214
PTAEERIA Derivative financial instruments 1,418,967 3,190,179
RESEREMNEE Trading liabilities 1,511,927 1,570,675
REEFR Deposits from customers 169,546,555 163,978,819
BRI HE Certificates of deposit issued 6,489,717 8,225,802
BIEER Subordinated notes 4,128,446 3,828,458
HAvER B KA Other accounts and accruals 5,890,578 6,415,263
BERIE AR Current income tax liabilities 124,039 353,280
EE&s Total liabilities 194,597,815 194,327,690
i EQUITY
LN Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
fEfE Other reserves
(BIEREAHM) () (including retained earnings) Note (a) 18,925,005 17,522,958
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 25,125,005 23,722,958
EoMERMTER Additional equity instruments 898,587 898,587
At Total equity 26,023,592 24,621,545
ERRkaEes Total equity and liabilities 220,621,407 218,949,235
EE2N2022F3 31 B #tfE RIZHEE M - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2022.
EEHE FHEHE Hon-Hing Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EFE EHLEarr Director Managing Director
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5. ZABITHBARRRRFEEE @ 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

G

(F) APITEEHE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Note:
(a) Reserve movement of the Bank

MBS RER RERA

TEEfRE REEHRE R fta ()
Premises Investment —RH%E  Reservefor Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General ~ Share-based Earnings Bt
Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
202151818 At 1 January 2021 233,100 214,632 693,304 14,221 16,367,701 17,522,958

DT EERELERE SN
WATEHEEREHIA
A2 ER TR

Fair value gain realised and transferred
to income statement upon disposal of
debt instruments at fair value through

SR REBEER other comprehensive income upon
derecognition - (4,993) - - - (4,993)
RR TR - ENHFAATE Reclassification of net change in fair
FTEREEEHARMEE value of equity instruments at fair value
o ERETAZATE through other comprehensive income
2y33 upon derecognition - 33,619 - - (33,619) -
WATESEBEEEHA Net change in fair value of debt
A2 ERENERTIAZ instruments at fair value through other
ATEESFE comprehensive income - 69,682 - - - 69,682
RESHREEEDH  ETHE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - (17,638) - - - (17,638)
NATEEBEZHHA Net change in allowance for expected
Hit2ERENEEIEL credit losses of debt instruments at fair
BHEEEREEY TR value through other comprehensive
income - 7,388 - - - 7,388
FIMER I TE 2 A A Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - - - (41,325) (41,325)
SARRAES? fIARR {7 f At Provision for equity-settled share-based
£l compensation - - - 480 - 480
FEET Profit for the year - - - - 1,819,353 1,819,353
2020F REARR & 2020 final dividend - - - - (291,400) (291,400)
20215 R RS 2021 interim dividend - - - - (1395000  (139,500)
20215128310 At 31 December 2021 233,100 302,690 693,304 14,701 17,681,210 18,925,005
&t Note:
RRITENEEREE R ERFR BB RELEAFREA The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
AN BAR R B - #ERrar B8 iR (REET ORI those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
HIRTRAFRIT(RE)) D AFE BB IRITEGGI R IA reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
FEEERBNZITHEERT - ZEERERRAK the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
BTREEHESRE EEREIEHELRRTESER requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
EITEH - WEENERFEEHENAE - restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.

Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

72021412 A381 B + ZRIR1TE 45 F 432,194,000/% 7T As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
(20204 : 502,278,000/ T) 2 £ FBIEAEE FEELE HK$432,194,000 (2020: HK$502,278,000) first against the consolidated general
HEMSGE —MEFE  SKERRARTZEERBETRF reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against the
EE ° consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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5. ZABITHBERRRRBFEESS @

i ()

(F) ARITFEZSH(E)

202061718

AP NI HERE L E
HATEH S ERBHA
R EREEH AR
SR RHBEREE

I EHERE - B BUATE
SHEREZH AR MRE
Wt ERtTAZATE
BHFE

IAATERE B AEHHA
B 2ENENERTAZ
NTEEHFE

IARTEE B AT A
ErEdanRalt TAZ
RTEEHFE

RABHREEDETHR

NATEH EERBHHA
A2 EREHEBTAL
ROEEERAZIEE

BIMER TR ZREFR

IABRHE S 3 IABR R fE R 2L
i B

FERR

2019F REIR S

20206 R HIR S

2020612431H

At 1 January 2020

Fair value gain realised and transferred
to income statement upon disposal of
debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income upon
derecognition

Reclassification of net change in fair
value of equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
upon derecognition

Net change in fair value of debt
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Net change in fair value of equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve

Net change in allowance for expected
credit losses of debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments

Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation

Profit for the year

2019 final dividend

2020 interim dividend

At 31 December 2020

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)
Note: (Continued)
(a)  Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)
IR A ERE RERA
TEEfRE RASRFE T ()
Premises Investment — MR Reserve for Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General  Share-based Eamings Bt
Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
233,100 314,653 693,304 13,401 15,331,154 16,585,612
= (13,448) = = = (13,448)
= (13,859) = = 13,853 =
= (99,081) = = = (99,031)
= (1,550) = = = (1,550)
- 21,451 - - - 21,451
- 6,410 - - - 6,410
_ _ - - (41,266) (41,266)
- - - 820 - 820
- - - - 1,648,000 1,648,000
= = = = (471,200) (471,200)
= = = = (112,840) (112,840)
233,100 214,632 693,304 14,221 16,367,701 17,522,958
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with HKFRS
8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC members,
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
is determined on the basis of personal banking, corporate banking,
treasury and global markets and overseas banking business. Operating
performances are analysed by business activities for local banking
business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

. Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales and
investment services.

. Corporate banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from and the advance of loans and working capital finance
to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and the
provision of trade financing.

o Treasury and global markets activities are mainly the provision
of foreign exchange services and centralised cash management
for deposit taking and lending, interest rate risk management,
management of investment in securities and the overall funding
of the Group.

. Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
corporate banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

o Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments
are reported directly under respective segments, while revenue
and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and
funding resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. BEEIERE®W

B£2021F12H31 B LFE

6.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

BERER
TEER
THARIT S¥RT  Treasury WOMRT EI5H
Personal  Corporate  and Global  Overseas it Inter- st
Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
FRBMA/ () Net interest income/(expenses) 1,637,016 1,194,462 747,645 494,999 (133,730) - 3,940,392
FEFIBIA /(i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 991,658 208,776 69,980 133,646 34,316 (2,506) 1,435,870
BEWA/ (Xit) Total operating incomey(expenses) 2,628,674 1,403,238 817,625 628,645 (99,414) (2506) 5,376,262
£EXM Operating expenses (1,724,721)  (520,859) (206,615  (537,204) (44,591) 2,506 (3,031,484)
NREEREBENZ Operating profit/(loss) before
LiERH/(B8) credit impairment losses 903,953 882,379 611,010 91,441 (144,005) - 2,344,778
EEREEE Credit impairment losses (178,654) (126,488) (15,475) (51,283) (1,443) - (373,343)
NREEREBER Operating profit/(loss) after
ERA/(B8) credit impairment losses 725,299 755,891 595,535 40,158 (145,448) - 1,971,435
LEREMERE M Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair
BEgEREATE value adjustment of investment
BEE(BR) W properties and other fixed assets (2,326) (1,034) (16) (29) 629 - (2,776)
HENATEFEEEEE  Net gain on disposal of financial
STAEM 2N assets at fair value through other
SREAE NG comprehensive income - - 4,993 - - - 4,993
N e Share of results of an associate - - - 697,954 - - 697,954
BLNTREZFERR  Impaimment loss on the investment in
an associate - - - (726,000) - - (726,000)
RRILEHERTRE Loss on deemed disposal of
pd - investment in an associate - - - (31,202) - - (31,202)
(R EREHEE 2%E  Share of results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 33,060 - 33,060
BHALaT/ (F8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 722,973 754,857 600,512 (19,119)  (111,759) - 1,947,464
BOA(XH) /B Taxation (expenses)/credit (119,336)  (124,561) (98,914) (34,927) 68,699 - (309,039)
ERER/ (B8 Profit(loss) for the year 603637 630296 501598  (54,046)  (43,060) - 1,638,425
HZ2021512A318 For the year ended
IEEE 31 December 2021
NEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 76,645 15,500 8,070 59,364 246,513 - 406,092
1#2021512A318 At 31 December 2021
NEEE Segment assets 56,651,282 70,473,506 80,791,990 38,977,756 8,278,471 (5,351,378) 249,821,627
PEAE Segment liabilities 114,634,275 49,555,753 12,777,503 30,182,181 17,294,557  (5,351,378) 219,092,891
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6. EEISERFT@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
BB RIRR
e
EARIT PEET Treasury BINRIT EIEE
Personal  Corporate  andGlobal ~ Overseas Hify Inter- fazt
Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
FHEMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,584,254 1,124,905 669,395 486,130 (179,320) - 3,685,364
FEFIBHA Non-interest income 1,008,393 194,070 197,802 117,623 38,212 - 1,556,100
BEWA/ (Xit) Total operating incomey/(expenses) 2592647 1318975 867,197 603,753 (141,108) - 5241464
EEXH Operating expenses (1,630,344)  (504,889)  (185689)  (507,522) (14,474) - (2,842,918)
MR EEREREZ Operating profit/(loss) before credit
2ERA/(BR) impairment losses 962,303 814,086 681,508 96,231 (155,582) - 2,398,546
FEREEE Credit impairment losses (342,197) (151,822) (20,102) (131,768) (1,079) - (646,968)
NREEREBER Operating profit/(loss) after credit
BERT/(B8) impairment losses 620,106 662,264 661,406 (35,537)  (156,661) - 1751578
HEREMERE Net loss on disposal and fair value
BEgEREATE adjustment of investment properties
REZFER and other fixed assets (2,902) - - (68) (84,297) - (87,267)
HENATEFEREEE)  Net gain on disposal of financial
STAEM 2 EEN assets at fair value through other
SREAE NG comprehensive income - - 13,448 - - - 13,448
EEZAEEE Impairment loss on goodwill - (98,239) - = = = (98,239)
NG A+ Share of results of an associate - - - 710,370 - - 710,370
BENAIREZAEER  Impaiment loss on the investment in an
associate - - - (531,000) - - (531,000)
[E(SEARFZEZEE  Share of results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 33,190 - 33,190
BRHANaH/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 617,204 564,025 674,854 143765 (207,768) - 1,792,080
BB / Taxation (expenses)/credit (101,353)  (110,166)  (111,368) (19.217) 25,486 - (316,618)
Ey VA=) Profit/(loss) for the year 515,851 453,859 563,486 124548 (182,282) - 1475462
EZ2020512A31A For the year ended
IHFE 31 December 2020
WEREEER Depreciation and amortisation 74,976 14,965 7,135 56,312 238,929 - 392,317
20206124318 At 31 December 2020
NEEE Segment assets 53,965,730 66,782,037 84,562,197 38,200,663 9,655,997  (5,021,031) 248,145,593
PEERE Segment liabilities 112,788,974 46,684,129 16,220,032 29,899,300 18,316,876  (5,021,031) 218,888,280

KFIRITAR AR 2021FF 4

171



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. EESEREW@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
BiEER Geographical information
@5 5 IBE R DIRBEA S E RN R P RER Geographical segment information is based on the domicile of the legal
% BHEER S KRB BERNETEMEZTE entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship with,
# o B E2021F K 2020F 12 A31 HILFE © B E and services to external customers. For the period ended 31 December
PRGN+ 4 B8 — B SR gk @ 45 0 THIE A 10% 3 A 2021 and 2020, no single country or geographical segment other than
ZAREEEE - BfF  BEWATBRTATRF o Hong Kong contributed 10% or more of the Group’s assets, liabilities,
operating income, or profit before taxation.
7. FEFEWA 7. NET INTEREST INCOME
2021 2020
FE WA Interest income
e RIERITHIAEER Cash and balances with banks 148,094 267,438
BHIE Investments in securities 1,000,982 1,360,604
ZEERNEMIEE Advances and other accounts 4,021,208 4,582,424
5,170,284 6,210,466
FEXZH Interest expense
RITFR BPER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 1,070,336 2,200,266
BRI FERE Certificates of deposit issued 43,284 126,852
BIEER Subordinated notes 103,308 137,815
HEAaGE(HFE27(2)) Lease liabilities (Note 27(b)) 9,654 10,574
Hit Others 3,310 49,595
1,229,892 2,525,102
MNEWABE Included within interest income
—FREEEAENIEFR — Trading securities and financial
AFERTEBHEZST A assets at fair value through
BRempmEE profit or loss 2,508 53,199
—AAFEEBEESA — Financial assets at fair value through
Hib2EKEEmEE other comprehensive income 465,524 850,703
— AR A BIBR I S B E B — Financial assets at amortised cost 4,702,252 5,306,564
5,170,284 6,210,466
MEXHEE Included within interest expense
—RUAAFEFZEAEZBEA — Financial liabilities not at fair value
BEaerasE through profit or loss 1,228,916 2,482,275
REEE20214F £2020F 12 431 H IEFE + W HEHE For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no interest
REREEEZFEWA - income recognised on impaired assets.
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8. FERBBERMAZWA

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2021 2020
REERAEEA Fee and commission income
RANFETZ A RSB A Fee and commission income from
BalemEEREEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
AR5 2 KA WA fair value through profit or loss
—EEEBZREERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 170,138 170,451
—E5mE — Trade finance 80,739 78,218
—fERA+R — Credit card 276,816 255,002
H RIS E KA WA Other fee and commission income
—BHKLE A — Securities brokerage 215,359 192,396
—(REREHE R H Aty — Insurance distribution and others 218,564 284,293
—ZERE RV EEERSS — Retail investment and wealth
management services 303,980 269,056
—iRTTRRIG B N FES — Bank services and handling fees 70,770 65,587
— H At R E — Other fees 70,456 66,779
1,406,822 1,381,782
REERAEXH Fee and commission expense
RAAFEFEBHEES T A Fee and commission expense from
BalemEEREEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
AR RAE X H fair value through profit or loss
—FEELAS — Handling fees and commission 201,717 189,919
—EfEMER — Other fees paid 7,682 10,062
209,399 199,981

ARERAE=DRHERE - It CEEERR
BEERY - BEXUFRBNEERNREAT
DRAELTESENFVHRERA

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and

investment management services to third parties. The assets subject to

these services are held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included in

these financial statements.
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9. FEEBEWA 9. NET TRADING INCOME
2021 2020
SNEE B FE Net gain arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 182,048 288,936
BFEEERERNES 2F(EB) ke Net (loss)/gain on trading securities (23) 14,133
FEBEERSMITE TR 2 F e Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 4,241 2,443
RAATFEE P EEemI A Net (loss)/gain arising from financial
F(ER), M instruments subject to fair value
hedge (7,310) 895
LAATFERT2 B HEBR AB&RA Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments
SRMIAEZF(ER) s at fair value through profit or loss (3,975) 7,120
174,981 313,527
10. Hfb&EWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
RERDIFE ZAAFEFER Dividend income from investments
HEBF AR MEERED in equity instruments at fair value
M TERE ZIREWA through other comprehensive income,
held at the end of the year
— EmiRE — Listed investments 1,323 1,612
—JEEMIRE — Unlisted investments 13,920 4,330
wEYE 2 HES WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties 17,831 22,965
HbEB WA Other rental income 16,470 15,445
HAth Others 13,922 16,420
63,466 60,772
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1. EEXH

11. OPERATING EXPENSES

2021 2020

B BN R A8 A H (FaE12)

TEREMEEEES S -
NEEFE
—fTEME X (KE27(2))
—HAft

#r

i

—fTEREMEEEE(HH27(F))

—BEREZMEF27(2))
BEEREHRB H
ENf| ~ XA REE
SRR &
HAl

12. EEFMRENZH

Employee compensation and benefit

expenses (Note 12) 1,971,746 1,918,915
Premises and other fixed assets

expenses, excluding depreciation

— Rental of premises (Note 27(b)) 4,800 4,303

— Others 229,980 211,227
Depreciation

— Premises and other fixed assets

(Note 27(a)) 213,726 197,644

— Right-of-use properties (Note 27(b)) 192,366 194,673
Advertising and promotion costs 75,791 77,138
Printing, stationery and postage 45,545 52,103
Auditors’ remuneration 10,867 9,546
Others 286,663 177,369

3,031,484 2,842,918

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES
2021 2020

HMREMASER Salaries and other staff costs 1,873,517 1,880,090
BT B — [MRBEZE 58I GE(R)) Government grant — Employment Support

Scheme (Note (a)) - (65,686)
VARG D A ERE RN 2 Provision for share-based compensation

R (M[7E43) charged (Note 43) 480 821

RARETH — R EHKEE Pension costs — defined contribution

plans 97,749 103,690

it

() 120205 @ AEEFRFE T HEERAFRILAR
TURES R RELE GBI (TR 5]
2R - ZEES AR ABERMMBEE - U
REFREEHERNE T - BRIE[RFAE IFHEIR
R AEBTAENEIRSHUEHERE - X
BEBHMARINEREETE -

1,971,746 1,918,915

Note:

(a) In 2020, the Group applied for funding support from the Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the
Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial
support to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be
made redundant. Under the terms of the ESS, the Group is restricted from
making redundancies during the period covered by the cash subsidy and
to spend all the funding on paying wages to its employees.
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13. EERERE

13. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2021 2020
I (B R B8 2 %) New allowances net of allowance
releases 461,635 745,612
U [e] 381 B 88 2 SR8 Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (88,292) (98,644)
373,343 646,968
DB : Attributable to:
—RFEER — Advances to customers 394,119 603,479
—HEMemEE — Other financial assets 14,590 36,162
— BRI & B TS AR — Loan commitments and
financial guarantees (35,366) 7,327
373,343 646,968
14. B\ 14. TAXATION

78 15 B T 1R BR 4 P 1 AT 8 ER A U ) DA B =R
16.5%(20204F : 16.5% ) IR B Efl « BINH R TD
RE NG IME ST ER TR MK AR & B AR & S5
&2 BRITRIRGH -

EEHBERRAAEEINERER - KRABZF
RIAR BRI BN EER THRRERZH
KFRBIER ©

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on

overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under

the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2021 2020
RNEFERIA Current income tax:
—BBNEH — Hong Kong profits tax 282,406 283,018
—BINEIE — Overseas taxation 41,482 22,708
— BT FE B 2 B — Over-provision in prior years (10,002) (217)
RAERIE (FI5E34) - Deferred income tax (Note 34):
— AR EREERESE REM — Origination and reversal of timing
differences (4,847) 11,109
I8 Taxation 309,039 316,618
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14. FHE@)

AREBRBADGEN 2 HIRB IR GA SR A INE
FHREAE ZIERBERAOT

14. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2021 2020

B 1% At A

BEBMSHE16.5%1H 2 KA

BIARBRR
HABIZR 2 TR R

BRI A

TREFIRMEY S

VAT 1% Bt 2 3 2 Bt = A )
NAREHIERZ 25

Profit before taxation 1,947,464 1,792,080

Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax

rate of 16.5% 321,332 295,693
Tax effects of:

Different taxation rates in other

countries 26,789 14,851
Income not subject to taxation (30,075) (28,485)
Expenses not deductible 133,978 159,272

Results of associates and jointly
controlled entities reported

net of tax (120,617) (122,687)
REMEEY =T ERZIEE Items recorded in other
comprehensive income (12,366) (6,809)
BT E R EE 2 B Over-provision in prior years (10,002) (217)
T8 Taxation 309,039 316,618
15. EEM< 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2021 2020
EEMEE Directors’ fee 4,039 3,995
et BE - BEYFlzm Salaries, bonuses, housing, benefits
N B ARG in kind and other allowances 114,287 106,609
LARR A7 7 B R BN A 2 A< Share-based compensation payment - =
RINEAEE 2 EEHK Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,384 2,151
120,710 112,755

REFERNIRELR  UERANEEDEBRE
MEARS « RHERAERK  ERRNRITAEFR—
FRARITZEZEESBEEER BRI EAF)
7 (20204F : #&) ©

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank was a party and in which
a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2020: Nil).
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15. EEME @)

REZE2021F12H31HILFE » WERAEMES
MEEEABITHEMB AR BEAE B2 EMAR
A TERE B € (20204 : ) -

AER - WESARIEEOZ KBS ENTES
R Ep ERE ERRE M E S =5 S ki
R (B (20204F « ££) ©

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in
respect of directors’ other services in connection with management of
the affairs of the Bank or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and no
consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year (2020: Nil).

16. &2 16. DIVIDENDS
2021 2020
EIRF RS - FRREEAR2.25 T Interim dividend paid of HK$2.25
(20207 : 1.82787L) (2020: HK$1.82) per ordinary share 139,500 112,840
FORREARE : BARE@ARS.007%8 7T Proposed final dividend of HK$5.00
(20207 : 4.7787T) (2020: HK$4.7) per ordinary share 310,000 291,400
449,500 404,240

17. RERERITHERR

17. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2021 2020
He RERITH&E Cash and balances with banks 3,019,169 4,559,911
BA NS ERTFER Money at call and short notice 8,989,779 10,703,672

0k : REER

—B&Ex

12,008,948 15,263,583
Less: impairment allowance
— Stage 1 (1,195) (1,131)

12,007,753 15,262,452
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18. BEEERABRNESRUAFEITE
BESBABENEREE

18. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
FEEERRNES Trading securities:
BIEES Debt securities:
—&BBEW — Listed in Hong Kong 12,285 30,089
—JE LT — Unlisted 4,413,099 5,049,958

AT RS BREBEA
RIS RARE -
BAES -
~EBLD

BREBBESFRNE
—BEEZR(ZRREAR)

—HpBEERE
— B A

TREETTHS
— RRBAFAF RERTT

—%

R20214 2020512 4311 » Lt AT &S
ERAFRGE

4,425,384 5,080,047

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Investment funds:

— Listed in Hong Kong 14,119 -
14,119 -
Total 4,439,503 5,080,047

Included within debt securities are:
— Treasury bills which are cash

equivalents 2,304,220 482,991
— Other treasury bills 2,108,879 4,566,967
— Government bonds 12,285 30,089

4,425,384 5,080,047

By issuers:
— Central governments and
central banks 4,425,384 5,080,047
— Corporate entities 14,119 -

4,439,503 5,080,047

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no certificates of
deposit held included in the above balances.
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19. fTE€mTI A 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
202112 A1 AR 2 ATETAE N RER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
SREQNFERAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2021 were as follows:
&8/
£5eE o¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional &E =l
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEEREZITETE 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SMELTAET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
REMEEEY Forward and futures contracts 73,866,338 305,938 (266,003)
B8\ T L N B Currency options purchased and written 8,296,314 5,106 (5,275)
SHE N R b R Cross currency interest rate swaps 404,909 4,734 (4,491)
Z) FIELTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
=iz 5 Interest rate swaps 4,953,683 25,773 (21,335)
A) B pTETA ¢) Equity derivatives
B8 o e e 1 Equity options purchased and written 472,050 18,854 (18,855)
RHIEEBRBZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
LE/(BE)A: trading 87,993,294 360,405 (315,959)
2) FEEHRZOTETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) BN FEEH P2 a) Derivatives designated as
PTETA fair value hedges
=4 HY Interest rate swaps 49,477,473 260,651 (1,109,406)
BEsRRB ZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(BfF)Aq hedging 49,477,473 260,651 (1,109,406)
ERRZITESRTIA Total recognised derivative financial assets/
LE/(BF)As (liabilities) 137,470,767 621,056 (1,425,365)
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19. fTE€mI A 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
2020512 A31 AR E B 2 STETAA N RER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
SREQNFERAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2020 were as follows:
a8/
2558 AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE afE
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEEREZITETE 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SMELTAET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RERBEEY Forward and futures contracts 63,546,714 857,935 (815,861)
B8\ T L N B Currency options purchased and written 9,794,008 16,681 (16,661)
Z) FIETETR b) Interest rate derivatives
ES Interest rate swaps 5,149,560 48,888 (44,691)
A) BatTE TR ¢) Equity derivatives
BEAROh i 1 e Equity options purchased and written 742,444 22,479 (22,457)
RIEEBERGZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(Aff)Aq trading 79,232,726 945,983 (899,670)
2) FEETRABRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) EEURFHEL A2 a) Derivatives designated as
1TAETA fair value hedges
= 5 Interest rate swaps 41,984,638 189,831 (2,291,518)
ARG 2 ITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(8F)A: hedging 41,984,638 189,831 (2,291,518)
ERRZITESMIEEE/ Total recognised derivative financial assets/
(BE)AR (liabilities) 121,217,364 1,135,814 (3,191,188)
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19. A€M I Ewm)

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

BERS HHRS #act
Trading Hedging Total
Z5LH Notional amount 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
EEXEH Exchange rate contracts
REREBEEN Forward and futures
contracts 73,866,338 63,546,714 - - 73,866,338 63,546,714
INEHIRESA) Foreign exchange option
contracts
— B ASNEEE — Currency options
purchased 4,235,863 4,897,007 - - 4,235,863 4,897,007
— i N R — Currency options written 4,060,451 4,897,001 - - 4,060,451 4,897,001
— R E T — Cross currency interest
rate swaps 404,909 - - - 404,909 -
82,567,561 73,340,722 - - 82,567,561 73,340,722
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
pilEs=r Interest rate swaps 4,953,683 5149560 49,477,473 41,984,638 54,431,156 47,134,198
4,953,683 5,149,560 49,477,473 41,984,638 54,431,156 47,134,198
Hips4a Other contracts
En RSN Equity option contracts
— B A — Options purchased 236,025 371,222 - = 236,025 371,222
— i — Options written 236,025 371,222 - = 236,025 371,222
472,050 742,444 - — 472,050 742,444
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20. BEEXRKRHEMIRE

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2021 2020

BEER4E Gross advances to customers 144,314,008 137,578,574
R : REZERE Less: impairment allowances

—BEERT — Stage 1 (469,184)  (486,431)

—REER2 _ Stage 2 (354,158)  (208,225)

—PEERS — Stage 3 (547,609) (556,508)

(1,370,947) (1,251,164)

142,943,061 136,327,410

BH5EE Trade bills 4,253,850 3,791,124
0B : REZERE Less: impairment allowances

— BEERA _ Stage 1 (7,347) (8,848)

—[EER2 — Stage 2 - (11)

(7,347) (8,859)

4,246,503 3,782,265

HAth & 2= (ff7E29) Other assets (Note 29) 5,296,498 6,745,547
Bk : REZERE Less: impairment allowances

— P& ER1 — Stage 1 (11,298) (10,287)

—PEER2 — Stage 2 (489) (547)

—PEERS — Stage 3 (13,771) (11,849)

(25,558) (22,683)

5,270,940 6,722,864

FHEHEREEMARE Advances and other accounts 152,460,504 146,832,539
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20. SEEFREMERE @)

() BEEEFERRBRzEBEHEEK
BRINE :

EFERLBEEREREMERAAREMR
ERFMZEBaNMEETERS ZRBREF
B ANREABRAREERRERERE - @\
EBEZLBEE -

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The contracts
have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset at nominal
value at the end of the lease period.

2021 2020
KEERENRSE 2 EWARESRE - Gross investment in finance lease
receivables:
1FEARN Not later than 1 year 1,088,890 1,670,776
16 LA EZE545F Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 1,721,515 2,012,941
5L E Later than 5 years 419,025 373,460

BMEMEZ AR BEKRA

BMEMEREFER

BMEMEREFRZOMMT

1R
1F LA EFE5F

5FIAE

R202145F K% 2020512 A31H @ LM FIEFAER
BEBAWREEERTIGER -

R2021F12A31H ' AEBZEFREEER
FEAANE s E R ERM AR IEH A EFEE T B
51,224,000/ 7T (20204F : 109,308,000/8 7T ) °

3,229,430 4,057,177

Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (195,201) (206,327)

Net investment in finance leases 3,034,229 3,850,850

The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:

Not later than 1 year 1,010,973 1,569,945
Later than 1 year and not later than

5 years 1,640,033 1,929,074
Later than 5 years 383,223 351,831

3,034,229 3,850,850

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2021 of the Group
amounted to HK$51,224,000 (2020: HK$109,308,000).
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21. UAFEFEEESEHTARMEZE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

WENEMEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2021 2020
BIEEH Debt securities:
—&BLEm — Listed in Hong Kong 16,676,005 14,072,696
— BB TR — Listed outside Hong Kong 16,208,367 16,750,257
—3k kM — Unlisted 8,459,782 10,892,290
41,344,154 41,715,243
RS Equity securities:
—&XLEM — Listed in Hong Kong 481 18,196
—3 kM — Unlisted 89,101 82,484
89,582 100,680
&t Total 41,433,736 41,815,923
BREEEFEFNE Included within debt securities are:
—RBENFRE — Certificates of deposit held 489,774 344,348
—BHEZR(ZERREER) — Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 2,439,243 3,551,262
—Hi B EZER — Other treasury bills 5,459,898 6,026,161
— B ES — Government bonds 708,540 123,458
— HERES — Other debt securities 32,246,699 31,670,014

AT ERHE B BB A
Hib 2 ERENSBARE
BRTRBERHT T ¢

EES
— R RBF A RIRTT

N7
—IRIT R E A SRR

—%

RS
—%

41,344,154 41,715,243

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are
analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

Debt securities:
— Central governments and central

banks 7,987,115 9,700,881
— Public sector entities 789,164 134,779
— Banks and other financial

institutions 6,792,715 7,582,172
— Corporate entities 25,775,160 24,297,411

41,344,154 41,715,243

Equity securities:
— Corporate entities 89,582 100,680

41,433,736 41,815,923
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21. UAFEFEBESFHFTAEMEHE
WEFENERE E )

ETUATFEF=EHEZH T AEMEZAKE
WEZMETERENFANRRRERERREE
mgHeE - RERIEBRE REZAFEAR
17,741,000;% 7t (2020 : 163,220,000/ 7T ) & H
& Z5HE5 18 433,619,000 7T (2020 : 251Uk
%5 4313,853,000/87T) °

22, DBBRRAIIRNEREE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Certain investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income have been sold during the year
due to risk monitoring consideration. The fair value of the investments at
the date of derecognition was HK$17,741,000 (2020: HK$163,220,000)
and its cumulative loss on disposal was HK$33,619,000 (2020:
cumulative gain of HK$13,853,000).

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

2021 2020

ESES Debt securities:
—&ELEM — Listed in Hong Kong 9,748,480 8,751,193
—EB AN T — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,869,613 9,297,525
—JEET™ — Unlisted 4,943,209 4,809,747

kR - REXEE

—PEERA

BREBBESFAE
—RANFRE
—BHERE
—BFES
—HEHKES

ABERR AT IR SR E B
REITHIBRR DT

— PR REEAT B AR RERTT

N
—PITRE S AR

—%
—Hit

24,561,302 22,858,465

Less: impairment allowance
— Stage 1 (30,116) (24,222)

Total 24,531,186 22,834,243

Included within debt securities are:

— Certificates of deposit held 1,537,364 1,745,601
— Treasury bills 921,707 1,308,909
— Government bonds 242,800 248,395
— Other debt securities 21,859,431 19,555,560

24,561,302 22,858,465

Financial assets at amortised cost are
analysed by categories of issuers as

follows:
— Central governments and central

banks 1,164,507 1,557,304
— Public sector entities 529,658 293,469
— Banks and other financial

institutions 7,880,487 7,681,769
— Corporate entities 14,984,197 13,323,470
— Others 2,453 2,453

24,561,302 22,858,465
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23. HENTIRE 23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2021 2020
(& EFE Share of net assets 6,878,328 6,199,304
[EES Goodwill 344,623 344,623

7,222,951 6,543,927

MR - BIE%EM Less: impairment allowances (2,992,000) (2,266,000)

4,230,951 4,277,927

12A31B 2 A& Fair value at 31 December 2,045,244 2,224,088
AEBREEBRITZRENATFEDNLESER The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongging shown
TTHRE 72021 F K 2020 FF 48 2 Wi & © above is calculated with reference to the closing market price of

BOCQ’s H-shares as at the end of 2021 and 2020.

20214 % 2020F 12 AB1B 2Bt 2 AR 2 X E & The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
BT December 2021 and 2020:
SR R FiiEEREE St
=18 Place of incorporation FEEWR Percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities interest in ownership
2021 2020
BERIT HREE AR AAE HR1T
Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 13.20% 14.66%
2021 2020

1H1H At 1 January 4,277,927 3,888,775
FE(SBRTHIE S Share of results, net of tax 697,954 710,370
EIERRFIZ IS E Efh Share of investment revaluation reserve,

net of tax 44,040 382
B S Dividend received (206,338) (118,387)
BRI Impairment loss charged (726,000) (531,000)
BRI E 2 k518 Loss on deemed disposal (31,202) =
bE 2= E R E Ath A% Exchange differences and other

adjustments 174,570 327,787
12H31H At 31 December 4,230,951 4,277,927
ERAEREEERITNESEHEZRNRE [ The Group is considered to have significant influence over BOCQ on
a2 EBMARRBIE MASBERRRYHE the basis of its representation on the board of directors and participation
BEIRITEERTES - in policy-making process.
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23. BZEATRE @)
() EERIT2RENKER
BEERITZEATET2ZHHA12A318 -

HZE2021F12A31 HIEFEHHE - AEEEBS
FERITDAMNEE2021F12831 8 1H121E A
ZHTERR ZFELE -

HZE2020512A31HILFEHH - ASEERS
EERRITHEEN2019F g —FEH E20205F9
AB0RE=FRN12E A 2 %#%& - LAEERTA
MEBEEESENAEE2020F E N BHREE H
RELE - WEF&FH2020F10 71 H E2020F 12
A3BBEZEARG REENMBEHE -

BA - B 5 2R R E A AN £ B 72 25 152021 6 1Y) B 75 3R
LB ERRITEE2021F12 318 IEFERE
BB INAHR o

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the results of BOCQ were
included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial statements
announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the results of BOCQ were
included by the Group by combining the results attributable to the 12
months’ period from the last quarter of 2019 to the first three quarters
ended 30 September 2020 which were published by BOCQ up to the
date that the 2020 annual financial statements of the Group were
approved by the Board of Directors for issue, and taking into account
the financial effect of significant transactions or events in the period
from 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.

The above changes are made because the results of BOCQ for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are publicly available by the time these
2021 financial statements of the Group are issued.
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23. BZEATRE @)
() EEFRTZREMKEEN @)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

20214 20205
12A31H 9H30H
At At
31 December 30 September
2021 2020
ERBITZEEEERABER Selected balance sheet information of
BOCQ
B R RIRITR LR Cash and balances with central banks 45,612,239 43,885,655
e E At 3R1T I & Bl AR Due from other banks and financial
institutions 54,969,190 66,139,034
HEERRER Loans and advances to customers 376,276,117 306,971,588
Hi e mEE Other financial assets 268,688,065 221,986,438
Hin &z Other assets 13,365,802 12,754,357
BEAG Total assets 758,911,413 651,737,072
e R RERTT Due to central banks 62,080,178 96,750,478
BERER - ERRITREMESR Customer deposits, and amounts due to
HiE5oa banks and other financial institutions 431,920,104 370,884,276
HiemaR Other financial liabilities 198,505,347 126,469,718
HEiatd Other liabilities 6,023,426 7,846,215
BEA Total liabilities 698,529,055 601,950,687
Bmbes Total equity 60,382,358 49,786,385
ks - BEBIT2BER Less: Preferred shares issued (6,019,400)  (5,850,240)
kR« R IR HIREAR R Less: Non-controlling interests (2,419,756)  (2,084,751)
LR RIS S AT Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 51,943,202 41,851,394
EESITZ R ER AT Reconciliation of BOCQ's total shareholders’
RRITER A I BIME AN Z equity to the carrying amount in the
IREEHIRR Bank’s consolidated financial statements
RERITRE(H IR R R AR The Bank’s share of total shareholders’
equity 6,855,608 6,137,403
- ERBERATERE Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment at
acquisition 367,343 406,524
Hk - RBE Less: Impairment (2,992,000)  (2,266,000)
BREE Carrying amount 4,230,951 4,277,927

KFIRITAR AR 2021FF 4

189



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. BEQTFIKRE @) 23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
() EERITZREMEER @ (a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)
20215 20204
12A31H 64308
At At
31 December 30 June
2021 2020
[EREERITZ AR BERARE Share of BOCQ's contingent liabilities and
commitments 9,919,288 8,897,871
20215 20194
1818 10A1H
220215 Z20204F
12A31H 9H30H
1H12{8 8 1H12{8 A
12 months 12 months
from from
1 January 1 October
2021 to 2019 to
31 December 30 September
2021 2020
BRI EERERER Selected income statement information of
BOCQ
SFRBUA Net interest income 13,994,140 11,571,802
FRIEEBE KA KA Net fee and commission income 927,758 1,563,508
ERBBER Loan impairment charges (6,155,105)  (4,995,097)
IR Tax expense (1,488,054)  (1,300,839)
FREEA Profit for the year 5,863,517 5,011,428
Hin 2 EU Other comprehensive income 372,671 (39,250)
FHEKEEEE Total comprehensive income 6,236,188 4,972,178
BIRERRITIRE Dividend received from BOCQ 206,338 118,387
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23. KENTRE®

(2) REZRBENAKRR2021 FRE 2R
=1

R2021F12A318 * AEEEEERITZKEZ
ATHEBRREEEARLSE At - AEEFE
HIESEERTZIE 2 REEETRE R AT
AU B &5 o

BEARLHAGFEERBE(TEREER]) ME
EZEERTAIWNESBNZIRE ZRHE - £
REENRBEEE[HEZEERRITARFFRE
RS - MEERERRITHHMEHZER
REEFER ZFERARRNAERFEE  EH
R\ REFRRFE - BERAREREEHEZ
BERE T2 Z RN R TI5EE 2 EERITRA
AT EE ©

ETEREEFEASEZKREZIRESHE
B ARBERMARBRAREETSEHLE
ERARARRFTEEREEI2HAE - HET
BIEHARRE B EERTT 2 RGN R EIER
EERITARKAFBEZPHRERTSRE
EHEEBRTZAKRERETETEETREE
E2HE -

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
BOCQ had been below the carrying amount for approximately 8 years.
On this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment test on the
carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the recoverable
amount.

The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable amount
of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation, with the
carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses discounted
cash flow projections based on management’s estimates of BOCQ'’s
earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the estimated probable
exit value in future after considering the growth of BOCQ and its net
asset value for the medium and longer term. The discount rate applied
to the VIU calculation was estimated with reference to BOCQ’s cost of
equity, which is publicly available in the market.

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.
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23. BZEATRE @)

(Z) BEZRERRRR2021 FEEBZH
B (@)

RIBEBEAA TtEH2021FE12 A31 BEAEE
/%4,231,000,000% 7T + & FTERA 2 EABRE

BRBIRE L

BETR

FIUAE SR TR 8 B2 R B B B (Y
AR

TRMAERERAA BN ENSEARSR S
SUEREEOYE - L THERREFAEEY
SE—EABRIWENHEE - SR—BHH
8/ I By B S JRAT BB R — RS R o

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021 (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the combinations of scenarios underlying
our calculated VIU of HK$4,231 million as at 31 December 2021 are as
follows:

Z2025F 152 A
NF6%ZET%  EIREFF 5%
Ranging from 6% — 7%

Annual profit growth rate

in the near term up to 2025,

and 5% per annum thereafter

29.3%

Discount rate 13.34%

Price-to-book ratio (“PB ratio”) 0.66
for estimation of potential future

Dividend payout ratio

recovery value under different
holding periods

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of changes to key
assumptions which management considers as reasonable and possible.
The following summary reflects the sensitivity of the VIU in response to
the change of each key assumption. It is possible that more than one
favourable and/or unfavourable change may occur at the same time.

BHlnwEe ARlpEe
Favourable change Unfavourable change
EREEN EREEN
L Tk
Increase  fEAEE Decrease  EFAEE
(AE#ET) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) in VIU ViU inVIU ViU
FERFERE Annual profit growth rate +1.0% 76 4307 1.0% (76) 4155
AR St Dividend payout ratio N/A N/A N/A -6.3% (99) 4132
MRE Discount rate -25E2 54 4285 +255% (54) 4177
-25 bps +25 bps
QLS PB ratio +HE 50 4,281 1% (50) 4,181
+1 pt -1 pt
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23. KENTRE®

(Z) BEZRERRRR2021 FEEBZH
B (@)

REEZE2021F12A31B ZARRTEZEE LME
AMRER B 8RS TR R 2 [ P RE A B B f e T i
TZiHE At E R 2 ERBEREZ RTEHE
HEAZ(EBEHE2020F12A31HEBRZ R
FTRERR) MG ERZEMETE 2 TR E &5
TNERBREAE - AEE 5202112431 H 2tk
SETTBITREAR - RELTEFERABEERZ
A B4 & RE TS AR R F0BR 8 2 20206F12 A31H
2 25t ERT122,266,000,00078 7014 2 BRE(E
X7 BB 18 % ¥ 4 726,000,00078 7T © E It 0 R
2021 £F 4F [ T 529 15 Rl B 7 5 726,000,000 7T
AR I E 2 (B{E=4,231,000,000/5 T °

ATEANRITCEART R KW EBDIEZIRE 2R
BAMN  HARTUREERTZE SR SR
Ih o B ZIRERITERNI =R VIRIEEKR A Z
1,213,000,000/8 7T - %I & Z MBS TR E AR
TZEARFRLLE -

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2021 (Continued)

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31
December 2021 which takes into account the sensitivity of the key
assumptions shown above and the effects of possible interaction of
these assumptions, the recoverable amount, as determined by the
VIU calculation and after considering all relevant factors (including
the cumulative impairment charge having been recognised as of 31
December 2020) and valuation assumptions, remained below the
carrying amount. The latest impairment test performed by the Group for
the position as at 31 December 2021 concludes that the recoverable
amount, based on the VIU calculation, is assessed as lower than the
carrying amount, after deducting the cumulative impairment allowance
made up to 31 December 2020 of HK$2,266 million, by HK$726 million.
As a result, an additional impairment charge of HK$726 million was
recognised in the year of 2021 to reduce the value of the investment to
HK$4,231 million.

The calculation of the Bank’s capital adequacy does not include the
retained earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ cash dividend
received by the Bank. Provided that the investment continues to be
held at or above the original cost of the investment of HK$1,213 million,
impairment made on the investment does not affect the Bank’s capital
adequacy.
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24, HEEZEHERKRE 24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES
2021 2020
JE LT « IREAR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEAE W12 s Share of post-acquisition reserves 94,373 85,553
114,373 105,553
720214 22020412 A 31 B A £ [E42 5] & 82 a0 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2021
T ¢ and 2020:
LREERZESL
fi it 26 FTEERRLE I Percentage of
2 Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
REERB R A A B8 REER - BE
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
REMETEAR AR B8 MBS EL - B
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
REERAERRA BB BiER¥K - BB
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
ERBHIERR AR AR 2 A ARRITIFA - MR The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
BT AR A A M IREE & B AR A A Jh SR B4 Bk Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
BRARIZE2EHE AR ° Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium Holding
Limited.
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25. BERELEE 25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EFER
CE BROER BREE
BREE ENEE Customer
HE Contract Core deposit  relationship [k &%
Goodwill  intangibles  intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
2021F1A18 K At1 January 2021 and
2021612 A31H 31 December 2021 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2TERE/ B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2021F1 A1B % At 1 January 2021 and
2021F12A31H 31 December 2021 98,239 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 276,098
REE Carrying value
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 713,451 - - - 58,252 771,703
RP#R
BH ‘LR B AR
EVEE EEE Customer
G Contract ~ Core deposit  relationship &l BF
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles ~ Trade name Total
A Cost
2020F1A1B K% At 1 January 2020 and
2020F12A31H 31 December 2020 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2TERE Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
202041518 At 1 January 2020 - 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 177,859
RERTHR Impairment charge 98,239 - - - - 98,239
2020612318 At 31 December 2020 98,239 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 276,098
REE Carrying value
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 713,451 - - - 58,252 771,703
EFEAMBREBFEERRGN  BOBFARE Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
FPRAREREERUARERRERENT5E12F intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised
ZPAIREHEE o B AERERBRY S FF A over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
AR ERE K AR AR RITAERESR © balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of indefinite life
and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.
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25. BERETEE®@ 25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
HENEERENF BEERERE —BNEBS Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
BERAZHReEABN([BREELSM]) - B identified according to business segments in line with the internal
BHBEZSWT o management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.
"t P
Hong Kong Macau
BZERIT B A S8R4T BIMRIT
Corporate Personal Overseas &5
Banking Banking Banking Total
B Cost
2021F1 /18 & At 1 January 2021 and
2021412H31H 31 December 2021 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
Z2ERE Accumulated impairment
2021F1 A1 & At 1 January 2021 and
2021412A31H 31 December 2021 98,239 - - 98,239
BREE Carrying value
2021512H31H At 31 December 2021 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
6 P
Hong Kong Macau
BERIT & ARTT TBINRTT
Corporate Personal Overseas A&F
Banking Banking Banking Total
B Cost
2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690
B HHAGE) Reclassification (Note) (98,239) 98,239 - =
2020%12H31H At 31 December 2020 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
2FERE Accumulated impairment
2020F1 A1H At 1 January 2020 — - - -
BEET R Impairment charge 98,239 = = 98,239
2020%12H31H At 31 December 2020 98,239 - - 98,239
AREE Carrying value
2020%12H31H At 31 December 2020 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
o R2020%F  EREREMNESIE R IERKS ~ Note: During 2020, part of the goodwill under Corporate Banking was transferred
B BHORDERITTINEEEWESEART to Personal Banking following the change in the management and
T e reporting line of a business unit.
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25. BEREFEEE®
(a) BEREFEEIRERR

HEESFERENR  HHEBETE 2 EAE
EBMEEZRCELEMADIRSE - ZiTEE
RHEEEIEABM&ES - ASFT 812 TR
e KERTEASFEREBNEEFERE
2%HEBIEESF AR EXKE - Z5FtElmmEER
AEBEREUBBRECELBN EBRZER
FATERIEE B N RSB (R 1B 2 sTAS P AR 51 o BT FE R
ZBRIR R TR E N A K B 2 B AR AN INiE T 2K
11.12% (20204 : 9.97%) °

RS FETZREARTERASRBRREEL
R 52 3% il A HE B K LA HA 5+ 21 2 TR Uk
A - BHERIZESFLAME TR - FTEA ZBIRER
11.12%(2020%F : 9.97%) JIEERAEE 2 EA
B DA 39 £ -

AN E TR RS R R B R EE 1R o 732020
F ERESEASGHN]EREEENHERE
B SEEEABRTHEERTRERERED
2 B E A B (U B R R R (B 4 598,239,000

JG °

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash flow
projections prepared by the Senior Management based on the latest
5-year business plan, taking into account projected annual growth
rate of net profit, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth rate
after the fifth year. The 5-year business plan was developed by the
Senior Management based on their evaluation of the businesses and
associated projected discounted cash flow of net profit of the relevant
CGU and the conditions in which such businesses will operate over
the projection period. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s
weighted average cost of capital at 11.12% (2020: 9.97%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity after the
fifth year. The discount rate of 11.12% (2020: 9.97%) used is based on
the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

No impairment loss on goodwill and trade name were identified in the
year. During 2020, the Senior Management had decided to recognise
a goodwill impairment charge of HK$98,239,000 for the CGU of the
equipment finance business of Corporate Banking given that the
recoverable amount of the equipment finance business under this CGU
is lower than the carrying value.
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26. FEBLF

R2021F12A31H * NRTTZEEMB AR W0

T

AR EH
Name of company

26. SUBSIDIARIES

2021:

FTEXEYK

Principal activity

S it B
Place of incorporation

The following is a list of the Bank’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

BRTEBERRAE
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital

ARFERTT (B BR QA

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
RIS IRTTIRGD IR A

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
RETRBERAR A A

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited
RHEFEERAR]

Dah Sing Nominees Limited

Dah Sing Properties Limited
AHTEHBRAF
Dah Sing Securities Limited

DSB BCM (1) Limited

DSB BCM (2) Limited

CWL Prosper Limited

ZEMEER AT

OK Finance Limited

BREUE(EB)BRAR

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited

HEREFRAR

Vanishing Border Investment
Services Limited

Wise Measure Limited

Reliable Associates Limited

Talent Union Holding Limited

$R1T

Banking

RIT

Banking

R4
Insurance broking
IR ARRTS
Nominee services
REZR
Investment holding
EHEE
Securities dealing
BREZR
Investment holding
REZR
Investment holding
MERE
Property investment
&

Money lending
ma

Inactive

MERIE

Property investment

MERE
Property investment
MERE
Property investment
MERE

Property investment

hEARKME
People’s Republic of China
iy

Macau

&5

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
RBRIHE
British Virgin Islands
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

RBRIEE
British Virgin Islands
RBRELHS
British Virgin Islands
KBRS
British Virgin Islands

RMB1,200,000,000

MOP225,000,000

HK$500,000

HK$100,000

HK$9,998

HK$10,000,000

HK$1

HK$1

US$1

HK$1,000

HK$450,000,000

HK$20

US$1

US$1

US$2
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26. MiEBDE @)

BRIBPI R ZEERTTAR D B BR A B (H22% #E a2 7
DSB BCM (1) Limited 2DSB BCM (2) Limited#
BN A ERREARBITE2EEERES °

BORPIERBRITRODAR AR ~ AFRT(PEH)
BRRR R L5 EEEAINEMK N AF
SN B RRIHETBLE

R#FER17 (P E) AR A F)H2008F7 A EH H K
AL - EARE A EE A R MBI 258 )
BIARAG|(EREE BEICRPIZED
&) o

27. TERHEMBEEEE

26. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2) Limited,
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China.

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

2021 2020

1TEE - 230 RS A Premises, furniture and equipment 3,219,846 3,203,229
FREEE Right-of-use assets 582,382 662,807
3,802,228 3,866,036
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27. TEREMGEETEE@® 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)
() 17E - KR REE (a) Premises, furniture and equipment
A
BERAE
Furniture,
equipment
TE and motor &%
Premises vehicles Total
HZE2020F12A318 IFFE Year ended 31 December 2020
FHEREFE Opening net book amount 2,393,976 420,327 2,814,303
iz Additions 8,618 128,492 137,110
HE Disposals - (3,163) (3,163)
FES L (M) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (70,905) (126,739) (197,644)
EHESR Exchange difference 6,956 4177 11,133
ENOERENERTE Reclassification from investment properties
to premises 441,490 - 441,490
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,780,135 423,094 3,203,229
202012 431H At 31 December 2020
(BN Cost 3,356,404 1,219,746 4,576,150
ZEME Accumulated depreciation (576,269) (796,652)  (1,372,921)
REFE Net book amount 2,780,135 423,094 3,203,229
HE2021512A31H L EE Year ended 31 December 2021
FHEREFE Opening net book amount 2,780,135 423,094 3,203,229
g Additions - 232,902 232,902
HE Disposals - (7,627) (7,627)
FrEZ L (M) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (76,455) (137,271) (213,726)
ERER Exchange difference 3,249 1,819 5,068
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,706,929 512,917 3,219,846
2021512831H At 31 December 2021
PR Cost 3,360,201 1,387,523 4,747,724
ZEME Accumulated depreciation (653,272) (874,606)  (1,527,878)
REFE Net book amount 2,706,929 512,917 3,219,846
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27. TEREMGEEEE@®)
() 7 - BRMRRZRE@

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZEREFERE The net book value of premises comprises:
2021 2020
TH{EH Leaseholds
EBERA ZTHIHELD Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE10ZE505F 2 &) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,346,945 2,411,069
FEBELAIMNE A 2 B4 Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FE10ZE504F 2 ) term lease (between 10-50 years) 359,984 369,066
2,706,929 2,780,135
(2) HE (b) Leases

IR AR B RAEEA 2 HEREE R

(i) EERUBHRIEZZEHE

MBARKANEREEZ 2 BIIRAT

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

20215 20204
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
EREEE Right-of-use assets
LJES Properties 582,382 662,807
HEEE Lease liabilities
(BEEHMEE RER) (included in other accounts
and accruals) 614,940 692,594

N FHRFEANHNEFTREEES
110,438,0007% 7T (20204F : 439,890,000/%
JL) °

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2021 financial year
were HK$110,438,000 (2020: HK$439,890,000).
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27. TEREMEEEE@® 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
(2) HE@m (b) Leases (Continued)
(i) BERRUBRZLHE (ii) Amounts recognised in the income statement
WaBRAEBBE 2 SREIIRIAT ¢ The income statement shows the following amounts relating to
leases:
Bi7E
Note 2021 2020
ERREEZITEXE Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets
ES Properties 11 192,366 194,673
FEFZH(PHEEMESZH-—HESE) Interest expense (included
in interest expense
— lease liabilities) 7 9,654 10,574
EARHERREREEZSH Expense relating to short-term
(PRETEREMEEEES L leases and low-value assets
TRIEHE) (included in premises and
other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation) 11 4,800 4,303

21 FRNEBBAEZRES R E
199,800,0007% 7T (20204 :
JL) ©

193,822,000/

(iii) FEEHEEZERAUTARK

AEBHEZIEYE - K20204F £ 20214 -
HEAR—MBIFRIF 2 E T HREB AL
B RS L T51) (iv) Skl 2 TERIE 1S4 o

HERRERNBEABEEREEZTEZITR
fiR TR B fR A Kﬂfu”ﬁﬁ/\%ﬁffﬁ SCEEZE

RiE=IN - HES R RINEARL - B
BEZEEDFFTENEERE ERIFERRY -

(iv) ZRRAILEZEE

RERKIDEEEARBREAKERITZET
MEHER - RAKEERERNZERERZ
BEMS  EAZSEATERRELEE
AN e RZHHFA LR R IDEEER ]
RAERE MR HBEAITHRE

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was HK$199,800,000
(2020: HK$193,822,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2020 and
2021, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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28. REME 28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2021 2020
1H1H At 1 January 682,911 1,208,641
BN EREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises
—EHHAFEEE — Fair value of investment properties
reclassified = (441,490)
iz Additions 68,806 -
BHEAFENE () Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation 4,636 (84,240)
12H31H At 31 December 756,353 682,911
RERFE 2 EEEWGRRFR Unrealised gains or losses recognised
BERER 2 A B IR e ok B 18 in income statement relating to those
assets held at the end of the year
— N EWE(EE) — Fair value gains/(losses) 4,636 (84,240)
FEYEZ REFERSE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2021 2020
TR Leaseholds
ERBRFE 2R EHELD Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE10E504F 2 ) lease (between 10-50 years) 633,150 554,740
TEEBLAINGTB 2 EEA Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FE10Z=504F 2 &) term lease (between 10-50 years) 123,203 128,171
756,353 682,911
STEREMEZATE Fair value measurement of investment properties

REER20214F 5202012 A31 H AR E W
BEETT B o W ERB EESTASA
F-ATFEAET(HEREERER)BRAR AN
REBRFRBRZIEENERE - K FER M
CRFY)BR AR BMNRAE 2 HENMELREEL
BHESBRARBEEELF AR 2E Z HUY
FHRHAP R ACBRPRHETT ©

MZEEAYEZ MEER - HEFBWB®mE
EHIE1FUAFEFFE)FZAFEEE KL
B ARTS2HEENS 2= MEENYIER

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2021 and 2020 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment properties in
Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.
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28. REWEm)
STEREVMEZAFE@®
KEMENKRIG AR 2 8RB REER A
STEAYE EWOoBRERA T AR BNERE
EHFE1FAFEAE)P A FESHNEIR
| o

b ]

T EREMENEER HR—HFEKEAR
I RS - Hb B R E R A = NEF R RN RAE
BT R E BALER - TS ZBENTE
F750R 1,938 70 (20204F : 1,928 L) EFFH
IR 116,00055 7T (20204F : 114,000/67T) - $HEE
UEROTREERREME L AFEFZ=EE
FEE D LERE D - RZINA o

NWAREBEENTEZBEERAFEZREDE
BRI EIRFRARBEELLREEZ BZTE
E2 X MBEHEAERKAZBNET - RFEF
EEMSHSKIERBREE  BEmERaXKE
ERERAR -

WARBEEECIDETATBR 28R

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are classified as
Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
value measurement”.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was the
unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual factors
such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from HK$1,938
(2020: HK$1,928) to HK$116,000 (2020: HK$114,000) per square
foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair value
measurement of the investment properties by the same percentage and
vice versa.

For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using the
income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted on the
basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance for outgoings
and reversionary income potential. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market rental and inversely correlated to the
market yields.

Unobservable inputs on income capitalisation approach:

fh1ET % THERZ8E HE

Valuation technique(s) Unobservable input(s) Range

REMHE WARBEEETE s e 2 2.00%%3.10%
(s k%)

Investment properties Income capitalisation Market yields 2.00% to 3.10%
approach (reversionary yield)

iR ziikn FFHR28E T EIMETT
Market rental HK$28 to HK$94 per square foot
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. HhEE 29. OTHER ASSETS
2021 2020
FEWRIE R IEIE Accounts receivable and prepayments 4,289,797 5,668,310
FEEHIA Accrued income 865,354 886,868
Efth Others 141,347 190,369
5,296,498 6,745,547
30. BHEEERENERE 30. TRADING LIABILITIES
2021 2020
ThZE BB & EE S Short sales of treasury bills and treasury
bonds 1,511,927 1,570,675
31. EFER 31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2021 2020
BT R R AERTR Demand deposits and current accounts 48,639,038 53,780,706
HEFER Savings deposits 41,505,926 40,948,121
FH - BAREHER Time, call and notice deposits 106,877,477 96,512,854
197,022,441 191,241,681

BRHEADERE N A AR 2 B a2 75K
13,304,000 7T (20204 : 18,222,000 L) & £
A H AR B RFERRIET

BREH - BARERERIN  AAEEMEPER
BERERER

Deposits of HK$13,304,000 (2020: HK$18,222,000) held as collateral
for irrevocable commitments under import letters of credit were reported

under other accounts and accruals.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.

KFERITAR AT 2021 FF 3§
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32. ERTHERE

32. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2021 2020
TR R @B T DA B AN At amortised cost with fair value
MAE AN TEE TR BR hedge adjustments
(for hedging interest rate risk) 6,489,717 1,561,697
R AR AT AR At amortised cost 100,000 6,564,105

520214 2202048 79 - A K BARAGRETERES
AR B TFRE A AT E B A RS
StAEIE -

AEEE N FCETHEREPERE OEN
H) & B8 A £ AT 2 BR T {8 = 11,000,000 7% 7T
(20204 : 1£1,000,000787T) °

33. REEH

6,589,717 8,125,802

During 2021 and 2020, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$11 million
higher (2020: HK$1 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES

2021 2020
RERF R R T A SR AN M A& ATE At amortised cost with fair value
¥R AR hedge adjustments
(for hedging interest rate risk):
250,000,000 7T 742026 5 2 HA#Y US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELBERBGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2026 (Note (a)) - 1,964,475
225,000,000 7T 7420294 I B ) US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELBEER(GE(Z)) Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (b)) 1,810,359 1,863,983
300,000,000 7T 720314 E| Hi Y US$300,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELBERERGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2031 (Note (c)) 2,318,087 —

R20214F ) 20205 A - NEBERA R VIATER R
EEEMREBEHRARATFEFELEZHA

135 -

E\

4,128,446 3,828,458

During 2021 and 2020, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.
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(2)

BESE @

bt 75 AN 98 17 74 2016 £ 11 A 30 H #F 1T 2
250,000,000 TAEBERER H ([ BAERXFA])
EARGAEERBENMRRE A -REAN
105 HiE B A EER ([ ERF ) (BB T EBCRT
E(BER)BRBDZIER) - WEEH 720265
11 A30E 28 - I 148 A 52021511 A30
A o ANRITER2021 F 2 EEB I SETS -

I J5 A ER7TH 2019451 A 158 %47 2. 225,000,000
ETEBBR S LT REGEEERGE N
REAZFERHI0FHE SARERER([ER])
(BETEB(RITEERN)RADZIER) - 1LEF
B 2020F1 B15 B EH - iBBEMEER A
20241 A15H - BEITHEHEREEER -
FRR5%  BEFME—IR - &g - MEBKR
EREMEERED AN ESETAER
SEHIXB B EES B R M558 T - HRISEE
¢ ERIEEIE  ARITAINZEEEEEBMRAE
(3B ) B - ANERITINE B —BIRRERITRI L A
KR A4 4 K ER ) B E R B IR A AR TTIRTT
B S AR B S5

b T5 AR 77722021411 A 2 H %47, 2.300,000,000
ETEBBR S LT RS EZERGE N
REARRERN10FHE BRERER([EH])
(BETEB(RITEBR)RADZIER) - LE
B R2031 511 A2H 28 - BEBHEER A
2026F11 A2H - AETHEHERUEER -
FRR3%  BEFMB—IR - Hi& - MEKR
FEREMEERED AN ESETAER
SFHEBREEES S ENM1952F - EEBES
& ERIBEE - ARITAIAZEEBEEBME
(3B ) &R - AIRITINE B —BIBRERITR L A
K HAA X015 B 00 [E E A SRR R LA TR T
B B AR Z B S -

AEBENHSREEHIPHEZEANEMNN S
ER8 DA _E BT 5| 2 BR 8 {£.35,000,000 7% 7T (2020
F : {K146,000,000/5 7T ) °

33.

Note:

SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel |1l compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 30
November 2016 (the “Notes”), which were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes had a maturity date on 30
November 2026 with an optional redemption date falling on 30 November
2021. The Bank had fully repaid the Notes in 2021.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 January 2029 with an optional redemption date falling on
15 January 2024. Interest at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the
issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at
the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The
Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$300,000,000 Basel |1l compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 2
November 2021 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes
will mature on 2 November 2031 with an optional redemption date falling
on 2 November 2026. Interest at 3% p.a. is payable semi-annually from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 195 basis
points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international
bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$35 million

lower (2020: HK$146 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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34. EZLEHIR
BELXERREERBBENHERIEREBRIERITHE

HI[R] — T IS AR 5 P T - HEH 2 & A
T~

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2021 2020
B EEE Deferred income tax assets 120,418 124,680
REBFIREE Deferred income tax liabilities (14,977) (11,598)

EEVBREERABERBERZRZHRER R
Bl ST 2 TEEF B BTN -

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date of
recovery and settlement are as follows:

2021 2020
FERRTBEEE Deferred income tax assets:
— AJTE12E B g 4Bl 2 IR A & B — Deferred income tax assets
to be recovered after more than
12 months 271,748 255,876
FERIEBE ¢ Deferred income tax liabilities:
— 12 AR ERE ZREFRIARE — Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after more than
12 months (166,307)  (142,794)
105,441 113,082

IEETIRAR B BT -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2021 2020
1A1H At 1 January 113,082 97,923
R ESBR AR TE R () Tax credited/(charged) to the income
(KtzE14) statement (Note 14) 4,847 (11,109)
RiEzERAFIE () /Bl Tax (charged)/credited to equity
(Pf7E38) (Note 38) (17,362) 21,423
EHER Exchange difference 4,874 4,845
12H31H At 31 December 105,441 113,082
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34. IEFEBIIE @) 34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
EERBEERABRAFEZES - TRER The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
HRBOEEEE TH 2 AT year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
BEEBEEE : Deferred income tax assets:
B
EEREBE EEX
Impairment RHEM
allowances Deferred REEM
and expensesand  Investment &t
provisions others revaluation Total
20201518 At 1 January 2020 196,787 61,073 - 257,860
PR AE R () Credited/(charged) to the income
statement 5,057 (11,886) = (6,829)
EHER Exchange difference 3,024 1,821 - 4,845
2020F12A431H & At 31 December 2020 and
2021F181H 1 January 2021 204,868 51,008 - 255,876
RUzSEERER (S H) Credited/(charged) to the income
statement 12,417 (1,701) - 10,716
PARERS AR A B 18 Credited to equity - - 282 282
EHER Exchange difference 1,255 3,619 - 4,874
2021%F12A31H At 31 December 2021 218,540 52,926 282 271,748
BLEREBESE: Deferred income tax liabilities:
NERBHE REWEER
Accelerated Investment REEf
& tax properties Investment a3t
Provisions depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
202051 A1H At 1 January 2020 14,843 83,875 4,337 56,882 159,937
PR BR A (1) / (Credited)/charged to the income
Xt statement (7,117) 11,862 (465) - 4,280
B R AR A e Credited to equity 1 - - (21,424) (21,423)
20204124318 1 At 31 December 2020 and
2021F151R 1 January 2021 1,727 95,737 3,872 35,458 142,794
IERAZ L/ Charged/(credited) to the income
(%) statement 3,726 2,490 (347) = 5,869
MERIRAS Charged to equity - - - 17,644 17,644
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 11,453 98,227 3,525 53,102 166,307
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34. EEBIE@)
YRR RERSERA (IH) /B8 2 IR TR IE

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year is
as follows:

2021 2020
RIRER R 2 A AR Fair value reserves in shareholders’
equity:
— DARER 2 B A BB A K 2 EUESH) — financial assets at fair value through
SR E (fI7E38) other comprehensive income
(Note 38) (17,362) 21,423

35. BB QR 2R

RAMBHARERARE BREKERRR KRB
RIFFETR I MEL ZEHRFTINT

35. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions are
balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies arising
from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:

2021 2020

BERMHEAMWERE Advances and other accounts 591 580
%}E'ﬁﬂ Deposits from customers 143,717 1,031,024
HhERE KTERE Other accounts and accruals 121 313

RAMBAREARE BRERRHERR.ZE
BREFFIIAT

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions are
balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:

2021 2020
ZHEERLEMEEE Advances and other accounts 7,545 6,888
LY SYEE N Deposits from customers 1,957,011 309,312
HibfRE kiaR Other accounts and accruals 18,038 15,411
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36. ARRBRAERE
() BAXERE

R12A31BERB RIDRIRRER 2 BTEE Mg
ANEIEBE 2 ERFLEMT ¢

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets
as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2021 2020

EROBERERERZAX

(2) FEESE

FEBEEEBRIVEERETEFZERMIA
BRTBEREEERRINEEENT

Expenditure contracted but not

provided for 102,589 198,240

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

ERLHE

Contract amount
2021 2020
BEEREERES Direct credit substitutes 1,383,242 645,720
EAZX B HRE 2 S NIEE Transaction-related contingencies 496,192 537,138
R S HREE 2 AR E Trade-related contingencies 703,597 846,898

AEGHEUB M N ETE L B2 &k Commitments that are unconditionally

cancellable without prior notice 69,241,096 72,035,740
H A AdE Other commitments 4,304,623 4,423,624
76,128,750 78,489,120

EERMESREE

Credit risk weighted amount

2021 2020
R BB A Contingent liabilities and commitments 2,454,143 1,574,554

(B B DR B TR IR GRAT 2 (A AN 42 BB
5 o

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.

KFIRITAR AR 2021FF 4
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36. JABBRAE@

(A) EEERZEE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

2021 2020
EEFZHEEERALEER Trading assets and financial
TRREIEBRER investments pledged to secure
liabilities 2,593,024 3,128,437
—Hr RO EE R — of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,518,732 1,556,626
ERzEBEDRE Amount of liabilities secured 2,585,362 3,123,207
—Hr  REEE R — of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,510,862 1,551,207

ERIIREERRANEEMR L ERMEREE
RZEBE - ZFERXZDREBFREENERRZ S
(BIEE B MR E EAREA R RER A
B2 IR ) IGETT -

(T) EEBERE

WAKEZ AR RHEA - RAFATBUEYEL S
HEMRARREY 2 RERENRAETELLT -

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to
secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These transactions
are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to
collateralized transactions including repurchase agreements, and
include assets pledged to cover short positions and to facilitate

settlement processes with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating leases

are as follows:

2021 2020
1FE AR Within 1 year 14,584 16,180
16224 Between 1 and 2 years 3,721 11,521
2FEIF Between 2 and 3 years 891 839
19,196 28,540

N - REBEAEEA - B1R2021F &20204F In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number of leases

12A31 BRI A TIARMIGZAE - HZEHE
e (2 FHE B EEA 5T 4528,982,000/% 7T
(20204 : 28,953,000/ 7T ) °

as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 that have not yet commenced.
The aggregate lease payments payable under these leases amount to

HK$28,982,000 (2020: HK$28,953,000).

37. B& 37. SHARE CAPITAL
2021 2020
BE B A& &k %N
ZER Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
ERITRBEZRKRAE issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1H1BX12H31H At 1 January and 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 62,000,000 6,200,000

2021F 12 A31HE BT EEBRBRHEE AT A
62,000,000/% (20204F : 62,000,000f%) ° FTAE
BT B 28T -

The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2021
is 62 million shares (2020: 62 million shares). All issued shares are fully

paid.
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38. & 38. RESERVES
TEEf REER NRARE REEA
i i il A (&)
BARE Premises  Investment EiGE —#F%E  Reservefor Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General  Share-based Earnings fit
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
2021%151A At 1 January 2021 8,827 233,100 335,843 18,199 700,254 15,334 20,847,169 22,158,726
AHERGENELRAEMER  Fair value loss realised and transferred
IATEEEEEHA  toincome statement upon disposal
E2EUEOEBIEE of debtinstuments at fair value
SR RELEIER through other comprehensive income
upon derecognition - - (4,993) - - - - (4,993)
IVAT{EEHE B AL Net change in fair value of debt
2ERENEFIAZATE  instuments atfair value through
2938 other comprehensive income - - 69,682 - - - - 69,682
[l RER g AREN Share of other comprehensive income
BERR At 2 ENE of an associate accounted for using
the equity method - - 44,040 - - - - 44,040
IWATEHEEEEH AL Netchange in fair valug of equity
FENGERERIETEZATE instruments at fair value through
o) other comprehensive income - - (1,176) - - - - (1,176)
REEEREZYZELEHE  Deferred income tax on movements in
(Fiz¥34) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 34) - - (17,362) - - - = (17,362)
PATEHEEEEEI AL Netchange in allowance for expected
SEANGENEBIEZESE  oredilosses of debt instruments
EEBREREYTE at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 7,388 - - - - 7,388
RN ENAR Reclassification of net change in fair
IATEFFEEEZEEA  value of equity instruments at fair
El2EREOESETAZ  value through other comprehensive
ATEZEFE income upon derecognition - - 33,619 - - - (33,619) -
BIMERITTAZRESUE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (41,325) (41,325)
RERIEENBER Exchange differences arising on
HEXZER translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - - 207,164 - - - 207,164
DA ST RARR(EARRE  Provision for equity-settled share-based
THz BEREMEE compensation and other adjustment - - - - - 480 - 480
EERT Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,638,425 1,638,425
2020FRERE 2020 final dividend - - - - - - (291,400) (291,400)
0NERHRE 2021 interim dividend - - - - - - (13500 (139,500)
2021%12A31A At 31 December 2021 8,827 233,100 467,041 225,363 700,254 15,814 21,979,750 23,630,149
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38. fEiEw@

38. RESERVES (Continued)

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2021 2020
BENMRERNAZ Proposed final dividend/final dividend
BORREAR S, BIRAER S paid included in retained earnings
(B¥zE16) (Note 16) 310,000 291,400
2 Note:

RIRITANEE BB AEKRBEEMEIRE LRI
PASNZ BARIBUERE S - M5B B RS (R ERT ORI
FRTT RARFIRTT (P E)) I BT 6 BB IRTT R RH S A
FEEERANZAMEERTE - ZEERFERR K
BETRRZFRSR EERBIEHAETESER
HEITHAR 0 WEHERN SRR -

7K2021F12 431 H + ANiR1TE 5 E 432,194,0007%8 7T
(20204F : 502,278,000/ 70) & EEEAEE FEETIR
HHARA —RFHE - REBRARTZEEREEFF

BT °

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$432,194,000 (2020: HK$502,278,000) first against the consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against the
consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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38. f@E®@) 38. RESERVES (continued)
fIEEM REEMR NROEE REARH
[l [l el ke (i)
ek Premises Investment Bl —#%5%E  Reservefor Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation Exchange General  Share-based Earnings B
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
2020F1A41H At 1 January 2020 8,827 233,100 415,026 (369,660) 700,254 14,514 19,983,512 20,985,573

NFERENEILRAEHER  Fair value gain realised and transferred
IATEHEEEZHHTA  toincome statement upon disposal
Ef2ENEOERTAE  of debtinstruments at fair value
ERRENENEE through other comprehensive income
upon derecognition - - (13,448) - - - - (13,448)
IVAT(EFEEEZE AL Net change in fair value of debt
2EREHEFIAZATE  instruments at fair value through

2870 other comprehensive income - - (78,222) - - - - (78,222)
[l RER g AREN Share of other comprehensive income
BERR At 2 ENE of an associate accounted for using
the equity method - - 382 - - - - 382
IAT(EHEEEEHH AL Net change in fair valug of equity
FENGNERIET AL instruments at fair value through
ATERSFR other comprehensive income - - (1,387) - - - - (1,387)
REEEREZYZEEHE  Deferred income tax on movements in
(Fi334) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 34) - - 21423 - - - - 21,423

WATEHEEEEEI AL Netchange in allowance for expected
SENEOEBIAZES  creditlosses of debtinstruments

GEBEEEED TS at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 6,422 - - - - 6,422
PR IERERR - EXAE Reclassification of net change in fair

INATEFFEEEZEA  value of equity instruments at fair
Eth2ERRAOESMTEZ  value through other comprehensive

PNTIE ) income upon derecognition - - (13,853) - - - 13,853 -
BIVERIETAZRETE  Distrioution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (41,266) (41,266)
RERIEENBRE Exchange differences arising on
HELZE translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - - 387,859 - - - 387,859
DA RIARR D ERERE  Provision for equity-settled share-based
B BERAHHE compensation and other adjustment - - - - - 820 (352) 468
EERT Profit for the year - - - - - - 1475462 1,475,462
WIYERIRE 2019 final dividend = = = = = = @200 (471,200
20205HBRE 2020 interim dividend - - - - - - (112,840 (112,840)
2020127318 At 31 December 2020 8,827 233,100 335,843 18,199 700,254 15,334 20,847,169 22,158,726
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39. FIMERMTA

M2017F12A8H « NFITHITRHEEER G TE
Il 2 &R ¢ 5115,000,0003 7T 2 FEHA R JE 2 74
BEFER 2 BIN—RERES (I —BRERE
%) - HBRATEmEHRE -

HWEEESERBAART  REEELERK
HEZBRTEEER  RAMERIN—BRERE
HFRUHE - BAIKRRITHEREE - BIFEIN—R
BRERZ AR ERMBEER RS ERAER
TR e

AT HEHER2022512 A8H B2 EEH
I KRB F B R A4.625% » FHEFEINF—K -
Hig - WEIN—BRERNESFAWER - R3S X
BIAGSFER— X RERSTHERBRERES
BENMN248.58F - BEBEFEIN—RELAEF 21K
RGP 2 3 E - ARITERBUSIREE ST
1 REBUEZIRESZ T g R5T

HESEBSERREIE - RRITAIREZN
BREAYKRRZKEXNBAREEBERRE
(B D ) BEIN—REARES °

39. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

On 8 December 2017, the Bank issued Basel lll-compliant undated
non-cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the
“AT1 Capital Securities”) with a notional principal of US$115,000,000.
They were fully subscribed by DSFH.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to the
amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that in
the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that a write-off is
necessary, without which the Bank would become non-viable.

Distribution at 4.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date
to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2022. Thereafter,
if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed, the distribution rate will
be reset every 5 years and it will bear distribution at the then prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 248.5 basis points. The Bank has the
right to cancel distribution payment, subject to the requirement as set
out in the terms and conditions of the AT1 Capital Securities, and the
distribution cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at par
either on the optional redemption date or any distribution payment date
thereafter.
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40. ZEBESRBEERKE

() MilrE TREREEEEZWHERER
Al EERNEEEEH AR EFHE
HiRE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net
cash used in operating activities

2021 2020

nerE ¥%§&IE§FZW B REERZ
ieRics

FERSMA

P B fas

EERERR

e

RUBR [ U 1 2 B SR 5 B

VARS8 3215 AR AR 1 A EERE SR BN 2 Bk 5

EWAE
2B
EUAE

I
r@]

EEENABEIE 2 EEHT

S

SEEENAGZES

—REMERTNER LR R EE
3 A 2 BA N e B 3K

— R2|HI BRI (E A 2 R TH R

—R{EEEMENES
—TEERMIA
—UAHEFEAEZFA AN EENEREE

—BSER

—EPEX

— H At IR B

—AFE RSB AL EE
W& mMEE

— ARSI BRA £ REE B

— RN

—FHEEBERSENARE

_ﬁ)ﬁrﬂ)\

— BATIF

—HAbfERTER B RIER

E 3 1

R LB PTAMNIRE
XNEBETHEREZMNE

BHEBFIEH
BRI

REEBAARS TR

Operating profit before gains and losses
on certain investments and fixed assets 1,971,435 1,751,578

Net interest income (3,940,392) (3,685,364)
Dividend income (15,243) (5,942)
Credit impairment losses 373,343 646,968
Depreciation 406,092 392,317
Advances written off net of recoveries (276,162) (361,518)
Provision for equity-settled share-based

compensation 480 820
Interest received 5,839,811 6,134,840
Interest paid (1,056,820)  (2,465,493)
Dividend received 15,243 5,942

Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 3,317,787 2,414,148

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
— cash and balances with banks and
money at call and short notice with
an original maturity beyond three
months (1,047,941) 473,839
— placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three

months 1,771,401 (1,626,395)
— trading securities 2,475,892 2,184,413
— derivative financial instruments (1,251,065) 1,530,162
— financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (14,119) 328,768
— trade bills (462,726) (397,261)
— advances to customers (6,735,434) (630,014)
— other accounts receivable 1,427,535 (1,650,571)
— financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (661,325) (698,347)
— financial assets at amortised cost (2,240,061) (6,879,639)
— deposits from banks (1,797,245) 1,035,373
— trading liabilities (58,748)  (3,945,883)
— deposits from customers 5,780,760 7,697,204
— certificates of deposit issued (1,555,672) 1,374,183
— other accounts payable and accruals (388,259)  (3,624,521)
Exchange adjustments (36,653) (170,568)
Cash absorbed by operating activities (1,475,873)  (2,585,109)
Interest paid on certificates of deposit
issued (85,161) (159,356)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (525,728) (871,319)
Overseas tax paid (10,576) (22,291)
Net cash used in operating activities (2,097,338) (3,138,075)
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40. GZEBESHRELERMT @ 40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(2) ERERELERAN > HeRkERES (b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash

HEBEERBEATHEIBEARUTE and cash equivalents comprise the following balances

Bz Ro&Ee  REBESCEEAR with maturity of three months or less from the date of

MERENEREREREYBEZR acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to

Koo known amount of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

2021 2020
e RERITHAS R Cash and balances with banks 2,636,182 4,154,361
JREIE B FE3ME A sk A T 2 B0 KRG HiTF X Money at call and short notice with an
original maturity within three months 7,241,778 10,026,173
[REIEA A E3ME A sk A T 2 FESRI T TR Placements with banks with an original
maturity within three months 1,421,398 474,017
PRERBIFEERENESF N2 RERER Treasury bills included in trading
securities 2,304,220 482,991
BRERARTHESERSEZFHTA Treasury bills included in financial
Hit2EmmemEEN B ERE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 2,439,243 3,551,262
16,042,821 18,688,804
RESE BRAF AR R ER1THY 45£4£382,987,000/% 7T Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$382,987,000 (2020:
(20204 : 405,550,000/ 7)) B[ R & R ERE HK$405,550,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
®EA IRE TSR EEEEIRE RERTHLE purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
ERIBRIAT -
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40. ZEBERELERMTw@ 40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(A) BEEHRmEITH 8B YHES (c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
TRt AL @ﬁ RS ES s aEEs  oF The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
B4 RIEHLS 7 EH - BE mi‘iﬁéEﬂZEﬁ . f= activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
HIES AP RAKES R EeENER LTS from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were,
REAEENSEARBTEES R AE - or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
REREEE
ZEEEH
Total
HEAE ®EEK EMFIE  liabilities from
Lease  Subordinated Interest financing
liabilities notes payable activities
720201 A1H At 1 January 2020 436,517 5,510,181 92,656 6,039,354
HEREM EH Changes from financing cash flows:
INBETEEER Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REBRFZNE debt securities issued - - (229,021) (229,021)
Taﬁféf SE% Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,746,731) - (1,746,731)
BEHERE Repayment of lease liabilities (193,822) = = (193,822)
BARSR 2 2 BRd Total changes from financing cash flows (193,822) (1,746,731) (229,021) (2,169,574)
Hin&a) : \ Other changes:
BETRERBRERES Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
RIS debt securities issued - - 183,669 183,669
il f HEE ﬁ Additions to lease liabilities 439,890 - - 439,890
EH=R Exchange difference (565) (16,649) - (17,214)
%ﬁi‘TETsZﬂ B¥ i Interest expense on lease liabilities 10,574 = = 10,574
NFEEE) Fair value change = 81,657 = 81,657
At E 58 Total other changes 449,899 65,008 183,669 698,576
R2020%F12A31H At 31 December 2020 692,594 3,828,458 47,304 4,568,356
EHER Exchange difference 2,004 - - 2,004
120211518 At 1 January 2021 694,598 3,828,458 47,304 4,570,360
MERE 2 Changes from financing cash flows:
SRERTRE 15%% Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REBES2HE debt securities issued - - (170,924) (170,924)
BITIRERS Issue of subordinated notes - 2,320,246 - 2,320,246
BREEES Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,949,775) - (1,949,775)
EBEHEAR Repayment of lease liabilities (199,800) - - (199,800)
MERSR22BEH Total changes from financing cash flows (199,800) 370,471 (170,924) (253)
Hih &) \ Other changes:
BEETREEGREHES Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
2 TS debt securities issued - - 175,565 175,565
MEHEaE Additions to lease liabilities 110,438 - - 110,438
EHER Exchange difference 50 14,610 - 14,660
%E‘EEFZ%\J S Interest expense on lease liabilities 9,654 - 9,654
ATERE) Fair value change - (85,093) (85,093)
Hit 2 s4E Total other changes 120,142 (70,483) 175,565 225,224
7420215128318 At 31 December 2021 614,940 4,128,446 51,945 4,795,331
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M. ERTESRHEBAEHRE

RIBEFB QRGN (5F622GE ) F1781(HBEES
FlzmER) BEEERTESFEHE20214F %2020
F12AS1BIEFE 2 IHEFT W27 -

41. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES CONNECTED

WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are shown as below.

2021 2020
M12A31B 2B GAREEETE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding at
31 December
—BER R — Loans and advances 1,137 218
FRNEBR G 2 = iBEER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions during the year
—ERRBR — Loans and advances 1,672 526

1220214 % 20204 il 2 FiE BB 5B ARTT

T o

2 A

20)

42, ERABEALZRS

NIRRT 2 EEEBR AR ARMRITEEER QA
(TRFRITEE]) RERERARAFTERER
EREEEMNEE LM ARF] e

720214 ]2 20204F + ANRITIE— MR 1550 + B
MR B R EAD R R E A R E SIS ERE
RS BREBITEEGIRBER #HEERDHEA
ER—MRREERD - REEMRITARE

AN - RERITIRAREIER AR R E R R B A
AR ENRITERRY - HERSEMETRE
MR o

The above relevant transactions in 2021 and 2020 were all transacted
by the Bank.

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) and the ultimate holding company is DSFH. Both
holding companies are incorporated and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2021 and 2020, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other fellow
subsidiaries on normal commercial terms. These transactions include
interbank placements and deposit taking, marketing and distribution of
life and general insurance products and the provision of other banking

services.

In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative
services to its ultimate holding company and its fellow subsidiaries,
leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
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42, BEBEEATZRE @)
BEMBEALZEARZIT :

(F) BERARAKREANBLARANRZRE
R

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions and balances with holding companies
and fellow subsidiaries

(i) WARZH (i) Income and expenses
BEERBAERAR
Immediate and B R KA R
ultimate holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
2021 2020 2021 2020

ERFIE Interest paid (731) (11,139) (6,804) (2,574)
BIHE Interest received - = 24 37
BlHE Commission received - - 27,091 29,003
BURTE, Service fee received/recovery of

Rty EE other operating expenses 6,921 6,827 6,096 6,284
B S RAEAAE Rental and related building

BER management fee received = - 4,357 5,140
BT H A 2E T Other operating expenses paid - - (7,286) (9,150)
EfHE Rental paid - - (4,419) (4,412)

KFIRITAR AR 2021FF 4
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42. BEBEEATZRE @)
() XEEEBAE
() BHEERFTEEFNEZEAX
B R
FR - NRITIRBWEER - 8 - EH8F
FIRERBETFTEEEEAL HiEHENES

WEMRAESINEE - WIRENIESES
BREPRHREEME THFRER -

T2EBABZRGMES 2 WA R
TEXN MERRERZERWT

42,

(b)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors
and key management personnel

During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with the key
management personnel, their close family members and the
entities controlled by them including deposit taking, loans, credit
card facilities and investment services. These transactions were
provided in the ordinary course of business and at the same
terms with other employees.

Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:

2021 2020

B REK Loans and advances 1,137 192
TR Deposits 374,128 435,409
REA 2 EFUEEA Undrawn commitments 3,785 3,373
ER Guarantee = =

(i) TEEZASHE

REITEREEABRRITES - HRPCD
BRERZFIRHEES -

(A) BBRERNRARARZEFHNERIRERE
23

FA - ARTEIEBELRRAEERT
206,338,000/% 7T (20204 : 118,387,000/ 7t ) %
BURA » 122021F12A318 » RiRITHEZHEE
$R1TE I R (BB #4755 48,529,000/8 T E 5 E
1% (20204 : &) - £ - ARITIUF K RIESIE
2R MER2021F12A31 B HEREH A
510,113,000/ 7T (20204 : 540,391,000/ L) °
FA - ANRITHEI B R 22 E §824,240,0007%
7L (20204F : 24,000,000 70 ) B B A © 55 LERR
S REMIIIE BB EBEER — RS EFE
i °

()

(ii) Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors

and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entities

During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate,
dividend income of HK$206,338,000 (2020: HK$118,387,000). As at
31 December 2021, the Bank accepted trade bills issued by BOCQ
with outstanding balance of HK$48,529,000 (2020: Nil). During the
year, the Bank took deposits from the jointly controlled entities and
the balance of deposit as at 31 December 2021 was HK$510,113,000
(2020: HK$540,391,000). During the year, the Bank received from
a jointly controlled entity dividend income of HK$24,240,000 (2020:
HK$24,000,000). The transactions and balances were provided in the

ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.
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43.

BARR 4D R B 3R A =1 &1

REBRMABRES N 2 RAR S 2 ABHD
RETERENET ) -

(1)

BARR RS Y AR A R B SR 5+ 8

RIRIT 2 EEER D AAIRITRE RZKRIZER
NRARF S E L RBAEE o BBAMIKRIT

&

R B ([ RFTIRITEERTE ) RAF &

BB RS (RS ])  SERA
FIZEESARXTHERT  BREAKENARTT
MBS RBERBERE -

(BF) A#iR{TEE B 5 &)

AFERT1TE B N 201445 H27 H 2178
ARFIRTTEER AT RS BB IERANR
A& tERTE o

% E BB THE AR IRT R B B Z 5K
FARHEFPIR T - BRI ZTRETIHIR
EZRFMEEERRATRITEEEESIA
TMERENBER S ETHRAIE17.03(9)
BARET - RMER A T2 2 = & 1F
BE : (YRBRITEBRNERTERER
RXHMEEREZWHE k(i) KFRTEE
BROEEERTHASEEEANEERS
FREE 2 FHWRHIE -

BARFRITERE S B M A B E20214F
12A318 ' BT LARIRFELT :

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Group operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
compensation plans.

(1) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

Each of the Bank’s immediate holding company, Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”), and ultimate holding company, Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), has its own share option
schemes. The Board of Directors of DSBG and DSFH can grant to any
employee, including directors of the Bank and of the Group, options to
subscribe for shares of DSBG or DSFH under the DSBG Share Option
Scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”) and the DSFH Share Option Scheme
(the “DSFH Scheme”).

(a) DSBG Scheme

The shareholders of DSBG approved the adoption of a share
option scheme on 27 May 2014.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per option
share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (“NRC”) on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and
was determined as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and
(ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the
SEHK for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

Share options granted under the DSBG Scheme since the date of
its adoption to 31 December 2021:

BRITEEGER)
®FH Al BB 1TEH Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HKS)
201844 F26H VAR 2 A~ 20184 426 H = 2019F4 A26H =

2023F4F26H 20244 H526H
26 April 2018 Equity-settled 26 April 2018— 26 April 2019— 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
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R2015F5 278 @ K< mii% SR EB I E
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A& EEtE B RN E L E2021412 A 31
AiE - WEERRIERIE RIS et 8%
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T W B P R 0 2 I IS e 2 A58 LA S 7 5 Bl o B

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(1) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) DSFH Scheme

On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of DSFH approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”).

No share options had been granted under the DSFH Scheme
since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2021.

Equity-settled share-based compensation charged to income statement

I is as follows:

2021 2020
VARR M ST A 2 R A e Equity-settled options 480 821
LIRS 2R’ Equity-settled options

b 1 3L ART 4847 58 B 51 2 5745 2 LA RSO S 1
P ERET B2 ATENASER ST
BRI -

R20214F - B AE (AT LA BAE S 5 2 RS AR B K
RITEREF S RAFRERBRY -

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the DSBG
Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using the
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
granted.

No equity-settled options were granted under the DSBG Scheme and
DSFH Scheme in the year of 2021.
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43. DR AERRMEE @)
(1) UAREX ARG B ER R 8 @

LIRS AT 2 2 I m)

BT 2RISR REMETHTERE 2 ZFHM
™

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(1) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

(Continued)

Equity-settled options (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

AABITER:TE R RTE
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2021 2020 2021 2020

B Sit) BFA S Sit)

BEAH BEAT BE BE

BEE RITEE AR Nk
ZRET  METH  2RER  0ETS  ARER  METHE ZRER ET
RH#E fieE RiAHE e RHHE fiEE RHHAE 12
Number (A7) Number (B7)  Number (B7)  Number (%)
of DSBG Weighted  of DSBG ~ Weighted ~ of DSFH  Weighted  of DSFH  Weighted
shares  average shares  average shares  average shares  average
inshare  exercise inshare  exercise ~ inshare  exercise inshare  exercise
options price options price  options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HK$)  granted (HKS) granted (HKS)
1A18 At 1 January 1,200,000 18.24 1,500,000 18.24 - - - -
ol Granted - - - - - - - -
ERE Expired - - - - - - = =
BifE Exercised - - = = = = = =
ERH/RK Cancelled/forfeited - - (300000 1824 - - - -
12A318 At 31 December 1,200,000 18.24 1,200,000 18.24 - - - -
128318171 Exercisable at 31 December 720,000 18.24 480,000 18.24 - - - =

AFRITEER2021F12 A31 B R 1TE 2R
T2 1T B B £ 18.24 78 7t (2020 FF : 18.24
Bor) - REMMEFHEFISRE DITHEER2.324F
(2020%F : 8.32%F) - N ALEBEE R SRITH
ABAEAZ K& mRRE - 720215124
31 BB RITEZ R < B RRE (20205 : 8
B) e

DSBG'’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2021 have an
exercise price of HK$18.24 (2020: HK$18.24), and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 2.32 years (2020: 3.32 years). In respect of
directors and senior executives of the Group, there is no DSFH'’s share

option outstanding as of 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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43. DR AERRMEE @)
(2) URESIZFURBIELERREN S

RIRTEERAFERBMERT —AURE XN
VAR An A5 250 2 SR DR )51 81 (23 Bl A T A #T iR
TT5 B ERRVRE R AT 8 ) R [ A3 & b 22 B4 A 5t
2 ERREREBNRIEES -

(BF) A#R1TEBERREF a1

ZatBIER 720183 A20H - BER4VH #E
£2021F12A31 81 » BT ZHEFLT ¢

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

DSBG and DSFH have each established a cash-settled share-based
incentive option scheme (hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme” and the “DSFH Incentive Option Scheme” respectively)
as a long-term incentive plan to incentivise employees.

(a) DSBG Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was established on 20 March 2018. Incentive
options granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption
to 31 December 2021 are as follows:

BRITEEGER)
£FH 5l FEAE 1TEH Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HKS)
201844 A26H AR & X+ 20184 H26H % 20195F4H26E %

2023F4 H26H 20244 H26H

26 April 2018 Cash-settled 26 April 2018- 26 April 2019— 6.67
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
2019F6 H5H AR &2 fF 201946 A5HZE 202066 H5H %
20246 A5H 20256 A5H

5 June 2019 Cash-settled 5 June 2019- 5 June 2020— 13.66
5 June 2024 5 June 2025
2020477 A22H AR &3 f~F 202057 H22H %= 20217 H22H %
20257 H22H 20267 H22H

22 July 2020 Cash-settled 22 July 2020—- 22 July 2021—- 7.33
22 July 2025 22 July 2026
202048 H28H AR & X+ 202098 H28HE 202158 H28EH &
202558 H28H 2026F8 H28H

28 August 2020 Cash-settled 28 August 2020- 28 August 2021— 7.44
28 August 2025 28 August 2026
2021410H29H AR &2 fF 20215F10H298 & 2022F10H29B &
202610 H29H 2027410 H29H

29 October 2021 Cash-settled 29 October 2021— 29 October 2022— 7.46
29 October 2026 29 October 2027
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(2 UREXNURDERERRMS
(%)

(Z) AHEAERBEFE

ZET BRI A201843 A20H » BHERANH #E
F2021F12A31HIL r BTF&EEREE Z#E

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was established on 20 March 2018. Incentive
options granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption

AT to 31 December 2021 which are related to employees of the
Group are as follows:

BRITEEGER)

#FH kW]l BB 1TEH Exercise price

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
202049 H28H AR & 2 f+F 20209F9 H28H & 202149 H28HE
20259 A28H 202659 A28H

28 September 2020 Cash-settled 28 September 2020— 28 September 2021— 19.89

ZEER AR TEERAF TSR
IER KRG T - FHBFZITEBIHRES
FHHEEeRRATRITEBRRATEHES
EUTEEZRNBRER ST LM AIZ17.03(9)
ERET @ B NVERAT2BF 2 e & (EEE ¢
()VAFETEE KT SBBHER T ARES
REMEBE 2 WME : R(i)AFRITEEKFH
SRBNERER THRSELEEXAREER S
BB 2 FHRTHE -

ZATEIR T RN - M T BEAE1ERF D5
W EBIY Al TUATHRE - AR EREMEERE
BRTEE N - AR ARITEERBER o %58
EERERANKRR B RITERER AT S
BB (B H R IR AT IR & SREYET 8 AR AAR
ABITERMAFRITRE LA BB -

P 2R BR AR 2 A TR & ST AN DA RR 170 75 2R Rl S B
ZXHIT

28 September 2025 28 September 2026

The incentive options were granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the respective DSBG and DSFH schemes. The exercise
prices per incentive option were concluded by the NRC on behalf
of the respective Boards of DSBG and DSFH on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and were determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s/DSFH’s
shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of DSBG’s/DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The rights granted under the respective schemes shall be exercisable
upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing from the first anniversary
of the date of grant. Subject to the satisfaction of performance appraisal
factors, the grantees may exercise their vested options. No shares of
DSBG or DSFH will be issued to the grantees of the options under the
schemes which are essentially deferred cash incentive schemes linked
to the performance of the grantees and the share price of DSBG and
DSFH.

Cash-settled share-based compensation charged to income statement is
as follows:

2021 2020

AR A 2 R

Cash-settled options 12,000 -
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43. DR AERRMEE @)

(2 UREXNURGERERBEMTE

()
HUBEEX 2 EF

Fh sl KT IRTT 52 B R A Hh & B AR B RS U P
RTEEREEZARSINOEN  ER2®RA
ZRAETIA=IR Mg E BEEFE - K2021
FR2020F BIEEEMER T 2 A FEZHEERE

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

Cash-settled options

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the DSBG and
DSFH Incentive Option Schemes which are related to employees of
the Group described above, the fair value is determined by using the
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at reporting date. The assumptions used

I to estimate the fair value of the options granted during 2020 and 2021
are as follows:
A ERRRD
A&
RIRITEERBERNE DSFH Incentive
DSBG Incentive Option Scheme Option Scheme
RiB 2020%7A22H 202048 728H 2021510729H 202049 A28H
Grant date 22 July 2020 28 August 2020 29 October 2021 28 September 2020

IR A RF &/, AMBRITEENRE(ET)
Share price of DSFH/DSBG as at grant date (HK$)
TREGET)

Exercise price (HK$)

FRER IR (RE())

Expected volatility (Note (i))

HEsm(F)

Option life (years)

ERRA= (FE(ii))

Risk free rate (Note (ii))

TR AR B 2 (5 (iii))

Expected dividend rate (Note (i)
HRENRE 2 2 HEGET)

Fair value of a share in the option (HK$)

T

() EREERFGEENERRERERIRTER
B A ERBENEL KSR ZMALEEXR
Z2  RHRPXERBEBAERIRITEEKA
MERPNEER 25— FARENELIRE X

EETE - W ESCABIR ©

(i) EERANXSEBINEESRERR N AR EE

TSR AU -

(i) FEHIREERUBEBHEEREGE -

7.27 7.44 7.46 19.14
7.33 7.44 7.46 19.89
31.77% 33.00% 37.22% 35.74%
6 6 6 6
0.17% 0.34% 1.20% 0.24%
3.30% 3.30% 3.94% 3.55%
1.61 1.76 2.01 4.63

Note:

(i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the share price of DSBG or DSFH, as appropriate, during the one
year period immediately preceding the grant date and is based on the
assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical volatility
of the share price of DSBG or DSFH, as appropriate, as set out above.

(ii) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity at grant date.

(i)  Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant date.
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(2) BAREZM R ERE R &
()

UB 2R m)

RYREREE ZENBE REMEFHTEEL
EEHMT

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(2) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

Cash-settled options (continued)

Movements in the number of options granted to employees of the
Group and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:
AFRTEEREERE Ai S RRRIERIHE
DSBG Incentive Option Scheme DSFH Incentive Option Scheme
2021 2020 2021 2020
By BT
MRE g BF By
KRBT AT RE AEE
£8 mETY £E BT  KHER  METH ANER O METS
ARET ke DR IfkE  RRET e RREd e
Bo#A (Bm) BRHEAE (Br) RG#A (Brn) BH#A ()
Number Weighted ~ Number ~ Weighted =~ Number Weighted ~ Number ~ Weighted
of DSBG  average  ofDSBG ~ average  of DSFH  average  of DSFH  average
sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise
options price options price  options price options price

granted (HKS) granted (HKS) ~ granted (HKS) granted (HK$)

1A1A At 1 January 15,200,000 12.37 10,340,000 16.38 400,000 19.89 = =
ol Granted 550,000 746 6,600,000 7.36 - - 400,000 19.89
2R Expired - - = = = = = =
Bi7fE Exercised - - = = = = = =
BEUH/ 8 Cancelled/forfeited (1,000,000) 1181 (1,740,000) 17.19 - - = =
12A31H At 31 December 14,750,000 1223 15,200,000 12.37 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
12A31AE{I{E Exercisable at 31 December 5,360,000 1452 2,680,000 16.94 80,000 19.89 = =

MEBRTFZURE TN ZEF - ZEEREHRA
2EZHENFENE AKREEA12,000,0007% T
(20204 : £#) o

In relation to the cash-settled options granted, the Group has recorded
liabilities of HK$12,000,000 (2020: Nil) with reference to the fair value
of the options at the reporting date.

BERAEEEZE NS RITHRABREAZ KR
TEBE R ARFEBER - 12021612 31 HARTT

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding cash-settled options under
the DSBG and the DSFH Incentive Option Schemes related to directors

82 RIKHE 2 TEED R RN F7.33% TE18.24
Y5 7T(20204F : 7.33 8 72 18.2475 7T ) 5 19.897%
7 (20204 : 19.89/87T) « R ENETFHEFEGRE
K171 HAD Al R4.334F (20204 : 5.194F ) 4.75
F (20204 : 5.75%F) °

and senior executives of the Group have exercise price in the range of
HK$7.33 to HK$18.24 (2020: HK$7.33 to HK$18.24) and at HK$19.89
(2020: HK$19.89) respectively, and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 4.33 years (2020: 5.19 years) and 4.75 years (2020:
5.75 years) respectively.
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44. TREERK[BEHHE

fE B ER ERBIERTOEN AT S HEREE
REBEZEERSRE  URABNFEEEHH
REXRBEREENBEAE  AUTKERE
ERAFEMELHH -

() FRGEEIHREEY S HEMEIRRE
NEEzTHEERER

AEEBRERBTREEARAB([FETR
BEDARZEPREPETREREERS -

REERZVEBRERNEERREE 2 S
BB H BB REE 2 EWGRIEREE KB R
BHAEE - 122021 %2020F 12 A31H * 2 FHE 5
FEUGRIE B B B 5E297h 2 [ FE W kT8 K FB 4 18
B IBRIER - HIHZ SEHN T X -

44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(@) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the
gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, the net amount was a receivable and was included in
“Accounts receivable and prepayments” in Note 29. The amounts offset
are shown below.

2021 2020

BB REE 7 FIBRRE Gross amount of accounts receivable
from HKSCC 93,037 172,133

[ENBAERRER 2 SIAEH Gross amount of accounts payable to
HKSCC (984) (57,378)
[ E B REEFHE Net amount due from HKSCC 92,053 114,755

(2) RFREERHERBEMBRRRA
HECTMEERAR

AEEERARERZHFIVARFEEER
B WURIEEERR - FREEEBHRRE  —8B
HEBZOEN  IASRRZHFZRTKRR S
BeRIt  MAAERRFERHARFREE
WIFBREROEN  MARHF 2R ENERE
BER—RIEEMBIRNKTPEHIFEERAE -

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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44. TRIEEHBENHHE@® 44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (continued)
(2) SRERAERHOARBEVBRRRR (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
HvemEEREBE@ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
R FERAEE T () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
TRIREXEH  BEAER N2 BB FHREER The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
FRERBEMORNESR T A - to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements.
Bt BEEFBRRRA
e et HEvHEeE
SRS (S Related amounts not set
SREREE FF2eR off in the statement of FERTMKE
Gross EEEE financial position T
amounts of Netamounts  $RMIA 2R
BEASEM  recognised of financial (BFFEE T EhE
BESE financial assets #HR) kx|
Gross liabilities set  presented Financial Amounts not
amountsof  offin the inthe instruments EHELEH subject to
recognised  statement  statement  (including Cash enforceable
financial  of financial ~ of financial  non-cash  collateral B netting A
2021512A31R At 31 December 2021 assets position position collateral) received Netamount agreements Total
TRAE Financial assets
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 565,259 - 565,259 (504,251) (44,316) 16,692 55,797 621,056
Bt BEEFHRRRA
VLT T L AL
HYvaEs RER Related amounts not set
SMEESE Slmzem  Offinthe statement RERTHk
Gross aEEE of financial position BT
amounts of Netamounts ~ $RMIA 2R
CHZSR recognised of financial (BFFHS EiGE
SE8E financial liabilities BHR) Pk
Gross assetssetoff presented  Financial EEHR Amounts not
amounts of inthe inthe instruments ~ BEEM subject to
recognised  statement  statement  (including Cash enforceable
financial ~ of financial ~ of financial ~ non-cash  collateral B netting &
2021512A31R At 31 December 2021 liabilities position position  collateral)  placed out Netamount agreements Total
tRER Financial liabilities
FITFR Deposits from banks 1,203,131 - 1,203,131 (1,208,131) - - 500,066 1,703,197
fTESRTA Derivative financial Instruments 1,381,163 - 1,381,163 (504,251) (851,835) 25,077 44,202 1,425,365
BEEERGNAR Trading liabilities 1,511,927 - 1511927  (1511,927) - - - 1511927
Hinfk B kR Other accounts and accruals 307,731 - 307,731 (307,731) - - 6228855 6,536,586
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4. sRIEEHESENEHE@® 44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (continued)
() SRBEETHERBEMBMRRRA (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
HvemEEREBE@ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
AR TR E () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
BT VEEHHRARA
o B HEZIEESE
HiS BT UrpE Related amounts not set
smafen  fmzem  Offinthesttementof T RARKE
Gross ~ AEFE TR B
amountsof Netamounts ~ £RIE A £
B#7ASE  recognised  offinancial (BEIEES FHE R
RESH financial assets B kx|
Gross liabilities set ~ presented Financial Amounts not
amounts of off in the inthe instruments E4FE &K subject to
recognised  statement  statement (including Cash enforceable
financial  of financial  offinancial  non-cash collateral et netting CHI
20205 12A31H At 31 December 2020 assets position position collateral) received  Netamount — agreements Total
SREE Financial assets
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 955,385 - 955,385 (690,911)  (244,637) 19,837 180429 1135814
RER B HEZ LR
Wi BRT P Related amounts not set
sMAESE sinzem  Offmtestatoment RS R
Goss  Afgge  Of fnancial posiion L
amountsof Netamounts — £RIE A+
B#7ASE  recognised  offinancial  (BEIES e R
RESE financial liabilities B kx|
Gross assefssetoff presented Financial BER Amounts not
amounts of in the inthe instruments  BEEHF subject to
recognised  statement  statement (including Cash enforceable
financial  offinancial  offinancial  non-cash  collateral A8 netting CH
2020512314 At 31 December 2020 liabilities position position collateral) ~ placedout ~ Netamount  agreements Total
SRR Financial liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 762,285 = 762,285 (762,285) = = 2,738,157 3,500,442
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments 2,985,107 - 2985107 (690,911)  (2,260,539) 33,657 206,081 3,191,188
BEEERGNAR Trading liabilities 1,570,675 - 1570675  (1,570,675) - - - 1570675
AftERE k¥R Other accounts and accruals 490,959 - 490959 (490,959) - - 6544829  7,035788
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1. BXRREHR

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

20214 2020%F
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

BRF L Capital adequacy ratio
—EBRE—R — Common Equity Tier 1 14.2% 13.8%
—— & - Tier 1 14.7% 14.3%
—EE — Total 18.1% 17.6%

202112 431 H &2020F 12 A31 B 2 E A7 B
L& Ty ARRITEV AR S MR (BIERFIEERITRA
FTERTT (R B ) IRECGRITE (B RADHEER
BENERAAE - ZEATELENFEDE
B 5 R B AR E R

AT RBEBEMIRITEARBTBRITERED
BITEATREERFEENR - RMPIEFRITAE
STARPFIRITEEENRERKRTRIT(PE)
ABTHRETBRIRITREENRE

RTEECRITEGRE)RRD)  FRREEEESR
AN B A AR R BE 2 BINE R B FIE R AR T 4
5 http://www.dahsing.com - It 7] % LA N & # &
# ¢ hitp://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.htmlE A °

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering BCM
and DSB China) computed on Basel Ill basis in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into account
market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to
the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and
DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at
http://www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.
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2. 1EIRkE= 2. LEVERAGE RATIO
20214 20204
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
TEARLE 2 Leverage ratio 9.9% 9.4%

ERTIARBITZHEERNZ LR R IRERTT L
K2 HRGFAERHE -

BEECRITE(HRE) R ERAAKE
ERLELEZBIINEHNENNENRANRITEA

http://www.dahsing.com -

BT S =

A http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/

regulatory_disclosures.htmli#E A ©

The above ratios represent the consolidated position of the Bank and
are computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital adequacy
ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules, additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio
is published in the Bank’s website at http://www.dahsing.com and is
accessible at the following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/html/
en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

3. MEMtMIELER 3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO
2021 2020
BN EHERS L Liquidity maintenance ratio 46.9% 47.8%

MBI ML R T ARTT (BHERFIA R RITRAK
FriRIT (R ED)) R BREEESER ANFHEAR
PEER L RN E PR o MBI LLETD
REBCGRITEORBE) RADE -

RIRTTRBBEMRITARBETBRITREE
STREMEEKERRK - RFIEHRRITAETH
BRFIRITREEETNRE RAHRIT(HE)AE
SRR BISRITEEERRE

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average consolidated LMR of the Bank (covering BCM and DSB China)
for the financial year. The LMR is computed in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM
is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to
China banking regulations.
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4. SMNERPBR

T3 B%E2021F12 A31 B 2 E T ME AR &%
ZINEFEE (BRI 2 INE SR B R B BT G YNE SR B
10%) + REAEME 2 LLEEE -

R2021F12 A31H k202012 A31H » "&EE
WA AR IE NS 5805 58 - Bl R IR
BATEINERES L 2 SRE NEE 2 BEMS

4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2021 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as at
31 December 2021 and 2020. The net position is calculated in the basis
of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency option contracts.

o
HAt oM AT
Ak Other Total
EY AR Macau foreign foreign
2021412831H At 31 December 2021 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
HERBEAT Equivalent in HK$ millions
BEEE Spot assets 73,869 16,988 9,917 5,947 106,721
REAR Spot liabilities (54,003) (16,632) (11,278) (8,594) (90,507)
REIE A Forward purchases 30,077 11,240 - 18,947 60,264
RHE Forward sales (49,845) (11,480) - (16,318) (77,643)
HigEsa Net options position 35 3 - (5) 33
&/ (R)e%mE Net long/(short) position 133 119 (1,361) (23) (1,132)
H AN SN &R
SRPIHE Other Total
X ARE Macau foreign foreign
202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
BERBEET Equivalent in HK$ millions
REEE Spot assets 75,606 17,846 9,931 7,825 111,208
HEBE Spot liabilities (53,937) (16,796) (11,453) (8,594) (90,780)
RHEA Forward purchases 21,686 12,044 = 3,113 36,843
EHEM Forward sales (42,823) (12,993) - (2,352) (58,168)
SR Net options position = - - _ _
&/(8)%F8 Net long/(short) position 532 101 (1,522) (8) (897)
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5. ERERSREZEIIDN 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES
() RTESEZ2EFERAB(UNERA (a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZoERUSEARRENBES LS classified according to the usage of loans and
#) analysed by percentage covered by collateral
2021%12A31H 2020%12A31H
At 31 December 2021 At 31 December 2020
ERaE EeE
SHEARRE ZERRIRE
ZERL ZBA
% of gross % of gross
REBELH advances REBEHS advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TR Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEER — Property development 5,467,229 75.2 5,611,830 66.5
-MERE ~ Property investment 19,253,002 93.2 17,221,674 924
-SRI — Financial concermns 4,661,129 14.9 5,756,814 5.8
—REEL — Stockbrokers 1,642,984 61.6 1,733,867 46.7
—HEETEYE - Wholesale and retail trade 5,401,435 91.8 6,004,660 90.4
—BUER — Manufacturing 1,987,035 60.7 1,790,941 56.4
— B NBHRE — Transport and transport equipment 2,269,160 79.2 2,512,559 80.1
—REEE) — Recreational activities 59,895 99.1 96,223 99.6
— R — Information technology 59,058 91.1 51,827 86.5
—Hft - Others 6,970,986 744 6,003,396 68.4
47,771,913 77.5 46,783,791 71.6
{EN Individuals
-BE[EEEHEEE] — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[LAZEEET SR Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[MEEEREHEIIBTER Sector Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 529,218 100.0 558,428 100.0
~BEHEMEENEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 33,473,466 100.0 31,260,619 100.0
~EEFRER — Credit card advances 3,670,096 - 3,610,141 =
—Hih - Others 13,105,677 51.0 13,079,682 51.6
50,778,457 80.1 48,508,870 79.5
HEEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 98,550,370 78.8 95,292,661 75.6
Z5/A (1)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,123,088 67.3 8,115,481 61.5
EEBIMERNER(F2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 37,640,550 58.4 34,170,432 63.7
144,314,008 72.9 137,578,574 71.8
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5.

BN EREE 2 B2 2 T ()

() BRI BzEFERMABELERR

ERoERUSEHERRENE LD
) (@)

ERIRZBEMERSETESEREHZA
BiEsSImaEAREED MONEBOMNRE -
UREmEHBESZZEN

TEREBZ B HMEBRR(BIEARRITZEINE
B RTRTZE 5EE )4#818485,128,000/%
JL(20209F12 531 H : 260,328,000/ 7C) 7 2E 7
[TERBLIMERMERIET ©

[EEBMMERNER I BERTREEPEE
BRAIMER ZEHK °

(@)

Note:

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and
analysed by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports
to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and merchandising
trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines issued by the
HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade finance
extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank) totalling
HK$485,128,000 (31 December 2020: HK$260,328,000) are classified
under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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5. EEREREZEIDH @

(R) RTEDECEFERBBE(LLERHA
ERoERUSEHERRENE LD
) (@)

DTS EKREERAEEE10%K A _ EMTT
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%mﬁ ﬁﬁmé REE - BEER3 R
R ERA M B ERO B FOR BN T

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and
analysed by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting
10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the
attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and
Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances are as follows:

EXan
BEAEER B B2 1 R Pk Fr2
HEER HBiB3fEA PEER3 HEEE
(B ER3) Gross WEEE Stage1and
REELESR Impaired advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans  overdue for  impairment  impairment
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 balance (Stage 3) over 3 months  allowances  allowances
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEERE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE — Property investment 19,253,002 51,919 38,121 11,729 89,789
{EUN Individuals
-BEEMEE — Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 33,473,466 89,902 85,138 9,624 24,502
TERBAIMERRER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 37,640,550 392,169 368,601 163,778 342,823
Eies
BERER EESY LAV
HEER fiA3(E A FEER3 AELEE
(FBER3) Gross W{E%HE  Stage 1and
REEE Impaired advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans overdue for impairment impairment
2020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 balance (Stage 3) over 3 months allowances allowances
EBEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
T Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment 17,221,674 59,373 41,590 4,705 95,584
BA Individuals
~-BEAMAEE — Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 31,260,619 62,747 92,630 7,826 40,076
EBEIMERNE R Loans for use outside Hong Kong 34,170,432 520,305 400,017 187,244 154,835
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5. EREREREZEIDH @

(2) HHBEAEREBNERER

REFBSER(RITEEE)RA) - U THF
BAEEBNBBE AT H2REBSERYH
B RPE TS R P A7 2 FERITRR ZH TR
AIREEREFEERENSE  HhRB8EAR
TREAHRITHE R BR T 2 B AEEBH
A7 o

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with
reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which includes the
Mainland activities exposures extended by the Bank and its Mainland
subsidiary bank only.

BESERA BEAER)
HEhE )23
On-balance Off-balance Bere
20215 2021 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. BREST - PREGHEEM 1. Central government, central government-
BERENBARNEE owned entities and their subsidiaries and joint
AR([&ERA]) ventures (“JV’s) 9,094,497 120,098 9,214,595
2. MABE - ABFEAR 2. Local governments, local government-owned
KERERBRARNEE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
NG 1,447,842 263,538 1,711,380
3. REEETEAMZERKE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
FR B A P ST ) EL AR other entities incorporated in Mainland China
REMBARMAEAH and their subsidiaries and JVs 14,376,645 1,504,435 15,881,080
4, FEHELME-TBEHRZF 4. Other entities of central government not
REFTHE s reported in item 1 above 2,890,926 10,714 2,901,640
5. KRBEELME-IASH/2M 5. Other entities of local governments not reported
AR in item 2 above 1,060,321 249,582 1,309,903
6. FEEEFERMHUIZER 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
A B A A SN AL or entities incorporated outside Mainland
g - S REEFRT China where the credits are granted for use
s A in Mainland China 11,835,454 806,339 12,641,793
7. EMXSHF  HEEHR 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
{EE B AR IERI TR considered to be non-bank Mainland China
FRHE exposures 732,977 289 733,266
41,438,662 2,954,995 44,393,657
APITRERMRITINBARZ Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
MRRER 2 BEST subsidiary bank after provision 233,473,940
BEARRANBEOEEST On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
[Epi)sd total assets 17.75%
. L ERHBERERFENEEREMHEHESR Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and

EZE8 -

other balances of claims on the customers.
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5. EERBREZENID

(Z) H B AR ER R EREE (20

M 5.

(b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

BEBREXA BEBERD
igfo IR
On-balance Off-balance BB
2020 2020 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. HRREST RREFFEES 1. Central government, central government-
KERARBARANEE owned entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
/NS 9,723,405 124,954 9,848,359
2. MABE - MABF#EAER 2. Local governments, local government-owned
KERAMBARNEE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
/NG| 1,405,599 274,501 1,680,100
3. EEETEMMZERSE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
FR B AP S EL other entities incorporated in Mainland China
FEAMBRARAMEERT] and their subsidiaries and JVs 12,076,834 1,745,392 13,822,226
4, REHELME-TBEH/RZF 4. Other entities of central government not
REFTEDE et reported in item 1 above 2,221,324 36,918 2,258,242
5 ABELMEZIHEZH M 5. Other entities of local governments not reported
TR A et in item 2 above 1,609,556 283,753 1,893,309
6. EEETEAMANZER 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
S IE B A A SN ALY or entities incorporated outside Mainland
g - S REEFRT China where the credits are granted for use
Akt A in Mainland China 11,647,569 592,157 12,239,726
7. EMXHUTF  HEE®HE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
RSB AREIERI TR considered to be non-bank Mainland China
PR exposures 1,100,005 = 1,100,005
39,784,292 3,057,675 42,841,967
AT RE RHIRTT Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
BARZ MGk subsidiary bank after provision
BER EEAR 230,973,725
BEBEXRANGRE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
FEEAT AN total assets 17.22%
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of
the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers, impaired
advances to customers (Stage 3), overdue advances to customers,
Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances by
geographical area.

HEEFER )

) PEEr3 HE%ER

EFENEH Impaired BHEFER WE%fE Stage1and

Gross advances to Overdue Stage 3 Stage 2

advances customers advancesto  impairment  impairment

2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 to customers (Stage 3) customers  allowances  allowances
& Hong Kong 121,821,903 1,114,820 539,610 469,827 676,463
H China 7,615,412 72,577 62,677 1,865 62,079
B Macau 13,778,604 211,439 211,439 75,917 76,856
Hty Others 1,098,089 - - - 7,940
144,314,008 1,398,836 813,726 547,609 823,338

HEZPER Y

(B&£R3) REER3 R EAER

REER @ Impaired  BEEFER WEEE  Stage 1and

Gross  advances to Overdue Stage 3 Stage 2

advances customers advances impairment impairment

20204124318 At 31 December 2020 to customers (Stage 3)  to customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 115,234,954 1,239,712 600,421 467,445 595,174
H China 7,630,058 63,294 28,269 1,119 50,382
RF Macau 13,687,338 270,797 270,797 87,944 42,121
Hfth Others 1,026,224 - 3,315 - 6,979
137,578,574 1,573,803 902,802 556,508 694,656
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
FRTAARE
Non-bank private sector
ke
FER1T ARE
SREME Non-

BAKE Non-bank financial
2021F12A318 At 31 December 2021 BT Official financial private EEAE
BEAT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
B Offshore centres 5,278 12,937 5,891 155,733 179,839

—Hi1: BE — of which: Hong Kong 4,715 11,890 5,813 139,779 162,197
FRADAR Developing Asia and Pacific 24,731 1,216 795 18,695 45,437
—He : — of which: Mainland China 19,423 1,055 451 14,731 35,660
RIS
Non-bank private sector

El

JEIRIT FLAREE

SR Non-

B Non-bank financial
2020412 A431H At 31 December 2020 $}IT Official financial private EREBE
BEAT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
B Offshore centres 6,928 15,016 6,727 143,869 172,540

—Hip BB — of which: Hong Kong 6,441 13,595 6,727 128,137 154,900
BFRADAE Developing Asia and Pacific 27,306 1,060 880 17,681 46,927
—Hi: i - of which: Mainland China 19,036 894 526 14,159 34,615
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the
“Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages
37 to 232, comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021;

J the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Impairment allowances on advances to customers

o Recoverable amount of investment in an associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

Refer to notes 4(a) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
impairment allowances of HK$1,370,947
thousand in respect of its advances to
customers.

The determination of the impairment allowances
involves complex methodologies and significant
management judgement. In addition, the
extent and pace of recovery from COVID-19
and other current macro-economic conditions
have impacted the inherent risk and estimation
uncertainty involved in estimating impairment
allowances.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of the
measurement of ECL include:

o Applicability of ECL model methodologies,
and appropriateness of key measurement
parameters and assumptions;

o Criteria for determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in credit
risk (‘SICR"), or a default;

¢+ Determination of macro-economic
forecasts, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings;

o The estimated future cash flows for loans
and advances to customers in stage 3;
and

*  Appropriateness of management overlays
applied.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls and assessment process for
the measurement of impairment allowances on
advances to customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We tested the key internal controls over:

o Selection of ECL model methodologies,
determination and approval of significant
management judgements such as staging and
macro-economic forecasts and their related
probability weightings, and appropriateness
of management overlays applied;

o Timely identification, assessment and
reporting of credit impaired advances to
customers;

o Estimated future cash flows with respect
to advances to customers in stage 3 under
a range of possible scenarios and their
weightings based on financial information
of borrowers, collateral valuations and
information on other available sources of
recovery;

o Input of key data used in the impairment
models.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers (Continued)

Impairment allowances on advances to
customers is an audit focus due to the material
balance of the Group’s impairment allowances
on advances to customers and high inherent
risk given the uncertainty of estimates, adoption
of complex models, involvement of significant
management judgements and assumptions and
use of numerous parameters and data inputs in
such measurement.

In addition to testing the key controls, we have also
performed the following substantive procedures:

o We involved our credit risk experts in
evaluating the model methodologies for ECL
measurement including changes to model
methodologies during the year, significant
management judgements and assumptions.
We also assessed the supportability of the
management overlays applied;

o On sampling basis, we assessed the
appropriateness of the internal credit
ratings, management’s judgements used in
determining significant increases in credit
risk and identification of default and credit-
impaired advances to customers based on
the borrower financial and non-financial
information and other external evidence
provided by management;

*  We evaluated management’s selection
of macro-economic forecasts, economic
scenarios and weightings assigned. We
assessed the reasonableness of the macro-
economic forecasts by comparing them
to available public information, taking into
account the latest developments of COVID-19
and other current macro-economic conditions;

*  For a sample of advances to customers in
Stage 3, we assessed the reasonableness of
key management judgements and estimates
to the ECL calculation such as estimated
future cash flow from borrowers, latest
valuation of collateral, range of scenarios and
scenarios weightings.

We checked and evaluated the financial statements
disclosures in relation to the measurement of
impairment allowances on advances to customers.

Based on the procedures performed, we
considered that the models, significant judgements
and assumptions, as well as relevant data and key
parameters used by management in measuring
impairment allowances on advances to customers
were supported by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverable amount of the Investment in an associate, Bank of Chonggqing (“BOCQ”)

Refer to notes 4(d) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group's investment in BOCQ is accounted
for as an associate, using the equity method.
The Group carried the investment in BOCQ
of HK$4,230,951 thousand at 31 December
2021, after making a provision for impairment of
HK$2,992,000 thousand as at year end.

The gross carrying amount of the investment
(prior to impairment allowances) was higher
than the market value of BOCQ. This is
considered as an indicator of impairment.
Therefore, management performed an
impairment assessment and concluded that the
recoverable amount of the investment in BOCQ
was lower than its gross carrying amount,
leading to an impairment allowance. The
recoverable amount was measured as value-in-
use (‘VIU") estimate calculated by discounted
cash flow model.

The recoverable amount of the investment in
BOCQ is an audit focus as it is subject to a high
degree of estimation uncertainty , particularly
in estimating future cashflows arising from
holding the investment in BOCQ and any future
disposal proceeds and in determining the
discount rate. The inherent risk is considered
significant due to the subjectivity involved in
management judgements and assumptions
used in developing the estimate.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls and assessment process for

the measurement of recoverable amount of the

investment in BOCQ.

We assessed the inherent risk of material

misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

*  We involved valuation experts in assessing

the appropriateness of the valuation
model used by the management and the
mathematical accuracy of the calculations;

o We assessed the reasonableness of

key assumptions and inputs used by the
management, including the discount rate,
profit growth rate and price-to-book ratio,
based on relevant supporting evidence and
our knowledge of the business and industry;

*  We determined a reasonable range for the

discount rate assumption, with the assistance
of our valuation experts, and compared it to
the discount rate used by management;

o We performed scenario analysis and

developed our range of VIU estimates, by
using independent inputs and assumptions,
and compared with management’s estimates;

*  We obtained representations from the Group

that assumptions used were consistent with
information currently available to the Group;
and

o We checked and evaluated the financial

statements disclosures in relation to the
measurement of recoverable amount of the
Group’s investment in BOCQ.

Based on the procedures performed, we
considered that the recoverable amount of the
investment in BOCQ were supported by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Hung, Emily.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

417 Branch

it Address

E5E Tel

{#H Fax

RHRITERDA

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

BRED

Hong Kong Island Branches

BREDT

Aberdeen

SEBEPLDT
Admiralty Centre

R 21T

Causeway Bay

FE1T
Central
BEWLDT
Fortress Hill

5D 1T
Happy Valley

BIREWR1T
Heng Fa Chuen

HEBEST
Johnston Road

AP
North Point

ERKERDIT

Queen’s Road East

LEEDIT
Shaukiwan
AEBEST
Shek Tong Tsui
ERAT
Sheung Wan
REBDIT
Taikoo Shing

BBFHLE B — 55k & e e
Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3,
Aberdeen Centre

ERB185E E R OIS —E105 4
Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road

SRS B ST B R T8 4685k S B R A O T it /E
G/F and Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,
No. 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay

fEEE 195 IR BN E L N AR

Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central
b A 28 2 76293-29957 it 5 A B Hh T~ 15-22575% & J 1B
Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments,
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

MRS A 13RS TMAE M TATRE

Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street,
Happy Valley

LB BR RE1005R BAE IR A IE 0 218234-23557

Shop Units 234-235, 2/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall,
100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan

AT BUE1645%
164, Johnston Road, Wanchai

R EEA33-437 IR E
Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road

T B E AE 2485 AT S R O T G7, G7TARG8YE 4

Shop No. G7, G7A & G8, Ground Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai

L H B IE57-8T R A IEH T G854

Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road
2EKIEFI443-4535k T 15-1657 4

Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West

PIRBEE 2885 5B X AR i TB25k e —EBE
G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan

ABERA LI AMIE SRR A1 501554
Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing Road &
No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

2554 5463

2529 1338

2891 2201

2521 8134

2922 3389

2572 0708

2558 7485

2572 8849

2561 8241

2321 8912

2568 5271

2857 7473

2851 6281

2884 4802

=]
S
3
[1]
18

2554 0843

3110 2818

2591 6037

2526 9427

2887 7604

2572 0718

2889 2520

2891 3743

2811 4474

2598 5300

2567 5904

2108 4539

2581 2216

2884 3151
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

21T Branch ik Address B35 Tel {#H Fax

RIFRITERA R

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEEDTT

Kowloon Branches

ROBHT R E8895TZEEAIH O T 15574

Cheung Sha Wan Shop 1, G/F, CRE Centre, 889 Cheung Sha Wan Road 2361 0951 2958 0985

AW D 1T ATTERH 12855 S FE Rt N3 R45%H - 1122984 2235k &

Hunghom Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop 2365 8110 2363 5917
No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

EBA1T IR B 33555

Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 2385 0161 2782 0993

BIEST Bl R EEASTHE L O N 7-95% 4

Kwun Tong Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, 2389 3911 2389 8239
Kwun Tong

EZHWPHT EZ A ARS8 10AH TN26E K F5R 48

Mei Foo Sun Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V, 2370 2660 2370 2006

Chuen Mei Foo Sun Chuen

READ1T it AR BEEGT

Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 2394 4261 2391 9104

REHDIT BERK 1050 TAKS

Shing Yip Street Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong 2191 8103 2191 8723

EREEEDT BEEERES — B Z1EF5A-F6ATR

Telford Gardens Units F5A-FBA, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay 2927 4130 2755 4967

TINEDT 1 E38245B k2475 = = 1EE 285 T

Tokwawan G/F, Mei King Mansion, Phase Il, No. 245B and 247 Tokwawan Road 2365 9035 2363 5696

RDIE ST R IEBHEE-705R & TEAE

Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 2366 9121 2311 1491

EARA T HEAMEARNA O FEEH N G3CHR &

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin 2326 5165 2350 0894

SR i b 3 4T AR i Hh 5B 28 561 55

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 2385 9285

FREDIT

New Territories Branches

BRAT PRI IHBBIIEADEIS 0 TAT-A14 R 110112314

Fanling Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza, 2677 8830 2669 9950
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

BFHT T B IR1785R E B T 25k 4

Kwai Fong Shop 2, G/F, Edition 178, 178 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung 2487 8033 2489 1253

B 51T 15 BB B 5 157 The LOHAS 4124145748

LOHAS Park Shop Unit 414, Level 4, The LOHAS, 1 Lohas Park Road, 2838 2023 2719 6373

Tseung Kwan O
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

417 Branch

it Address

E5E Tel

{#H Fax

RHRITERDA

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

HREDT

New Territories Branches

BRILESES1T
Ma On Shan Plaza

EXREDIT
Maritime Square
BB 21T
Ocean Walk
PDREST

Sha Tsui Road
PHST

Shatin

EXkB1T
Sheung Shui

RERIT
Tai Po
KE ST
Tai Wai

KKBEAIT
Tin Shui Wai

HEER
HERF P D AT

Tseung Kwan O
Metro City Plaza

2ES1T
Tsuen Wan

BT
Tuen Mun

RABDAT
Tung Chung

B ILEDTT
Yuen Long Castle
Peak Road

RS8P FE 60855 5 821 L B 15 = 12 33555

Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road,
Ma On Shan

BB L3355 B 7108 D-ESiél

Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi

0 P95 22 15 168-236 55 & it 11 1. 93-955% 4

Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun

ZEYDIRE286-28857 1 T
G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan

W BT E R L T 95
Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin

KT L R 55-5957 JKERIE HE T BS 4

Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui

AL IR ESH T 535 k545748

Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po

W B A EE55-565% 1E T 14-185% S EE ™1 K25k 48
Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden,
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
RIKEIRIBHT355 R S8R a5 735 118 L1205 4

Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre,
Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai

#5E BMCP Discovery— #1275 4

Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O

ZEARNE14-165 5 KNE

Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan

T FI40 58 1852-625% B FE1EHD T 455 R 554

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,

52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

R | RO B FR AT 1 5% SR AR B 3 TS 23557 47

Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

TCRAE LU ABR TURA R 162-1685% I S & N CHE4H

Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long

2929 4137

2435 1368

2404 6931

26151510

2606 3533

2671 5030

2667 2588

2691 1272

2448 9008

2927 2101

2492 8102

2441 6218

2109 3484

2479 4555

2633 3432

2435 1582

2404 7130

2615 1099

2601 2413

2672 1533

2664 3637

2606 1531

2448 9112

2702 2305

2415 0984

2441 6613

2109 4353

2479 4522
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LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

41T Branch

ik Address

E5E Tel

BAPS1T

Macau Branches
RERLT

Main Branch
REDT
Almirante Lacerda
WEDT

lao Hon

BENT
Kin Wa

BFX ST
La Cite
BT
Mercadores
EBH1T
Nape

EE AT

Palha

WEES 1T
Ribeira do Patane

BT
Toi San

Bt SHST
Pedro Coutinho

FE RS ER57255

Avenida da Praia Grande, 572

LR SR K S 5 43-Bk

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B

PEFTN 2B —H455R 4 Ak T 2 K8 (55— H) i FACEE
Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase I) R/C AC
BIRGIE B IR245 I 5136 AL

Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, No. 24, Edificio Kin Wa,
Bloco 13 R/C A

EIVIRPH230-2385R B F R N U » VEE

Rua Central da Areia Preta No. 230-238, R/C U e R/C V
EH K ET4057 0 N ARE

Rua dos Mercadores No. 40 R/C A

R R 4 B35 3635 E % FIlH Uit N ORE

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Asumpgéo, No. 363,

Edificio Hot Line, R/C O

B i fa5Ri AR

Rua da Palha, No. 4, R/C A

B =T & 740250 0 NARE

Rua Visconde de Pago d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C A
BILEEDIHE +— IR T EE 5188 TCCRE

Rua Onze Barrio Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C CC

S S #725-DER & 4 B ith T B
Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, R/C B

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2822 8380

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2895 2942

(853) 2823 8483

(853) 2821 6523

BHEEDIT

Taipa Branch
RFERDT
Prince Flower City

PR F e — AT T
Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C |, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

BEREST

Coloane Branch

BB
Coloane

RIRE SR 795 b N DR
Largo do Matadouro No. 7, R/C D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374

RIRITAMR AT 2021F F

255



DITD MR (BT
LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

256

417 Branch

it Address

E5E Tel

RFRIT(PEDBRAE
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

BT RN 284 [ 15 B 38 R B SR B8 501657 R E 100K AR 1518
Head Office 15/F, Tower A, Kingkey 100 Building, No. 5016 Shennan Road East, (86-755) 2519 9033

RYNAEAT

Shenzhen Qianhai

Guiyuan Street, Luohu District, Shenzhen

YT RS & e 0 T34 3% = g 8 256 (Jb R ) 4-7HR#E 18123
Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North),

(86-755) 2519 9033

Sub-Branch Industrial Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

M5 1T EREEMT SR ARILEEE04-25 K IEITAE EM2/E01E T

Guangzhou Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604-2, (86-20) 8116 0888
North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong

/1T BT O &R K4 ¥K5015%_ /8 B K &% 15/E06, 075 T

Shanghai Room 06 & 07, 15th Floor, Sinar Mas Plaza, (86-21) 5598 7000
No. 501 Dong Da Ming Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai

EED1T TLPIA S T A =& LR 13655 1-2[F

Nanchang 1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi (86-791) 8688 7333

EINTT TERBE IR ORBIIR595

Zhenjiang 59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu (86-511) 8530 9999

BHBILX1T EER A 1L B[R AR 55 B B 85k R /B & iR R B 5L 77

Foshan Sub-Branch

111148 - 12048

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,
Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-757) 8513 3555

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Paper from responsible sources
BB B RENRKER LR
FSC™ C022410

Dah Sing Bank, Limited A#$R1TER QA

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
ERBFERRKER248F AFEH A 12612

Telephone 3% : (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile f&H :(852) 2598 5052

Website  ##1F : www.dahsing.com
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